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In my first year as CEO I have been greatly impressed by
the quality of our people.

During a year in which we have seen significant internal
changes and many external challenges, our people have
retained as their priority meeting the needs of their clients.
Above all else, it is this commitment to our clients that will
ensure the future success of Jardine Lloyd Thompson.

Dominic Burke
Chief Executive

“

”



Jardine Lloyd Thompson is a leading risk management adviser, insurance
and reinsurance broker. It is also a major provider of employee benefit
administration services and related consultancy advice.

We are the largest European based company
providing these services and are quoted on the
London Stock Exchange.

The Group was formed in February 1997 by the
merger of Jardine Insurance Brokers and Lloyd
Thompson Group.

Lloyd Thompson was founded in 1981 and listed on
the London Stock Exchange in October 1987.
The merger combined Lloyd Thompson’s specialist
skills in the London Market with Jardine Insurance

Broker’s international network which included a
significant presence in the Asia Pacific region.

Since the merger, the Group has continued to
expand its international presence acquiring broking
businesses in Colombia, Peru and Mexico in late 2004.
Most recently, JLT received approval from the
Chinese regulatory authorities in 2006 to commence
operating as an insurance and reinsurance broker in
mainland China.

Who we are

Where we operate
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More than 100 offices in over 30 countries employing 5,000 staff
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Risk & Insurance provides broking and risk management
services for clients across an extensive range of business
sectors.

Employing 3,750 people, the principal lines of business are:

Retail: An international group of retail businesses successful
in their local, national and international markets.

Specialist: A world class group of specialist teams, serving
the particular needs of clients in selected industries.

Wholesale: One of the largest dedicated wholesalers,
providing brokers in the US and elsewhere with access to
insurance capacity in London, Bermuda and Continental
Europe.

Reinsurance: A reinsurance broker with established areas of
specialist expertise, a commitment to bring a more analytical
approach and a wider variety of risk management solutions.

Employee Benefits employs 1,000 professional staff in 10 offices
in the UK and Ireland. There are four main operating divisions:

Administration Solutions: Third party pensions and benefit
administration.

Benefit Solutions: Actuarial, investment, pension, benefit and
reward consulting services, group risk, healthcare and flexible
benefits services.

Premier Pension Services: A range of Self Invested Personal
Pension (SIPP) and Small Self-Administered Schemes (SSAS)
services provided to independent financial advisers, accountants
and lawyers.

Financial Institutions Services: Outsourcing solutions for a range
of pension products on behalf of life companies.
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What we do

Risk & Insurance Employee Benefits

Our key performance indicators

Trading profit per employee
Turnover less operating expenses for
continuing operations (excluding exceptional
items and impairment charges) divided by the
total staff numbers (average for the year).

Revenue per employee
Turnover (fees and commissions), divided
by the total staff numbers (average for
the year).

Salary to turnover ratio
Direct salary costs (excluding exceptional
items and impairment charges) divided by
turnover (fees and commissions).

Indirect costs to turnover ratio
Indirect costs (operating expenses
excluding direct salary costs, exceptional
items and impairment charges) divided by
turnover (fees and commissions).

2006

2005

Group Risk &
Insurance

Employee
Benefits

£89,800

£88,300

£100,900

£98,100

£77,500

£74,300

2006

2005

£11,500

£12,300

2006

2005

62.4%

60.6%

2006

2005

24.8%

25.4%

£16,300

£17,100

58.8%

57.9%

25.1%

24.7%

£13,400

£12,100

54.9%

53.3%

27.8%

30.5%

These key performance indicators are for continuing operations.



Operating & Financial Review
Chairman’s Statement

The Group made significant
progress on many fronts in
2006. The underlying results
showed an improvement over
2005 and, just as importantly,
decisive action was taken to
mitigate significant risks to the
business and to clarify the
future direction of the Group.
I am pleased to report that
thanks to the hard work of

Dominic Burke and his new management team, the Group is
today in a much stronger position than it was at the
beginning of 2006.

Performance
Turnover from continuing operations was £459.5 million,
1% ahead of the prior year (4% ahead at constant rates of
exchange). This excludes the Group’s discontinued operations
in the US which were sold. Profit before tax in continuing
operations was £90.8 million (2005: £71.2 million).
This includes net exceptional gains of £18.7 million and
impairment charges of £4.4 million. Underlying trading profit
for continuing operations, excluding exceptional items and
impairments was £58.9 million, 7% behind 2005 or 12%
ahead at constant rates of exchange. The underlying trading
margin was 13%, compared to 14% in 2005.

Profit after tax and minorities was down £4.4 million to £46.2
million, mainly due to net exceptional items including the loss
on disposal of the discontinued US operations. Underlying
profit after tax and minorities for continuing operations
increased 5% to £50.8 million, matched by a 5% increase in
the underlying earnings per share on a diluted basis to 23.8p
per share. Earnings per share, on a diluted basis were 21.6p
per share compared to 23.8p in 2005. These results are in line
with the comments made a year ago that we expected only a
modest improvement in the Group’s trading performance in
2006. 

The overall negative impact on revenue and trading profits
from the weaker achieved US dollar exchange rate for our
London Market operations amounted to £11.6 million.
The decline in Group underlying trading profit was offset by
higher investment income and resulted in increased underlying
profit before tax of £76.5 million, 4% ahead of last year, or up
20% at constant rates of exchange.

The challenging insurance market conditions noted at the
half year continued to prevail with very competitive premium
rates and the only exception to reducing rates continued
to be those areas relating directly to US catastrophe
exposures. Competition between brokers for market share and
quality staff remained fierce, putting further pressure on
brokers' margins.

The report of the Chief Executive and review of operations
covers our performance in more detail.

Overview
Following his appointment as Group Chief Executive in
December 2005, Dominic Burke and his new management
team have achieved a great deal in repositioning the Group for
the future.

A review of the Group's operations commenced in the first
quarter of 2006 and its conclusions have provided a much
clearer understanding of the Group's strengths and the most
appropriate direction for the Group's future development.
This review, which is discussed further in the report of the
Chief Executive, reaffirmed our commitment to the five
principal lines of business being: retail, specialty, wholesale,
reinsurance and employee benefits.

Perhaps the most important conclusion of the review was that
the Group should focus its activities on those business areas
where it is already strong and is or has the clear opportunity to
become a market leader. An important step forward in
implementing this strategy was the sale in October of our
US based retail insurance broking and employee benefits
operations. It was clear that a market leading position was not
a realistic goal in the foreseeable future and there was also
growing evidence of a potential conflict between this US
based retail broking business and the Group's wholesale
operations which have for many years been one of JLT's
areas of great strength.

At the end of October, we announced important changes to
the structure and management of our operations in the
London Market and internationally which took effect from
1st January 2007. The simplification of the London Market
structure was in part facilitated by the disposal of our US retail
operations and today we have a structure which clearly
identifies the Group's strengths and is more easily understood
by clients and staff alike.

The opportunity has also been taken during the year to review
the Group's cost base, in particular as part of the restructuring
of our London Market businesses, where costs in some areas
needed to be brought better into line with expected future
earnings.

A further very important action taken during the year was
the closure of our UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme to all
future accruals which took effect from 1st December 2006.
This step, together with additional funding contributions made
by the Group, has significantly reduced the pension scheme
deficit and provided protection against any further deterioration
in liabilities arising from the scheme.
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During the year the Group has continued to invest for the
future, including investments in staff and improvements to
our IT operating systems. These investments have not only
been made in our existing operations across both Risk &
Insurance and Employee Benefits but also in new ventures
such as our office in China, which opened mid way through
2006 and now has more than 30 staff.

Group board changes
There have been a number of changes to the Board over
the past year.

On 5th April, Brian Carpenter, Chief Executive of Asia Pacific
and William Nabarro, Executive Chairman of JLT UK
Employee Benefits were both appointed to the Board,
William Nabarro was also appointed Group Commercial
Director. Dominic Collins resigned from the Board on the
same date.

Ken Carter retired both as Chairman and from the Board at
the AGM in April 2006 and he retired from the Group at the
end of the year. Dominic Burke paid tribute to Ken’s career
with JLT in last year’s Report but I would like to add my own
thanks to Ken for his excellent chairmanship over the last
five years.

I was appointed Chairman following the AGM in 2006 in
succession to Ken and Bob Scott assumed the role of
Senior Independent Director at that time.

On 1st August George Stuart-Clarke stood down as Group
Finance Director and Jim Rush was appointed in his place.

John Hastings-Bass retired from the Board on 15th
September and board responsibility for the Group's Latin
American and Canadian operations passed to Dominic
Burke as Chief Executive.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all the retiring
directors for their valuable contributions over many years
service to the Group.

Our staff
I would also like to thank all of our staff for their hard work
and dedication throughout what has been a very challenging
year. I have taken the opportunity over the last year to visit
JLT operations in Asia, Australia and Canada as well as the
UK and the quality and professionalism demonstrated by the
JLT people wherever I meet them gives me great confidence
for the years ahead.

Dividends
Subject to shareholder approval, an unchanged final
dividend of 12.0p per share for the year to 31st December
2006 will be paid on 27th April 2007 to shareholders on the
register at 30th March 2007. This brings the total dividend
for the year to 20.5p per share, unchanged over the prior
year.

Outlook
The insurance market conditions continue to be challenging
and we do not anticipate any change to the highly
competitive trading environment for brokers in the
foreseeable future.

The US dollar weakened significantly during the second half
of 2006 but we have taken decisive action largely to mitigate
the potential impact in 2007.

Set against the background of these external factors, across
the Group as a whole we expect to see modest growth in
revenue in 2007. Operating costs will continue to be closely
monitored to ensure that they are aligned with revenues. 
A proportion of cost savings achieved are being reinvested
both in systems enhancements and in identified areas with
growth potential.

Whilst it is still early in the year, it is anticipated that JLT will
show further progress in its financial performance in 2007
compared with 2006.

We have an excellent management team who have achieved
much in a relatively short period of time. There is still much
to do but the foundations have now been put in place to
give grounds for optimism for 2008 and beyond.

And finally
We have included additional information in this year's
financial report to provide you with more colour and a
greater understanding of JLT's activities. We have also
added a number of key performance indicators (KPIs) which
have been designed to provide a quick and easy reference
to assess how the Group has performed over the year. 

Geoffrey Howe
Chairman
20th March 2007



This time last year, I said that
I expected our 2006 results to
represent no more than a
modest overall improvement
over 2005. In the event, the
outcome was in line with that
statement with revenues of
£459.5 million up 1% or 4% at
constant rates of exchange.

Underlying profit before tax for
continuing operations increased by 4% to £76.5 million,
although this would have shown a 20% increase in underlying
profit before tax at constant rates of exchange.

The Group's trading margin for 2006 was 13% which
compared with 14% in 2005. However, at constant rates of
exchange it would have been 15%. 

These results demonstrate that the Group has turned a corner
and once again started to grow underlying profits. The fact that
this increase in profits was achieved against the backdrop of
the continued weak US dollar and highly competitive trading
conditions is a considerable achievement on the part
of everyone who works for the Group.

Challenging trading conditions continued
The continued weakness of the US dollar and the
movement in our achieved exchange rate had a
significant negative impact on revenues of £11.6
million in the year and a corresponding material
impact on trading profit and profit before tax.
Contained within the Finance Director’s Review is an
explanation of why the performance of parts of our
business are so greatly influenced by the
dollar/sterling exchange rate;  also contained within
that review are details of our hedging policy and how
it helps mitigate our exposure to currency
fluctuations.

As reported at the half year, insurance market
conditions continue to be challenging with a very
competitive insurance rating environment across all
lines of insurance other than US catastrophe.
These falling insurance rates reduce that part of the
Group’s revenue which is earned as a commission on
the insurance premium which we estimate is about
half of our Risk & Insurance revenues.

There was also further downward pressure exerted on our
earnings with many of our larger competitors significantly
reducing their fees in an attempt to retain or win new business.
We do not anticipate that these trading conditions will change
for brokers in the foreseeable future. We will therefore continue
to plan the future development of the Group making the
assumption that the current trading conditions are here to stay.

Risk & Insurance good underlying performance
Against this background of difficult trading conditions, it is all
the more pleasing to report that the Group’s Risk & Insurance
activities saw an increase in turnover of 2%, or 6% at constant
rates of exchange, while the margin fell by 1% to 16%. Greater
detail of the performance of the businesses that constitute this
division are set out in the operating review on pages 12 to 17.
These activities can however be broken down into two broad
groupings.

Firstly, our retail operations in the UK and overseas, all of which
performed well with turnover increasing by 4% and the trading
margin increasing by 1% to a very satisfactory level of 21%.

These businesses continue to perform well despite competitive
market conditions. They are also not greatly impacted by
movements in exchange rates with income and costs
predominately being in the same currencies. These businesses
contributed about 38% of the Group’s revenues in the year.

Operating & Financial Review
Chief Executive’s Report
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Dominic Burke

Risk & Insurance 2006 Turnover - £379 million

Australia &
New Zealand
£60m

UK & Ireland
£49m

Asia
£31m

Latin
America
£18m

Canada
£18m

JLT Risk Solutions
£110m

Agnew Higgins
Pickering
£19m

Lloyd & Partners
£30m

JLT Re
£44m

UK & Overseas Retail Operations  46% London Market Operations 54%



Secondly, our specialist Risk & Insurance businesses which are
largely London Market based, saw revenues increase by 1% 
or 7% at constant rates of exchange. The trading margin
reduced from 15% to 12% but at constant rates of exchange
this would have been some 4% higher at 16%. 

The London Market operations comprising of JLT Risk
Solutions, Agnew Higgins Pickering, Lloyd & Partners and
JLT Reinsurance Brokers (JLT Re), contributed 44% of the
Group’s revenues in 2006. During the year this was the area of
our business which was significantly impacted by the weakness
of the US dollar; the reason for this being that a substantial
proportion of their revenue, some £130 million, is earned in
dollars while costs are sterling denominated.

During the year, significant actions were taken to improve the
performance of the Risk Solutions business and these are
detailed later in this report. The benefits of these actions will
start to be seen in the current financial year following the
merger of Risk Solutions with Agnew Higgins Pickering to
form Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd.

2006 was the first full year of trading for JLT Re and, not
unexpectedly, the margins reduced significantly as we
exited some lines of business while continuing to invest in
others. A major focus for growth is the non-marine
reinsurance sector which is by far the largest segment of
the reinsurance market and an area where JLT currently
has less than a 1% market share. We have changed the
senior management team in this area and recruited a
number of senior brokers and analysts in order to build out
our capabilities and this process will continue in the current
year.

The high quality of the people who have joined JLT Re, the
analytical skills we have developed and the relationships
being built with leading insurers globally gives us
confidence for the future prospects of our reinsurance
broking business.

Employee Benefits produces another
strong performance
The Group’s Employee Benefits division once again
produced a strong financial performance with revenues up
8% and the trading margin improving by a further 1% to
17%, a step closer to our long term goal of 20% for this
business. Today our UK Employee Benefits business
contributes 17% of the Group’s turnover.

Our UK Employee Benefits business has made significant
progress year on year to the extent that revenues have
increased by over 60% since 2002 and the trading margin
increased from 11% to 17% over the same period. Today, the
Employee Benefits division makes a very significant contribution
to the Group's financial results.

Our Employee Benefits business continues to have good
growth potential and gives the Group a counter balance to the
cyclical nature of the insurance markets. The pensions market
remains very active and our strategy is twofold; firstly to be the
provider of choice of the services that continue to be required
by final salary pension schemes and, secondly, to develop our
position further in the retirement savings and wider employee
benefits markets of the future.
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Five years of growth
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11%

13%
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16% 17%
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Conclusions of our operational review
At the time of our Interim results, we wrote about the
operational review that commenced in early 2006. This review
has given us a much clearer sense of what JLT is, of our
strengths and the course we intend to steer. Our commitment
to the principal lines of business that constitute the Group has
been reaffirmed as retail, specialty, wholesale and reinsurance
broking and employee benefits.

Our task is to develop JLT as a specialist insurance and
reinsurance broker with international reach. We will also
continue to build out our Employee Benefits business in the
UK and in time overseas.

The Group will be strengthened if we focus development
initiatives and investments on our stronger businesses that
have, or can secure, positions among the leaders in their
particular marketplace.

We are now clear, too, about what we are not. We do not
aspire to be an insurance broking giant with coverage in every
territory and every segment. Instead, our international network

enables us to service global clients who look for specialist and
industry specific knowledge in those sectors in which JLT has
a leading position. 

Throughout the Group, everyone is now aware of the focus on
lower risk initiatives to further grow the business, together with
the use of thorough research, analysis and appraisal to reduce
investment risk.

Everyone, too, is aware of our intention to expand by bolt-on
acquisitions, particularly by acquiring businesses in areas
where we already have strong infrastructure and integration
capability.

Disposal of US based retail broking and
employee benefits business
The Operational Review led us to conclude that the concept
of building out our US retail operation was no longer the right
strategy. The agreement for the sale of this business was
announced in early September and the transaction completed
in mid October. The sale underlined the Group’s clear strategy
of concentrating on areas of proven business strength. 

Following the sale, JLT is no longer ‘on the ground’ in the
US retail market and no longer in direct competition with the
major independent US retail brokers. As a result, the Group is
well placed to re-establish its position as a leading
independent wholesale broker, providing access for those
independent US brokers to the London, Bermudian and
European insurance markets.

Operating & Financial Review
Chief Executive’s Report

8 Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc  Annual Report & Accounts 2006

1
FFooccuuss

“We are focusing on
our leading market
positions and our

existing strengths”

2
BBaallaannccee

“We will continue to
take advantage of our

diversified and balanced
business mix”

3
RRiisskk

“We are investing in
lower risk initiatives”

4
OOppppoorrttuunniittyy
“We are looking for

opportunities to grow
organically and by

bolt-on acquisitions”

Our approach



Reorganisation of London Market operations
The US disposal also enabled the Group to reorganise and
simplify its Risk & Insurance London Market operations.
While this reorganisation was effective from the beginning of
the current financial year, much work was done in 2006 to
effect the changes. Today, we have three London Market
businesses:

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd, formed by the merger of
JLT Risk Solutions and Agnew Higgins Pickering.
This combined business has product expertise and industry
sector knowledge in construction, power & energy, financial
risks, marine, life sciences, telecoms and global and
international major accounts.

Lloyd & Partners Ltd, a leading London Market, Bermudian
and European wholesale broker. Previously, this business had
predominantly provided its services to independent retail
brokers in the US but has now broadened its services to
brokers worldwide, including Group owned companies in
Asia, Australia, Canada and Latin America.

JLT Reinsurance Brokers Ltd, which incorporates our
reinsurance and aerospace global practices. We have a
strong market position in both marine and aviation
reinsurance and the intention is to now focus on growing
our non-marine reinsurance broking capabilities.

This London Market reorganisation provides JLT with very
clear benefits. It has created a leading specialty broker
with strong product and most industry sector expertise.
We have re-established our standing as a wholesaler to US
brokers and we are excited about the opportunities this
creates in the post Spitzer era. Finally, and importantly, the
changes have brought much greater clarity both internally
and externally about what JLT stands for and where its
strengths lie.

Closure of UK defined benefit pension scheme
The closure of the UK Defined Pension Scheme to future
accruals was announced in August and became effective in
December. We decided to take this difficult decision because
we felt the Group had no option but to take action to mitigate
the risks associated with the £153 million deficit on our
balance sheet at the end of 2005, a liability fluctuating in
response to factors wholly outside of our control.

Alongside the closure, we have agreed a programme of
exceptional contributions with the Trustees of the Scheme,
details of which are contained in the Finance Director's
Review on pages 20 to 23. With the actions now taken we
have reduced the deficit by 35% to £100 million by the year
end. The Defined Benefit scheme has now been replaced
with a Defined Contribution Scheme offering our employees
competitive benefits. 
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Our London Market restructure

Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Limited

Lloyd & Partners
Limited

JLT Reinsurance
Brokers Limited

Specialty broker committed to major
accounts. Product and industry sector
expertise in :

• Construction
• Power & Energy
• Financial Risks
• Marine
• Life Sciences
• Telecommunications

Wholesale broker providing access
to London, Bermudian and
European insurance markets.
Focus on major Property and
Casualty risks with significant
strength in :

• Offshore Energy
• Cargo
• Healthcare

Reinsurance and aerospace global
practices. Established position in:

• Marine
• Aviation
• Building capabilities in non-marine



Aligning costs with revenues but still investing for
the future
As highlighted at the half year, certain of our businesses needed
to better align their costs with their current revenues. As part of
the London Market reorganisation, we incurred a £13 million
exceptional charge, £9 million of which was incurred in cash. 

This one-off cost has been substantially incurred as we re-
engineered Risk Solutions and JLT Re, including Aerospace, to
reduce their cost base and ensure that they are capable of
delivering the target margins that have been set internally.
The actions taken have led to a reduction in headcount of over
100 personnel in these two businesses, the majority of which
was during the second half of 2006.

As anticipated, the trading margin for Risk Solutions further
declined in the second half of the year resulting in a margin for
the year of 8%. As previously advised, our target margin for this
business was 15% by the end of 2008. We are confident that
the actions that we have taken will ensure that the newly
formed Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited will achieve this 15%
margin in 2008, and we expect substantial progress towards
this goal in 2007.

Whilst the Group has reduced costs in certain businesses it
must also continue to build its operations in those areas where
clear opportunities for strong growth have been identified, and
this is being done.

We are a people business and we have continued to recruit
market leading individuals across both our Employee Benefits
and Risk & Insurance divisions and this has included a number
of important high profile new hires. 

During the year the Group has also continued to invest in new
business areas - such as JLT Re in the US, Employee Benefits
and in new territories such as China.

In many of our existing businesses we are making material new
investments in our IT systems capabilities and developing our
operating model. It is our belief that, over the longer term,
this will generate a quantum improvement in operational quality
and efficiency. Benefits will include reduced operating costs,
improved management information, better quality of service
delivery, and very importantly, position JLT among the leaders
as market communications and product distribution patterns
change.

A stronger management team
As we have reshaped our business over the last year, the
opportunity has been taken to greatly strengthen the senior
management. Today, all of the principal lines of our business are
represented on the Group Executive Committee (GEC), this
being the Group’s senior management team.

Eight of my colleagues on the GEC have been appointed since
the start of 2006. It is this fundamental change to the senior
management team and their collective ambition and drive that
is now permeating the Group as a whole. There are fewer
layers and less distance between the boardroom and the
‘coalface’. Above all, there is a general commitment to
openness and teamwork.

Operating & Financial Review
Chief Executive’s Report
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2006 was, for JLT, all about taking the required action to get
the Group back on to a firm footing for future growth. It was a
year when we cleared the decks and got ourselves ready for
action.

I would like to thank all my colleagues for their support, loyalty
and enthusiasm without which we could not have achieved all
that we have in 2006.

Merger of SIACI with ACSH
The merger of our French associate company, SIACI, with
Assurances et Conseils Saint-Honoré (ACSH) was announced
in February this year. SIACI ranks among the leading
independent brokers in France and has been an associate of
the Group since 1991. It has been enormously successful as
an insurance broker to large French corporations and multi-
national companies and also has a relatively small but
meaningful employee benefits operation.

ACSH has a smaller broking business but one with strength in
the power and construction sectors, being areas in which JLT
offers deep-seated expertise. The larger part of ACSH's
operations is in employee benefits. The combination of these
employee benefits operations creates a very strong business
with an unequalled blue-chip client list.

JLT will have a 20% stake in the merged Company - and our
expectation is that our relationship will be even stronger and
broader following the merger. As part of the transaction,
JLT acquires SIACI's subsidiaries in Italy, Poland and Spain.
These are not particularly large businesses but each
represents an important piece in our European and
international network and offers attractive prospects for
growth. Developing these operations and working more closely
with the combined business will enable JLT to build a much
stronger European platform.

Looking to the future
As explained in the Chairman's Statement, although it is still
early in the year, it is anticipated that JLT will show further
progress in its financial performance in 2007 set against 2006. 

Looking beyond 2007, the responsibility of the senior
management team is to accelerate the growth now being
achieved. This we plan to do in a number of ways: 

Firstly, we will add value if we better coordinate and utilise the
assets and strengths we have across the Group, be it our
international network, or our industry or product specialty
teams. Actions are already being taken to ensure that this
happens.

Secondly, and as I have already mentioned, by investing in IT
systems and developing our operating methodology to both
improve efficiency and service delivery to our clients.

The third area on which we are focusing is to ensure we are a
leader and beneficiary of industry change rather than its victim. 

Fourth, and finally, we have made no secret of our
determination to grow by acquisition in areas where we
already have strong, well-positioned businesses. 

Much has been achieved in a relatively short period of time
and the foundations have been put in place to give grounds
for optimism in 2008 and beyond.

In my first year as CEO I have been greatly impressed by the
quality of our people.

During a year in which we have seen significant internal
changes and many external challenges, our people have
retained as their priority meeting the needs of their clients.
Above all else, it is this commitment to our clients that will
ensure the future success of Jardine Lloyd Thompson.

Dominic Burke
Chief Executive
20th March 2007
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Risk & Insurance
Turnover for continuing operations grew by 2% to £379.2
million or 6% at constant rates of exchange. Trading profit was
£61.4 million compared to £64.7 million in 2005, which gave a
trading margin of 16%, or 19% at constant rates of exchange,
compared to 17% for 2005. Profit before tax was £79.4 million,
against £77.3 million for 2005.

Trading conditions remained very challenging for all of the
Group’s Risk & Insurance businesses. Insurance market
premium rates remained very competitive in all sectors 
other than those relating directly to US catastrophe exposures.
There also continued to be downward pressure on fees as
competitors endeavoured to try to retain or win market share
by reducing their fees.

Incentive commissions (PSAs) received during 2006 reduced
further from £4.9 million in 2005 to £2.3 million in 2006 and now
represent less than 1% of the Group’s 2006 revenue.

JLT's Risk & Insurance operations can be viewed in two groups
- our predominantly retail operations in the UK and overseas
and our specialist Risk & Insurance businesses which are largely
London Market based.

Retail - UK & Overseas
The retail operations in the
UK and overseas performed
well with turnover of £176.3
million, being 4% over 2005
producing a trading margin of
21%, up from 20% in the
prior year.

UK Retail
Operating from eight offices in the UK and two in Ireland our
corporate risks, specialist schemes and affinity businesses
achieved a turnover of £49.1 million. Bolstered by good new
business wins, which totalled almost £6 million, this
represented a 5% increase over the previous year and was
achieved against the backdrop of very competitive insurance
markets where premium rates continued to decline
significantly.The trading margin was maintained at 19%.

Our UK and Ireland retail insurance broking businesses
operate in two distinct areas:

• General corporate and industry focus, providing a
comprehensive service to a wide variety of mid-sized
companies through a network of offices in the UK and
Ireland.

• Specialist schemes and affinity businesses offer services
across diverse markets, ranging from local government and
social housing to the leisure and veterinary care industries.

Most divisions in this business area performed well in 2006,
although insurance rate reductions had a negative impact,
particularly on our London Market, Leisure and Irish
operations, where income is predominantly commission
based. In addition to the challenging insurance markets,
there is fierce competition on fees in the corporate arena as
competitors seek to retain or win new business.

During 2006, we finalised the conversion of our corporate
brokerage based turnover into fee-based remuneration in
order to counter the effects of the competitive insurance
market. The specialist schemes and affinity businesses, which
are predominantly brokerage based, again performed well.
These schemes occupy attractive market positions and have
robust defensive characteristics whilst at the same time
continuing to offer significant opportunities for growth.

As mentioned last year, a review of our UK retail business and
Risk Solutions was expected to result in a merged operation.
In effect, it was decided to retain the separate teams with
each concentrating on its own well-defined business area.

As a result certain London based business was transferred
from  Risk Solutions to our UK retail business. 

We are currently planning a restructuring of the resulting
operations into two divisions, advisory and non-advisory.
This will be accompanied by a name change from JLT
Corporate Risks Ltd to Jardine Lloyd Thompson UK Limited
and is expected to be finalised shortly.



Australasia
Australia and New Zealand achieved an extremely creditable
result despite deteriorating soft market conditions and fierce
competition among brokers. Revenues were maintained in local
currency although turnover in sterling declined 2% to £59.8
million and the excellent trading margin of 26% was
maintained.

Our Australasian businesses are today a very substantial part
of the Group with some 800 staff, 18 offices in Australia and 4
offices in New Zealand, and together they generated about a
quarter of the Group’s underlying trading profit.

Risk Services exited the Victorian Workers’ Compensation
claims management scheme from 1st January which resulted
in a loss of revenue in excess of £2 million. Despite this deficit,
Risk Services maintained its profitability in 2006 and excellent
revenue growth was achieved by Western Australia, South
Australia and Victoria.

The retail segment recorded growth in revenue with an
increased profit growth in excess of 4%. Professional executive

lines and natural resources and construction produced
excellent revenue and bottom line growth. The other
specialisms maintained their profitability despite tough trading
conditions.

The New Zealand operations benefited from the full year
inclusion of Risk Solutions Limited (nine months in 2005),
together with excellent revenue growth in their existing
operations. This, combined with a vastly improved trading ratio,
provided an excellent overall result. 

In 2007 we will continue to drive our growth through our
existing core competencies in Australasia.

Asia
In Asia, the Group employs some 600 people in 15 offices
across 12 geographic territories. With the exception of the
treaty reinsurance account, which is part of the Group’s global
reinsurance practice, the operations handle a blend of retail
insurance and risk management, wholesale facultative
reinsurance and employee benefits business. 

Much of the business is focused on industry segments
including energy & power, marine & aviation, construction,
property, financial institutions, communications & technology,
hospitality, retail, education and industrial manufacturing.

In 2006, JLT Asia’s turnover increased 7% to £31.3 million
with a trading margin of 20%, marginally ahead of 2005.

Particularly strong turnover growth occurred in Indonesia,
Singapore and Malaysia supported by robust new client wins.

In June our 51% owned subsidiary company in China,
JLT Lixin, received a national insurance and reinsurance
broking license and commenced trading. The business is
headquartered in Guangzhou in Southern China and will
expand geographically to meet our overall ambitions in this
exciting marketplace. The operation had more than 30 staff by
the end of the year and has exceeded our initial expectations in
terms of financial performance.
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At the end of December we agreed to proceed with an
acquisition in Osaka, Japan that will allow us to diversify our
Tokyo-based business and enable a stronger focus on the
Kansai region including Osaka, Kobe and Kyoto.

Insurance rates for most property and casualty lines continued
to soften across Asia in 2006 and this is likely to continue for
the foreseeable future. To counter the effect of this we have
increased our focus on employee benefits in a number of
countries and regionally this business grew by a very
encouraging 36% in 2006.

Canada
JLT's Canadian operation increased turnover by 14% to £18.1
million while the trading margin recovered to 14% from 7% in
2005. This reflects the positive steps taken at the beginning of
2006 to reposition the business. 

JLT has seven offices and more than 200 staff in four of the
ten Canadian provinces these being in Ontario, Quebec,
Alberta and British Columbia. In addition to general corporate
business, our specialities include natural resources,
construction and public sector business.

Highlights of the year included the strong performances by our
offices in Alberta which specialise in oil and gas business and
our public sector business in Ontario. 

A particular focus for improvement is the Quebec office where
we will continue to look for opportunities to gain critical mass
during 2007.

JLT's Canadian operations continue to perform well and this,
coupled with JLT's strength in the oil, gas and base metal
industries means there are good opportunities to further build
out our Canadian operations.

Latin America
Latin America is a major growth market after China and India
and unlike these markets it has a long and well-established
insurance broking industry. Our business spans retail and
reinsurance covering Mexico, Colombia, Peru and Brazil, which
in total have just over 500 people in 17 offices.

Turnover in the region was £18 million, an increase of 6%,
producing a trading margin of 19% compared to 18% in the
prior year. There were particularly strong performances in
reinsurance in Mexico and Colombia and from both insurance
and reinsurance in Peru.

Our Latin America business produces a meaningful flow of
business into the wholesale operations of JLT in London.
Our immediate focus will be to achieve organic growth of our
businesses in the region whilst continuing to strengthen their
relationship with the rest of the JLT Group.

In terms of outlook for 2007, most lines of business continue to
experience downward pricing pressure with the exception of
risks exposed to the US and central America catastrophe
market.

Continental Europe/Associates
The contribution to Group profits from the Group's French
associate SIACI was unchanged at £2.5 million.

In February 2007, we announced the merger of SIACI with
Assurances et Conseils Saint-Honoré (ACSH) to create a major
new force in insurance broking and employee benefits in
France. As part of the transaction, JLT will also acquire SIACI's
former subsidiaries in Poland, Italy and Spain.

Following the merger, JLT will hold a 20% interest in the
combined business and will continue to account for it as an

Operating & Financial Review
Review of Operations
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associate. On completion JLT will receive a net cash
contribution of £14.2 million. This will produce an exceptional
gain of approximately £30 million in the first half of 2007.
Excluding the exceptional gain, the transaction is not expected
to have any appreciable impact on JLT's earnings per share
in 2007.

London Market specialist businesses
Our London Market businesses recorded turnover of £203
million, 1% ahead of prior year but 7% ahead at constant rates
of exchange. The trading margin declined from 15% to 12%
while at constant rates of exchange the margin would have
been 16%, 1% ahead of the prior year.

Risk Solutions
In Risk Solutions, turnover was 1% behind 2005 at £110.2
million, or 3% ahead at constant rates of exchange. As
anticipated at the half year, the trading margin deteriorated
further in the second half to provide an overall margin of 8% for
the full year, or 12% at constant rates of exchange, compared
to 10% in 2005.

The construction, power & energy and marine businesses all
achieved revenue growth. Bermuda had another challenging
year, in common with other organisations in the region.

During the year, the operating model has been reviewed and
the cost base rationalised to create a solid platform on which
to base planned growth over the coming years. The operating
model is being designed to optimise superior service delivery
and operating efficiency.

During the year the aviation business was transferred to
JLT Reinsurance Brokers Limited to form JLT Aerospace,
operating in the UK and USA. The Bermudian broking

operations of JLT Risk Solutions were transferred to the
management of Lloyd & Partners Limited from the beginning
of 2007.

With effect from 1st January 2007, under the reorganisation of
our London Market operations, JLT Risk Solutions Limited was
merged with Agnew Higgins Pickering & Company Limited to
form Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited. Going into 2007 this
combined business employs some 650 staff.

Previously, the Group had stated that the target margin for the
Risk Solutions business was 15% to be achieved by the end of
2008. We are confident that the actions already taken to re-
engineer the business will enable this margin to be achieved by
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited by 2008 with substantial
progress being made in 2007.

Agnew Higgins Pickering
Agnew Higgins Pickering (AHP) produced a good result in
2006, turnover increased by 16% to £19 million, or 23% at
constant rates of exchange. The trading margin was 19% or
24% at constant rates of exchange, compared to 20% in 2005.

Throughout the year, the Company continued to concentrate
on its core areas of expertise and specialism in natural and
renewable resource insurance, and marine and energy
reinsurance. Most of the 103 employees were located in a
single office in London, with 3 people in the Bermuda
marketing office.

Much of the oil and gas client portfolio is located in the
Gulf of Mexico region and therefore exposed to the risk of
catastrophic windstorm loss. Trading conditions in this sector
have probably been more challenging than at any time since
Hurricane Betsy in the mid 60s. A benign windstorm season
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following the devastation of Ivan, Katrina and Rita has led to a
slight easing of trading conditions in the energy sector into
2007 which should produce further opportunities for JLT to
differentiate itself from its major competitors.

Reinsurance operations saw significant gains in turnover
resulting from growth both in indigenous business as well as
from the investment in new people over the last 18 months.

The ability of AHP to consolidate and expand relationships with
existing clients remained a core strength and this, coupled with
meaningful new business wins, helped deliver a positive
conclusion to the trading life of AHP as we knew it.

At the beginning of 2007 as part of the London Market
reorganisation, the insurance operations of AHP were merged
with JLT Risk Solutions Limited to create Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Limited, and the specialist marine & energy
reinsurance operations have become an integral part of
JLT Reinsurance Brokers Limited.

JLT Reinsurance Brokers Limited
Having recognised the decline in the Group’s reinsurance
revenues during the period 2002 to 2005, changing
reinsurance buying patterns and the need for greater analytical
capabilities, it was decided to form JLT Reinsurance Brokers
Limited (JLT Re) with effect from 1st January 2006, through the
consolidation of the various reinsurance activities within the
Group.

JLT Re assumed responsibility for offices in London, Singapore,
Hong Kong and Tokyo. During the year, we also opened offices
in New York and Chicago as well as establishing a presence in
Bermuda. Today, JLT Re employs over 150 dedicated
reinsurance professionals serving Lloyd’s Syndicates, insurance
and reinsurance companies worldwide offering both treaty and
facultative solutions.

Whilst 2006 has been a transitional year, we have been able
to attract senior market practitioners and have achieved new
business wins.

JLT already has a strong market position in marine and aviation
reinsurance and both areas performed well. Non-marine
reinsurance is the largest sector of the reinsurance market and
JLT is strengthening its capabilities in order to increase its
market share from a position of less than 1%. Our consultancy
team are now generating significant interest as both a value
added extension to existing and new transactional clients and
for its standalone advisory services.

Also, during 2006 the Group’s aviation insurance business
was brought under the management of JLT Re through the

establishment of JLT Aerospace, a new global brand operating
through offices in London, Herndon, Seattle and Miami.
This transfer of responsibility from JLT Risk Solutions and
JLT LLC was predicated on the historic product knowledge
held within JLT Re’s senior managers together with the Group’s
desire to consolidate its two global practices under a single
management team. JLT Aerospace employs some 85
professionals, is the fourth largest broker in its class and is the
broker for many of the world’s major airlines.
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Overall in 2006, JLT Re had a successful first year achieving
a turnover of £44.1 million, 2% below a notional 2005 revenue
or ahead 5% at constant rates of exchange. A trading margin
of 9% was achieved or 15% at constant rates which was
down from 19% in 2006. This was due primarily to the
significant investment in reinsurance staff which is expected to
translate into new revenue as we move into 2007 and 2008.

Lloyd & Partners Limited
In its second full year of trading, Lloyd & Partners continued to
build very successfully on its year one foundation, increasing
turnover to £29.7 million, up 6% on 2005, or 15% at constant
rates of exchange.

The trading margin was 22%, or 28% at constant rates of
exchange, compared to 28% in 2005.

Following the hurricanes of 2005, market conditions were
extremely challenging in all classes of business exposed to
natural catastrophe in the USA. In this regard, our offshore
energy team which focuses on Gulf of Mexico business and
our US property team produced very creditable revenue

growth year on year, matched also by the cargo team in its
first full year as an expanded operation within Lloyd &
Partners. 

By the end of 2006 the Company had doubled the gross
premiums handled compared to 2005 and grown to some
139 employees, all based in its One America Square, London
office.

Following the London market companies restructure,
Lloyd & Partners has strengthened its position as an
international wholesale broker and increasing its reach and
capabilities in Property and Casualty (P&C), particularly by the
transfer of specialist teams from Risk Solutions. Additionally,
Lloyd & Partners has assumed responsibility for the Bermuda
insurance broking operations of JLT to complement its
strategic goals for the development of P&C wholesale
business. A specialist US marine hull team has also
transferred to reinforce the production efforts of our energy
team. Lloyd & Partners is in good health going into 2007.
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Employee Benefits
The Employee Benefits division once again produced a strong
financial performance. Turnover increased by 8% to £75.9
million and trading profit was £13.1 million, up 15% over the
prior year. The trading margin improved by a further 1% to
17%, a step closer to our long term goal of 20% for this
business. Our core activities of pension actuarial consulting and
pension scheme administration both performed well.

The business is adapting to the evolving market as companies
reduce their use of defined benefit pension schemes and offer
alternative pension arrangements to their staff. The Group is
responding by investing to improve operational efficiency and
developing its activities in product categories provided by
companies as benefits to their employees.

Our services
The cornerstone of the range of services JLT UK Employee
Benefits provides is pensions and actuarial consulting and
scheme administration to corporate pension schemes.
We employ 40 qualified actuaries and over 50 consultants.
Our administration activity employs over 400 staff and covers

more than 1.5 million
members in 1,500
schemes.

We also offer consulting
and administration services
for the benefits
programmes companies
provide directly to their
employees, including

flexible benefit programmes
and we advise on group
healthcare and risk coverage
schemes.

Our Profund software is used
by more than 200 pension
funds to support in-house
pensions administration and
in addition, more than 50
professional pension administration firms operate using this
software platform.

JLT is a major specialist provider of consulting and
administration services to life assurance companies and
financial institutions in relation to their pension offerings.

Finally, during the course of 2006, we have developed further
our presence in the Self Invested Personal Pension (SIPP)
market. We enable clients and their advisors to manage all
aspects of their SSASs and SIPPs and we now offer access to
a fund supermarket via the web to assist in the management
and investment of assets. JLT now has 3,000 self invested
personal pensions under management.

The breadth of service offering is underpinned by our overall
technical strength in the domain of pensions, our consulting
ethos and operational performance discipline. 

Market review
Continuing legislative change (particularly in conjunction with
A Day) and the implementation of Pensions Act reforms was a
positive factor for our consulting activity which enjoyed good
revenue growth. 2006 was a strong year for new business with
important wins including Skipton Building Society, Amphenol,
Cosalt plc and API Group.

As employers investigate possible courses of action open to
them, including the closure of Defined Benefit schemes to new
entrants or for future accrual, demand for consulting has

increased around these issues. The additional obligations on
scheme trustees, inter alia, to negotiate robust funding
arrangements with sponsoring companies, increases the
awareness of possible conflicts and we have therefore formed
a new business, Pension Capital Strategies (PCS) which will
focus solely on providing companies with broadly-based
financial advice as the issue of pension scheme funding and its
implications for strategy and balance sheet structure rises up
the corporate agenda. PCS has already started to secure
appointments with new corporate clients.

Operating & Financial Review
Review of Operations
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Our administration business had a strong year, particularly as
clients have required support with projects and scheme
changes, and we secured further new business, including ITV.

The Profund software business was also buoyed by legislative
change and we are pleased with the performance in delivering
upgrades to clients during the year and the positive responses
we have received. We also completed further developments in
relation to our oPen software product and a number of clients
chose to migrate from the Classic platform to oPen. Clients
including HBOS and The Daily Telegraph started to use oPen
during the year.

In recent years JLT UK Employee Benefits has developed a
strong position as a specialist supplier of pension scheme
services to life assurers; we were delighted to build on this
position during 2006 when we formed a relationship with
Paternoster and assisted their launch into the UK market as a
new provider of bulk purchase annuities. We have supported
this launch by providing actuarial quotation services enabling
Paternoster to make a big market impact with the
timeliness of quotation delivery and we have entered
into a long term contract to
provide administration and
annuity payment services to
Paternoster’s growing book.

Market environment
The pensions market is very active with new participants
offering services and insurance solutions to the problem 
of how best to manage scheme deficits. This provides
opportunity for JLT UK Employee Benefits, but it will also
accelerate the shift from the ‘legacy’ world of final salary
pension schemes to the services which will support 
employers’ future requirements.

Our strategy is to be the provider of choice of the services 
that continue to be required by final salary pension schemes
while developing further in the retirement savings and wider
employee benefit markets of the future.
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Operating & Financial Review
Finance Director’s Review

Against a background of
intense competition, generally
lower insurance rates and a
significantly weaker US dollar,
the Group achieved a
creditable result in 2006.
During the year, the operational
review resulted in several
exceptional items and
impairment charges.
Additional information has

been provided to show the underlying results in continuing
operations which excludes exceptional items and impairments.
The results of the discontinued US operations and the related
exceptional loss on disposal are shown separately.

Performance
Turnover from continuing operations was £459.5 million, a 1%
increase on last year. At a constant rate of exchange, the
increase in turnover was 4%. The most significant exchange

impact was due to the weaker US dollar achieved rate of
exchange which decreased turnover in our London Market
businesses by approximately £11.6 million and decreased
trading profit by a similar amount.

Trading profit in continuing operations was £58.9 million, down
£4.4 million on last year. This represents a decrease in trading
margin from 14% to 13% in 2006. At a constant rate of
exchange, the trading profit increased by £7.5 million to
£70.8 million and the trading margin increased to 15%.
Given actions taken to reduce costs, together with current
hedging positions, we believe that the Group’s cost ratio will
have peaked in 2006 at 87%.

We will be investing an additional £3 million in 2007 as part of
an ongoing programme to improve our IT operating systems
with the payback emerging in 2008 and beyond. 

The decrease in trading profit in continuing operations was
offset by an increase in investment income of £4.3 million to
£19.4 million. This was the result of improved interest rates and
cash management. 
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Table 1 - Performance Summary
2006 2005

£ millions Turnover Trading Trading Trading Trading
Turnover Growth Profit Margin Profit Margin

Risk & Insurance
London Markets:

Risk Solutions 110.2 (1%) 9.4 8% 10.7 10%
Agnew Higgins Pickering 19.0 16% 3.7 19% 3.2 20%
Lloyd & Partners 29.7 6% 6.5 22% 7.7 28%
Reinsurance and Aviation 44.0 (2%) 4.2 9% 8.3 19%

202.9 1% 23.8 12% 29.9 15%
Retail & Overseas:

Australia and New Zealand 59.8 (2%) 15.7 26% 15.7 26%
UK and Ireland 49.1 5% 9.4 19% 9.0 19%
Asia 31.3 7% 6.4 20% 5.7 19%
Canada 18.1 14% 2.6 14% 1.2 7%
Latin America 18.0 6% 3.5 19% 3.1 18%

176.3 4% 37.6 21% 34.7 20%
379.2 2% 61.4 16% 64.6 17%

Employee Benefits 75.9 8% 13.1 17% 11.5 16%

Head Office & Other
Central overheads & other - - (13.5) - (12.0) -
Continuing US operations 4.4 (65%) (2.1) - (0.8) -

4.4 (65%) (15.6) - (12.8) -
Totals for continuing operations 459.5 1% 58.9 13% 63.3 14%

Trading profit from continuing operations 58.9 63.3

Investment income 19.4 15.1
Finance costs, associates and amortisation (1.8) (4.8)

Underlying profit before tax from continuing operations 76.5 73.6

Exceptional items and impairment charges 14.3 (2.4)

Profit before tax from continuing operations 90.8 71.2

Profit from discontinued US operations 2.0 2.6
Exceptional loss on disposal of discontinued US operations (16.3) -

Profit before tax 76.5 73.8

Jim Rush
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Finance costs decreased by £2.7 million to £3.8 million in
2006 due mainly to reduced net finance costs for the Group’s
defined benefit pension schemes.  

The Group’s share of the associates after tax and minority
interests was £2.5 million, unchanged from last year.
This related primarily to the Group’s 32% shareholding in
SIACI, our French associate. 

Underlying profit before tax in continuing operations increased
by 4% to £76.5 million, or up 20% at constant rates of
exchange. After exceptional items and impairments, the profit
before tax in continuing operations increased to £90.8 million
from £71.2 million last year. 

In the discontinued US operations, the profit before tax and
loss on disposal was £2.0 million compared to £2.6 million
last year. After tax, the profit was £1.5 million and the loss on
disposal was £15.6 million reflecting the impact of non-
deductible items.

Table 1 summarises the performance of the Group and its
two principal business areas, Risk & Insurance and
Employee Benefits.

The tax expense for continuing operations was £29.3 million
compared to £24.0 million in 2005 reflecting the impact of the
exceptional items including the pension curtailment gain.
The tax expense for continuing operations represents an
effective tax rate of 32.3%, compared to 33.8% last year.
This decrease was a result of a number of factors including
prior year adjustments and the differences between the
accounting and tax treatment of share option schemes.

Profit after tax and minorities was down £4.4 million to £46.2
million due mainly to net exceptional items including the loss
on disposal of the discontinued US operations. Underlying
profit after tax and minorities in continuing operations
increased 5.3% to £50.8 million.

Exceptional items and impairment charges
The net gain from exceptional items and impairment charges
in continuing operations was £14.3 million.

Exceptional gains in continuing operations of £34.6 million
comprised a curtailment gain of £31.3 million resulting from
the closure of the UK defined pension scheme to future
accruals and a gain of £3.3 million on part disposal of
continuing US operations.

Exceptional losses in continuing operations of £15.9 million
comprised restructuring costs of £13.3 million, primarily staff
related costs in our London Market businesses, and other
non-recurring costs of £2.6 million. The net annualised saving
in 2007 arising from the restructuring is estimated to be
£8 million, comprising £11 million in staff savings offset by
additional staff investments of £3 million.

Impairment charges in continuing operations of £4.4 million
related to intangible assets and property.

In discontinued operations, there was an exceptional loss
before tax of £16.3 million relating to the disposal of the
discontinued US operations.

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share both decreased to
21.6p, down 9.6% and 9.2% respectively. Excluding the
impact of both exceptional items and impairment charges,
underlying basic and diluted earnings per share increased to
23.8p, up 4.4% and 4.8% respectively.

Dividends
The Board proposes a final dividend of 12.0p per share, which
follows an interim dividend of 8.5p per share, making a total
unchanged dividend for the year of 20.5p. This is covered
approximately 1.2 times by the underlying basic earnings per
share excluding exceptional items and impairment charges,
compared to 1.1 times in 2005.

Cash flow
Cash flow continued to be strong in 2006 benefiting from
improved cash management. The Group’s net cash position
increased by £49.6 million to £56.9 million due mainly to the
cash proceeds from disposals in the US. Net cash comprises
cash, investments and deposits, less bank borrowings and
the fiduciary cash relating to insurance creditors.

Balance sheet
Total equity at the end of 2006 was £165.6 million, an
increase of £13.4 million on the previous year. Total assets,
excluding cash and financial assets for sale, were
£383.1 million. This was 21% lower than last year due
mainly to the disposals in the US.

Net liabilities of the defined benefit pension schemes were
£99.8 million at the year end, compared to £153.2 million in
the previous year. The decrease of £53.4 million was due
primarily to the curtailment gain referred to earlier and an
additional special contribution of £14 million to the UK scheme
in December 2006.

In January 2007, the Group paid additional special
contributions totalling £31.0 million to the UK scheme as 
part of an agreement reached with the trustees. The Group
has also committed to make further special contributions of 
£10.0 million in January 2008 and another £10.0 million in
January 2009.



Post balance sheet event
On 12th February 2007, the Group announced the merger of
SIACI, its 32% owned French associate, with Assurances et
Conseils Saint-Honore, the Paris based employee benefit
services provider and specialist insurance broker. The merged
company will be called Newstone Courtage (Newstone).
The transaction is expected to complete in the first half of
2007 subject to regulatory approvals.

Under the terms of the transaction, the Group will become a
20% shareholder in Newstone and will receive net cash
consideration of approximately £14.2 million. The Group will
account for its investment in Newstone as an associate and will
also become a 70% shareholder in SIACI’s businesses in Italy
and Poland, and a 62% shareholder in Spain. The Group
currently owns minority shareholdings in the Italian and Polish
businesses of 30% and 50% respectively. 

The transaction will result in a net gain after tax of
approximately £30 million, subject to completion adjustments.
The gain will be treated as an exceptional item in the first half of
2007. Excluding the exceptional gain on sale, the annualised
net impact on the Group’s earnings per share is anticipated to
be slightly accretive in 2007.

Financial risk management
The nature of the Group’s international operations and debt
profile expose it to a variety of financial risks including the
effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
counterparty credit risks, liquidity and interest rates.
The Group has in place financial risk management policies,
which are approved by the Board, and use financial
instruments, including derivatives, to manage these risks.
It is not Group policy to engage in speculative activity or enter
into transactions unrelated to underlying commercial
exposures. The Group’s centralised treasury department is
subject to regular internal and external audit reviews.

Financing and liquidity
The Group maintains a combination of short term uncommitted
facilities and long term committed bank facilities to ensure
adequate available funds to finance operations and growth.
In December 2006, the Group negotiated new five-year
unsecured committed revolving credit facilities totalling
£250 million comprising a £230 million multi-currency UK
facility and an Australian dollar facility equivalent to £20 million.
These facilities replaced the Group’s former three-year
committed revolving credit facility for £150 million, extending
the maturity profile of the Group’s committed facilities, on
broadly similar terms.

The borrowing requirements of the Group are seasonal and
peaked during the year with gross borrowings drawn of
£72 million. This excludes borrowings drawn at the half year

and held in cash for a proposed acquisition that did not
subsequently proceed. Gross debt, including finance leases,
amounted to £21.2 million at the year end.

Currency risk
The Group’s major currency transaction exposure is US dollar
revenue earned in the UK. The Group’s US dollar denominated
revenue in 2006 represented 40% of total UK revenue
compared to 41% last year. As a consequence, the Group’s
results are highly sensitive to changes in the Sterling/US dollar
exchange rate, each one-cent movement in the achieved
exchange rate after hedging translating into a change of
approximately £0.8 million in profit before tax. Group policy is
to prudently manage this risk and maintain a minimum level of
hedging forward, on a rolling 12-month basis, of at least 50%
of the forecast US dollar exposure in the following 12 months
and 25% in the subsequent 12 months. In 2006, the Group
achieved an average rate of exchange after hedging of
US$1.82, compared to US$1.66 in 2005, reflecting the
significant weakening of the US dollar against Sterling.

As at February 2007, approximately 75% of 2007 forecast
US dollar revenue in the UK was hedged at an average rate of
US$1.82 and approximately 45% of 2008 forecast US dollar
revenue at US$1.90. 

Table 2 illustrates the potential achieved rate if the balance of
forecast US dollar revenue was sold at various Sterling/US
dollar rates. Given the sensitivity of the outcome, if the US
dollar remains at its present level or weakens further over a
sustained period, it would have a meaningful impact on the
Group’s results. The Group’s hedging policy may mitigate the
impact of such volatility but cannot eliminate the long term
effect of a permanent movement in exchange rates.

Operating & Financial Review
Finance Director’s Review
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Table 2 - Achieved US$ exchange rate after hedging

Potential achieved average rate after hedging for US dollar
revenue earned in the UK if the balance of unhedged
forecast revenue was hedged at spot, assuming current
forward rate differentials:

Potential achieved
average rate

2007 2008

USD/Sterling spot rate:

1.80 1.82 1.84

1.85 1.83 1.87

1.90 1.84 1.90

1.95 (Current rates) 1.85 1.92

2.00 1.86 1.94

2.05 1.87 1.97

2.10 1.88 2.00
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Transactional currency exposures, other than the above
US dollar revenue exposure in the UK, are selectively hedged
through forward foreign currency transactions. The Group
does not hedge exposure to currency movements that affect
the translation of the profits earned in foreign currencies,
except to the extent that those profits are expected to be
distributed to the holding company. The Group has
significant investments in overseas operations. Movements in
exchange rates between balance sheet dates may affect the
sterling value of the Group’s consolidated balance sheet.
The currency profile of the Group’s borrowings is managed
to mitigate exposure to translation exposures where
practicable and cost effective. 

Interest rate risk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest
bearing liabilities that give rise to exposures to fluctuations in
interest rates, primarily in US dollars and sterling. The Group
mainly uses interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements
to hedge future interest income, increasing the proportion of
fixed rate interest income. The Group would normally expect
to hedge between 25% and 75% of interest earnings
projected to arise during the following 12 months and
between 0% and 50% in the subsequent 12 months.
In February 2006, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
in sterling and US dollars to hedge projected interest income
for the following two years. The interest rate swaps have the
effect of converting floating rates to fixed rates at 4.5% for
sterling and 4.6% for US dollars. The notional principal
amounts of the swaps, which mature in 2008, are £50 million
and US$100 million.

Investment income
The average achieved interest rate return after hedging in
2006 was 4.8% compared to 3.7% in 2005. Each one half
percent movement in the average achieved rate of return
impacts interest income receivable by approximately
£2 million.

Counterparty credit risk
The Group manages its cash and investment balances in the
form of deposits with prime banks, money market funds and
other short term money market instruments in accordance
with an investment and counterparty policy agreed by the
Board of Directors and, in respect of fiduciary funds, all
relevant regulatory guidelines. Investment and banking
counterparties are subject to pre-approval at Board level.
The Group’s approval criteria requires financial institutions
with a minimum rating of A. All exposures to individual
counterparties are subject to a limit to control undue
concentrations of credit risk. Counterparty limits and utilisation
levels are reviewed regularly and reported to the Board and
Audit Committee.

Commodity price risk
The Group does not have a material exposure to commodity
price risk.

Basis of presentation
The Group’s financial statements include a consolidated
income statement, balance sheet, statement of recognised
income and expense and cash flow statement for the year
ended 31st December 2006, together with comparative
figures for the previous year. These statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union. There has
been no change in accounting policies from 2005. The
statutory accounts of individual companies within the Group
continue to be prepared where necessary in accordance 
with local accounting standards and in this regard the balance
sheet for the parent company, Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group
plc, which is included in the Annual Report has been prepared
in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

Jim Rush
Finance Director
20th March 2007



Directors’ Profiles

1.  G M T Howe, Chairman, Non-Executive
Geoffrey Howe, 57, was appointed a non-executive director in
January 2002, became Joint Deputy Chairman in November
2004 and the Senior Independent Director in April 2005. 
He was appointed Chairman in April 2006 when he
relinquished the appointments as Senior Independent Director,
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the
Audit Committee. He remains a member of the Nominations
Committee. He is a director of The J P Morgan Overseas
Investment Trust plc, Nationwide Building Society and Investec
plc. He was formerly Chairman of Railtrack Group plc, a
director and group general counsel of Robert Fleming Holdings
and managing partner of Clifford Chance.

2.  D J Burke, Chief Executive
Dominic Burke, 48, joined Jardine Lloyd Thompson in 2000,
when the Burke Ford Group of companies, of which he was
Chief Executive and co-founder, became part of JLT. He is
Chairman of the Group Executive Committee and was Chief
Executive of the UK and Ireland Insurance Broking and the
Group's Employee Benefits businesses until December 2005.
He was appointed a director and Chief Operating Officer of

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc on 1st January 2005.
On 1st December 2005, he was appointed Group Chief
Executive standing down as Chief Operating Officer on that
date.

3.  Lord Leach, Deputy Chairman, Non-Executive
Rodney Leach, 72, was Chairman of Jardine Insurance
Brokers, latterly JIB Group plc (now JIB Group Ltd), between
1988 and 1997. He was appointed Deputy Chairman of the
Company in February 1997. He is Chairman of the
Nominations Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Other directorships include Jardine Matheson
Holdings, Rothschild Continuation AG and various listed
Jardine Matheson Group companies.

4.  B P Carpenter
Brian Carpenter, 57, joined Jardine Australian Insurance
Brokers in 1987. He has been Managing Director of JLT
Australia and New Zealand since 2000 and Chief Executive of
JLT Asia Pacific and a member of the Group Executive
Committee since May 2005. He joined the Board in April 2006.
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5.  C A Keljik OBE, Non-Executive
Chris Keljik, 58, was appointed a non-executive director on
1st November 2005 and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee in April 2006. He is a member of the Audit, and
Nominations Committees. He retired in May 2005 as Group
Executive Director of Standard Chartered Plc following a long
career with that company, most recently being responsible for
their operations in Africa, the Middle East, South Asia, the UK,
USA and Latin America. A Chartered Accountant, he is also a
non-executive director of Foreign & Colonial Investment Trust
Plc and Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc.

6.  S L Keswick, Non-Executive
Simon Keswick, 64, was a non-executive director of JIB Group
plc (now JIB Group Ltd) between 1988 and 1997 and was
appointed a director of the Company in January 2001.
His other directorships include Jardine Matheson Holdings Ltd
and other Jardine Matheson Group companies. He is a director
of JPMorgan Fleming Mercantile Investment Trust plc and is a
member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations
Committees.

1. 2. 3.

4. 5. 6.



7.  N R MacAndrew, Non-Executive
Nick MacAndrew, 60, was appointed a non-executive director
on 1st July 2005. He is a member of the Nominations and
Remuneration Committees and, from 1st August 2005,
Chairman of the Audit Committee. He is Chairman of Save the
Children, is a non-executive director of Fuller Smith and
Turner plc and Wates Group Limited; he also chairs the audit
committee for these latter two companies. A Chartered
Accountant, he was previously finance director of
Schroders plc.

8.  W J N Nabarro
William Nabarro, 51, joined the Group in 2003 following a
career in merchant banking. He was appointed Executive
Chairman of JLT Employee Benefits in January 2006 and joined
the Board as Commercial Director in April 2006. He is a non-
executive director of ICAP plc and Treasurer of the University of
Leeds.

9.  J W Rush, Finance Director
Jim Rush, 46, an Australian Chartered Accountant, was
appointed Finance Director of the Group on 1st August 2006.
He is a member of the Group Executive Committee. He joined
JLT from Jardine Matheson, where he was Group Treasurer,
having held a number of senior management roles within the
Jardine Matheson Group. Prior to Jardine Matheson, Jim was
with Price Waterhouse for 12 years.

10.  R A Scott CBE, Non-Executive
Bob Scott, 65, was appointed a non-executive director in
January 2002 and is Senior Independent Director and a
member of the Nominations and Remuneration Committees.
He is Chairman of Yell Group PLC and a non-executive director
of the Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc, Swiss Reinsurance
Company (Zurich), Pensions Insurance Corporation Holdings
LLP, and a trustee of the Crimestoppers Trust. He was
previously Group Chief Executive of CGNU plc (now Aviva plc),
a former Chairman of the Board of the Association of British
Insurers and a member of the Presidents’ Committee of the
Confederation of British Industry.
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11.  V Y A C Wade
Vyvienne Wade, 45, joined JIB Group in 1987 as Group Legal
Adviser. A barrister and member of the Inner Temple, she has
been Group Legal Director of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group
plc since 1997 and is a member of the Group Executive
Committee. She was appointed a director of Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc in January 2002.

7. 8. 9.

10. 11.



Directors’ Report

Principal activities and business review
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc is a holding company.
Its principal subsidiary and associated undertakings are
engaged in risk management advice, insurance & reinsurance
broking and the provision of employee benefits services.
The Operating & Financial Review, comprising the Chairman’s
Statement, Chief Executive’s Report, Review of Operations
and Finance Director’s Review on pages 4 to 23 report on
the Group's development during the year under review and on
the outlook for the future. These fulfil the requirements of the
Business Review and are incorporated in this report by
reference.

Results and dividends
The financial statements deal with the consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31st December 2006, which are
shown on pages 46 to 95. The profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to £46,166,000 (2005: £50,573,000).

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
12.0p per share which, together with the interim dividend of
8.5p per share paid in October 2006 amounts to a total
dividend of 20.5p per share (2005: 20.5p per share).

Subject to shareholder approval, the final dividend will be paid
on 27th April 2007 to shareholders registered at the close of
business on 30th March 2007.

The unconsolidated financial statements for the Company to
31st December 2006, prepared in accordance with UK GAAP,
are set out on pages 98 to 102.

Substantial shareholders
At the date of this report, the Company had been notified of
the following major interests, each representing 3% or more of
the existing issued ordinary share capital (see table below).
Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited’s interest is held through its
wholly owned subsidiary JMH Investments Limited. Jardine
Strategic Holdings Limited is interested in the shares of Jardine
Matheson Holdings Limited under Section 823(1)(b)of the
Companies Act 2006.

Ordinary
Shareholder shares % Held

JMH Investments Limited 64,514,916 30.3%

Silchester International Investors Limited 34,941,807 16.4%

Sanderson Asset Management Limited 7,938,200 3.7%

Relationship with Jardine Matheson Group
During the year, the Group continued to have a number of
arms-length trading links with Jardine Matheson Group
companies, the financial implications of which are given in
note 34 on page 93.

The Board
With the exception of Brian Carpenter, William Nabarro and
Jim Rush, who were appointed directors during the year,
the directors shown on pages 24 and 25 served throughout
the year.

Brian Carpenter and William Nabarro were appointed to the
Board on 5th April and Jim Rush on 1st August 2006.

The following resignations from directors were accepted during
the year: Dominic Collins on 5th April, Ken Carter on 27th April,
George Stuart-Clarke on 1st August and John Hastings-Bass
on 15th September.

As reported in the 2005 Accounts, Ken Carter retired as
Chairman and director on 27th April 2006, and was succeeded
by Geoffrey Howe. On the same date Bob Scott assumed the
role of Senior Independent Director and Chris Keljik the role of
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Lord Leach, Brian Carpenter, Simon Keswick, William Nabarro,
Jim Rush and Bob Scott will retire at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

As set out in the Articles of Association, each director must
stand for re-election at least once every three years and Lord
Leach is required to stand for re-election annually, having
attained the age of 70 in 2004.

The Special Notice required by s293 and s279 of the
Companies Act 1985 has been received in respect of his
proposed re-election.

The service contracts for Mr Keswick, Lord Leach and
Mr Scott are subject to a three month notice provision.
The Company is required to give 364 days notice under the
service contract with Messrs. Carpenter, Nabarro and Rush.

During the past twelve months, a formal evaluation of the
Board, its committees and individual directors has been
undertaken.

The performance evaluation was undertaken by means of
individual questionnaires that were summarised and debated
by the Board or the relevant committee.

The non-executive directors, led by the senior independent
director, also carried out a performance evaluation of the
Chairman during this period.

Full details of the directors’ remuneration and interests are
shown in the Remuneration Report. During the period, no
director had any material interest in a contract, disclosable
pursuant to s317 Companies Act 1985, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings was a party.

At the date of this report the Board is comprised of five
executive directors and six non-executive directors including
the Chairman.
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There are established formal procedures for the structure
and authorities through which the Board discharges its
responsibilities for the direction and management of the
Group.

The Board meets at least six times a year, to review the
performance of the Group and to discuss the matters
reserved for its decisions, which include, inter alia, the
approval of Group strategy and budget plans, material
expenditure authorisations and any other matters that are
referred to it.

The Board has established a number of standing committees
including an Audit Committee, a Nominations Committee and
a Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of these
Committees are available on the Company's website.

Relationship with shareholders: The Board endeavours to
maintain dialogue with institutional shareholders and carries
out a programme of meetings and presentations each year
following the publication of interim and final results and at
other times as appropriate. At the Annual General Meeting the
Chairmen of the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration
Committees will be available to answer questions.

Committees of the Board
The Audit Committee
The Committee members are non-executive directors, a
majority of whom are independent. The membership of the
Committee during the year comprised: Nick MacAndrew
(Chairman), Geoffrey Howe (until 27th April 2006), Chris Keljik,
Simon Keswick and Lord Leach (until 27th April 2006).

Mr MacAndrew is a chartered accountant and his profile is
noted on page 25. The Board considers that the members of
the Committee have, collectively, the requisite skills and
experience to enable it to discharge its responsibilities in a
proper manner.

The Committee met five times during the year, with
representatives from the external and internal auditors, and
the Group Finance Director and Group Legal Director in
attendance at each meeting. (The Chairman and the Group
Chief Executive may also attend, subject to availability).
In addition the committee meets separately with the external
and internal auditors. Details of the attendance of each
member are set out on page 28.

The work of the Committee during 2006 and to the date of
this Report included:

• Reviewing the drafting of the Interim Report, Preliminary
Announcement and the Annual Report and Accounts for
the 2006 year end before their submission to the Board;

• Reviewing the regular reports of the external auditors
including internal control reports following the year end
audit;

• Reviewing the requirements of the Reporting Statement
issued by the Accounting Standards Board on the
Operating and Financial Review;

• Receiving and reviewing reports from business risk &
compliance and internal audit functions on a regular basis;

• Approving the external audit plan and fee proposal and
considering auditor independence in relation to non-audit
services provided;

• Evaluating the performance of the external auditors
by way of a questionnaire completed by Group companies
worldwide;

• Reviewing the progress of the UK general insurance
intermediaries within the Group in respect of the Risk
Mitigation Programme following the FSA risk assessment
visits;

• Considering the Group’s risk management profile and
controls; and

• Reviewing the effectiveness of the Committee.
This exercise is conducted annually by way of an
assessment questionnaire completed by the members
(with the exception of the Chairman) and regular
attendees.

External auditors
The Committee is responsible for overseeing the relationship
with the external auditor.

During the year, the Committee:

• Approved their remuneration for both audit and non-audit
services, including satisfying itself that the level of audit fee
is appropriate to enable an adequate audit to be
conducted;

• Approved terms of engagement, including any
engagement letter issued at the start of each audit and
the scope of the audit;

• Assessed their independence;

• Approved the annual audit plan and ensured that it was
consistent with the scope of the audit engagement;

• Reviewed the findings of the audit, including discussion of
any major issues arising, any accounting and audit
judgements and the internal control reports, including
responses from management and any proposed remedial
action; and

• Reviewed the effectiveness of the external auditors.

To encourage the external auditors to speak freely, the Audit
Committee held meetings with the external auditors without
management present. The Committee schedules this into its
timetable as a matter of course, usually every other meeting.
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Internal Audit function
The Committee is required to assist the Board to fulfil its
responsibilities relating to the adequacy of the resourcing and
plans of the Internal Audit department.  To fulfil these duties,
the Committee:

• Reviewed and assessed the annual internal audit plan;

• Reviewed all reports on the Group from the internal
auditors;

• Reviewed the co-ordination between internal and external
auditors;

• Reviewed and monitored management's responsiveness to
the findings and recommendations of the internal auditor;
and

• Met the head of internal audit, without management being
present, to discuss their remit and any issues arising from
the internal audits carried out.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee cover all
matters indicated by the Combined Code and include
responsibility for providing advice to the Board on the Group’s
interim and financial statements; on accounting policies and on
the control of its financial and business risks as well as
reviewing the work of the internal and external auditors.
A copy of the Terms of Reference can be obtained from the
Company Secretary and is displayed on the Group’s website

(at http://www.jltgroup.com). In addition the Audit Committee,
through its Chairman, formally reports to the Board on its
activities.

Remuneration committee
The Committee consists of non-executive directors, a majority
of whom are independent. The membership of the Committee
during the year comprised: Geoffrey Howe (Chairman until 27th
April 2006 when he stood down on becoming Chairman of the
Group), Chris Keljik (Chairman from 27th April 2006); Lord
Leach; Simon Keswick; Nick MacAndrew; and Bob Scott.

The Remuneration Committee met seven times during the year.
It is responsible, inter alia, for setting the remuneration and
terms and conditions of the executive directors and setting
overall remuneration policy for senior management of the
Group. It also approves the allocations under all long term
incentive plans and share option schemes.

Assistance was provided to the Committee by the Chairman
and the Chief Executive, neither in relation to his own
remuneration, and by New Bridge Street Consultants LLP
(NBSC). NBSC were appointed by the Remuneration
Committee to act as advisers to the Committee and they have
no other connection with the Company.
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Board Audit Remuneration Nominations
meeting Committee Committee Committee

Note 9 x in period 5 x in period 7 x in period 3 x in period

G M T Howe 6 9 2 2 3
D J Burke 9 - - -
B P Carpenter 3 6 - - -
K A Carter 2 3 - - 1
A D J B Collins 3 1 - - -
J P Hastings-Bass 4 6 - - -
C A Keljik 8 4 7 2
S L Keswick 7 5 6 3
Lord Leach 7 7 1 5 3
N R MacAndrew 9 5 7 2
W J N Nabarro 3 7 - - -
J W Rush 5 3 - - -
R A Scott 8 - 6 3
G W Stuart-Clarke 5 6 - - -
V Y A C Wade 9 - - -

Board attendance
The number of Board and Committee meetings attended by Board or appropriate Committee members in the year is shown
in the table below.

Notes to table
1 The attendance of directors who were appointed, retired or resigned

during the year is shown from their date of appointment or up to the
date of their retirement or resignation.

2 Mr K A Carter retired as a director on 27th April 2006.

3 Mr A D J B Collins resigned as a director and Mr B P Carpenter and
Mr W J N Nabarro were appointed as directors on 5th April 2006.

4 Mr J P Hastings-Bass resigned as a director on 15th September 2006.

5 Mr J W Rush was appointed a director and Mr G W Stuart-Clarke
resigned as a director on 1st August 2006.

6 Mr Howe ceased to be a member of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees on 27th April 2006, when he was appointed Chairman.

7 Lord Leach ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee on 27th
April 2006.
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Nominations Committee
The membership of the Committee during the year comprised:
Lord Leach (Chairman); Ken Carter (until his retirement from the
Board on 27th April 2006); Geoffrey Howe; Simon Keswick;
Nick MacAndrew and Bob Scott.

The Committee met three times during the year.

Its purpose is to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of directors of the Company. The terms of
reference of the committee are available on the Company’s
website.

Group Executive Committee
During the year the Group Executive Committee ceased to be
a formally constituted committee of the board and became an
advisory group to the Chief Executive who has primary
responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
operations. The board procedures and delegated authorities
were revised to reflect this change.

Corporate Governance
During the year the Company has been in compliance with the
provisions as set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance issued by the Financial Reporting
Council in July 2003 and amended on 1st November 2006
(the "Code") except for the following:

• Lord Leach (Deputy Chairman) and Simon Keswick both
served as non-executive directors and both are directors of
Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited, which has a 30.3%
interest in the Company. The relationship with Jardine
Matheson is maintained on an arms-length basis as
detailed in note 34 on page 93. However neither director
can be regarded as independent in the context of the
Code.

• The Board believes that the presence of Lord Leach and
Mr Keswick on the Board and its committees (subject to
re-election under the Articles) continues to be appropriate
and in the interests of shareholders generally and does not
detract from their independence and judgment on any
relevant issue.

• The non-executive directors bring to the Board a broad
range of experience and expertise. The knowledge held by
Lord Leach and Mr Keswick built from the long standing
relationship between Jardine Matheson and JLT continues
to be of particular value.

• The majority of the members of the Audit and
Remuneration committees are independent.
However, Lord Leach and Simon Keswick both served on
these committees during the year, and therefore the Group
did not comply with the Code in relation to the membership
of these Committees.

Both the Board and the external auditors have safeguards in
place to prevent the compromise of the auditors’
independence and objectivity. Details of services provided by
the Group’s auditors are set out in note 8 on page 70.
The Audit Committee also have a policy on the engagement of
external auditors and the supply of non-audit services to the
Group, including an annual review of the auditors’
independence.

The external auditors also report regularly on the actions that
they have taken to comply with professional and regulatory
requirements and current best practice in order to maintain that
independence.

The directors are able to consult the Company’s legal, financial
and other professional advisers on any matter relating to the
Company’s affairs. Any director may make use of this facility
subject to notifying the Chairman or Finance Director.

If independent advice is sought, this is subject to prior
consultation with the Chairman or a non-executive director as
appropriate. All directors also have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary.

The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance in respect of legal actions against its
directors.

Share capital
Movements in the share capital of the company during the
year ended 31st December 2006 are set out in note 25 on
page 84.

At 31st December 2006 the authorised share capital of the
Company was £12,500,000 of which £10,634,566 had been
issued and £1,865,434 unissued.

Accountability and audit
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of
internal control and for reviewing their effectiveness.

The implementation and maintenance of the risk management
and internal control systems are the responsibility of the
Executive Directors and senior management. The system is
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable
assurance, but not absolute assurance, against material mis-
statement or loss.

Directors’ responsibilities: The following statement should be
read in conjunction with the Independent Auditors’ Reports on
page 45 and 97.

The directors are required to present for each accounting
period financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at the end of
the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period. These statements are prepared on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will
continue in business.

The financial statements must be prepared in compliance with
the required formats and disclosures of the Companies Act
1985 and with applicable accounting standards.

It is also the responsibility of the directors to ensure that
arrangements are made for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records, to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies,
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates, have been used in the preparation
of the financial statements and that applicable accounting
standards have been followed.

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware.
The directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditors are aware of that information.

Operating Company controls: The identification and mitigation
of major business risks is the responsibility of operating
management. Each operating company maintains controls
and procedures appropriate to its own business environment
while conforming to Group standards and guidelines.
These include procedures to identify and then investigate all
types of material risk.

Compliance and legal: The Group’s legal, compliance and quality
control departments establish compliance policy and carry out
regular audits. The scope of work includes ensuring compliance
with laws, regulations and operating standards for the conduct
of business which is reported to the Board and Audit
Committee.

Going concern: The directors consider that the Group and the
Company have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence in the foreseeable future. Consequently, the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Internal control: The directors acknowledge that they are
responsible for the Group’s systems of internal control and for
reviewing their effectiveness and this review has been
undertaken during the year.

Internal financial controls: The present framework of financial
controls may be summarised under the following headings:

Organisational structure: There are clearly defined areas of
responsibility and limits of authority within the Group. Annual
budgets are approved by the Board following detailed reviews
by management. Group results are reviewed against budget
and reported to the Board on a regular basis.

Treasury: Treasury policy is reviewed and approved by the
Board and a review group (reporting to the Finance Director)
is responsible for monitoring treasury activity and performance.
The Group has policies to cover the key treasury activities of
investment of funds, counterparty risk, foreign exchange and
interest rate risk.

Cash and investments mostly consist of money market deposits
and money funds with prime banks and institutions. 

The Group maintains a counterparty policy based on published
rating criteria to limit the concentration of funds and the
exposure with any one party. Monetary limits are assigned to
each counterparty based on an agreed scale in relation to their
credit rating.

The Group adopts a prudent approach to the management of
its US dollar foreign exchange exposure by maintaining a
hedging programme with the objective of selling forward a
minimum of 50% of US dollar income projected to arise during
the following 12 months and 25% of that expected to arise over
the subsequent 12 months.

Interest rate risk arises on the interest income from both own
and fiduciary funds held in the Group. The Group policy is to
protect its sterling and US dollar interest earnings by
maintaining, on a rolling 12-month basis, a minimum hedged
position. Depending on market conditions this minimum can
vary between 25% and 75% of projected interest income during
the following 12 months and between 0% and 50% over the
subsequent 12 months.

Financial risk management, borrowing facilities, liquidity risk and
foreign currency risk are discussed within the Finance Director’s
Review on pages 20 to 23.

Risk management controls: In accordance with the Code, a
process has been established for identifying, evaluating and
managing risks faced by the Group. This process has been in
place for the full financial year and up to the date the financial
statements were approved.

On an ongoing basis, management profiles the significant risks,
both operational and strategic, faced by the Group and reviews
the effectiveness of risk management controls including loss
prevention and recovery planning.

This exercise involves the senior management across the Group
and covers a broad range of risks, including operational,
financial/treasury, information technology, health & safety, human
resource and legal areas.

The key operational risks facing the Group include errors &
omissions, failure of business planning, regulatory sanctions and
IT security.

Monitoring of risk is facilitated internally by the Risk &
Compliance function and assurance gained through financial,
compliance and quality based auditing. Significant failures are
reported to the executive directors to ensure remedial action is
taken.

The Board reviewed the Group’s procedures for the
management of risk during the year and the Board is satisfied
that appropriate processes and procedures are in place in order
to identify and manage the significant risks faced by the Group.

As noted above, the overall responsibility for internal controls
within the Company and its subsidiary undertakings rests with
the directors of the Company. Reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of such controls forms part of the duties of the
Audit Committee. Monitoring procedures include detailed
reviews of operating company systems which are routinely
undertaken by internal audit. The responsibility for internal
controls within associated undertakings rests essentially with the
senior management of those operations, the role of the Group
being to monitor its investments and to exert influence, normally
through Board representation.
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Investment appraisals: Major items of capital expenditure
require Board approval.

The Board is also responsible for the overall strategy of the
Group, including acquisitions and related due diligence
requirements.

Employment policies
It is the policy of the Group to provide an environment in
which individual talents can excel. Employee involvement is
encouraged with wide share ownership and participation in
share option schemes.

Employees are kept informed of the performance of the
Group and all matters affecting them as employees by means
of regular briefings and consultation.

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and bases all
decisions on individual ability regardless of race, religion,
gender, age or disability.

Applications for employment by disabled persons will always
be fully considered, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilities. Should employees become disabled, every effort
will be made to ensure that their employment with the Group
continues and, in the event that they are unable to continue to
work, that their financial interests are safeguarded. It is the
intention of the Group that opportunities for training, career
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far
as possible, be identical with those for other employees.

Environmental Policy
The Board considers respect for the environment to be an
integral business responsibility and good business practice.

To this end, the following guidelines have been issued within
the Group, to:

- carefully manage waste so as to minimise its production
where possible, or suitably dispose of it through recycling
schemes;

- control and, where possible, restrict polluting emissions;

- ensure appropriate regulatory compliance;

- design and operate facilities taking into account the
efficient use of energy and materials; and

- encourage the adoption of these guidelines by contractors
acting on behalf of the Company.

Suppliers
The Group agrees payment terms with suppliers when it enters
into contracts for the purchase of goods or services and seeks
to abide by those terms when it is satisfied that the supplier
has provided the goods or services in accordance with the
agreed terms and conditions. At 31st December 2006 the
Company did not have any direct external supplier creditors.

The Group does not have a standard or code that deals
specifically with the payment of suppliers.

Donations
During the period the Group made charitable donations
totalling £388,950 (2005: £462,410). No political donations
were made by the Group.

Annual General Meeting
The notice convening the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 26th April 2007 at 12 noon at 6 Crutched Friars, London
EC3N 2PH is contained in the circular accompanying this
report. The special business comprises the following items:

The renewal, within prescribed limits, of:

i) the authority of the directors to allot securities of the
Company up to the available unissued capital;

ii) the disapplication of the statutory pre-emption rights;

iii) the authority of the Company to purchase, for cancellation,
its own shares by way of market purchases;

iv) a waiver of the requirement arising under Rule 9 of the City
Code on Takeovers and Mergers, that Jardine Matheson
Holdings Limited, together with parties deemed to be
acting in concert with it, be required to make a general offer
for the Company by reason of the change in its percentage
holding in the capital of the Company arising from any such
purchase under (iii) above. 

Save for the allotment of shares under the Company’s
share option schemes or as may arise with the acquisition
of minority interests, the directors have no present intention
of utilising the authority under (i) and (ii) above.

The directors will only consider making purchases of the
Company’s shares if they believe that it would be in the
best interests of shareholders and would result in an
improvement in earnings per share;

v) Amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association to bring them up to date with recent
developments in company law and practice, including
directors’ indemnity provisions and the electronic
communication provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Auditors
It is proposed that the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
having signified their willingness to continue in office, be
reappointed auditors of the Company. A resolution proposing
their reappointment will be put to the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

David Hickman
Company Secretary
20th March 2007
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises five non-executive
directors: Chris Keljik (Chairman), Rodney Leach, Simon
Keswick, Nick MacAndrew and Bob Scott. Geoffrey Howe was
a member and Chairman of the Committee until he became
Chairman of the Company on 27th April 2006.

The principal purpose of the Committee is to determine the
Company's policy on the remuneration of the Chairman,
executive directors and other members of the Group Executive
Committee and to approve specific remuneration packages for
each of them. The terms of reference of the Committee are
available on the Group’s website.

The Committee is directly accountable to shareholders and the
Chairman of the Committee attends the Annual General
Meeting to answer shareholders’ questions regarding
remuneration.

The Committee met seven times in 2006 and the attendance of
the Committee members is shown in the table on page 28.

New Bridge Street Consultants LLP acted as independent
advisers to the Committee during the year, providing
information and assistance. New Bridge Street Consultants
LLP does not provide any other services to the Company.
In addition Mr G M T Howe (Chairman) and Mr D J Burke
(Chief Executive) both provided advice that materially assisted
the Remuneration Committee, neither in relation to his own
remuneration.

Remuneration policy
The Group operates in a highly competitive sector and its
policy on the remuneration of executive directors is to provide
terms and conditions which enable it to recruit, retain and
motivate individuals of sufficient expertise and commitment to
further the success of the Group.

In considering appropriate levels of remuneration (including
base salary levels), the Committee considers appropriate
remuneration data relevant to UK public companies and also
companies in the same business sector (in the UK and
elsewhere), recognising that there are few UK listed, directly
comparable companies and that its competitors are often
businesses which are part of much larger groups.

A substantial proportion of directors’ potential remuneration is
linked to the Company’s performance, with Group Profit Before
Tax (“PBT”) determining a substantial proportion of the annual
bonus and the Group’s Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
performance determining the vesting of long term incentive
awards.

The Company’s policy in relation to share incentive schemes is
to provide the necessary mechanisms for its employees and
executive directors to participate in the long term success of
the Group by schemes which can be operated both in the UK
and in overseas jurisdictions where local legislation permits.
The operation of these schemes is seen by the Board as an
essential tool in aligning the interests of key staff with those of
the shareholders. These are summarised on pages 33 and 37.

The Committee has given full consideration to the Combined
Code provisions on directors’ remuneration.

Directors’ remuneration
The various elements of the remuneration package of executive
directors are set out below and in the table on page 38.

Basic salary
Basic salaries and benefits are reviewed annually. However,
there will be no salary increases on 1st April 2007. Please refer
to the table and notes on page 38.
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Performance related remuneration
Annual bonus
The Company’s policy on bonus payments is to ensure that
they are appropriately linked to challenging Group, business
unit and individual performance targets, and to enable the
Company to deliver remuneration packages which are
competitive in the market, particularly in the insurance
industry, and retain and incentivise key executives.

For 2006, the elements of the bonus were specific to each
director, comprising performance against Group PBT,
individual objectives and (where appropriate) the PBT of the
relevant business unit. Each executive director has a target
bonus varying between 100% and 150% of salary and a
maximum of 200% of salary. Any bonus awarded in excess of
100% of salary is deferred into Company shares for three
years. If the director ceases employment before then, the
deferred shares are usually forfeited. Bonus payments are
not pensionable.

During the year, the Company faced very challenging business
conditions, but it achieved its Group and relevant business
unit PBT targets for the year. As noted in the Chairman's
Statement and the Chief Executive’s report, the new
management team achieved a great deal during the year.
This included the sale of the US businesses, the
implementation of stronger financial disciplines and setting the
strategic direction for the medium term, which should position
the Company for renewed growth in the future. This has led
the Committee to award bonuses to the executive directors of
the amounts set out in the table of remuneration on page 38.

Since the amount payable to Dominic Burke  exceeds 100%
of base salary, the excess will be delivered in the form of
deferred shares. At the date of this report, the formal award
of shares has not been made.

The Committee has reviewed the bonus plan for 2007 to
ensure that it complies with best practice and it remains
relevant to the Company. For 2007, the Committee has
decided that the executive directors bonuses would
continue to be primarily based on achieving Group PBT
targets and, where appropriate, PBT targets in respect of
the relevant business unit, in addition to the achievement of
individual objectives.

Long Term Incentives
All awards to executive directors are now made under the
Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) 2004. Under this plan, a
director can annually receive an award of shares worth up to
200% of base salary, as determined at the Committee’s
discretion. This limit may only be exceeded in a recruitment
situation.

Awards are in the form of rights to acquire shares in the
Company for a zero amount. Subject to the satisfaction of a
performance condition, awards will be exercisable between
the third and tenth anniversary of grant. They are neither
pensionable nor transferable.

For awards made in 2004 and 2005, a range of EPS growth
targets was set which required EPS growth over the three year
performance period to exceed the Retail Price Index (RPI) by
3% per annum to 10% per annum for 0% to 100% of the
shares to vest.

The targets for the 2004 and 2005 awards were set when
the conditions for the insurance broking industry were more
benign than they are now and therefore it could be anticipated
that relatively high growth rates could be achieved. Since then,
trading conditions have deteriorated significantly as a result of
generally soft insurance markets, intense competition and
widespread reductions in the brokerage rates and fee levels
received by insurance broking companies in the changing
environment following the judicial investigation in the US
initiated in 2004. Whilst JLT was not a part of these
investigations, it nevertheless saw a reduction in revenues as a
result of the industry wide changes in broker remuneration.

As a result of changing marketing conditions, the weakness of
the US dollar and other factors, the 2004 awards have not
vested and it is highly unlikely that the 2005 awards (which are
based on EPS growth from 2004 to 2007) will do so.
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In the circular sent to shareholders when the LTIP was
originally approved, it was made clear that the performance
condition set for the initial awards (as described above) could
be altered by the Remuneration Committee for subsequent
awards, provided the new targets were considered by the
Committee to be at least as challenging in the circumstances
as those originally set.

This year, the Company has a new management team headed
by Dominic Burke. They face many challenges if they are to
position the Company for renewed growth. The Committee is
confident that they will rise to these challenges, but when the
Committee was considering the EPS targets for the 2006
awards, it was clear that there would be no significant growth
in 2006. The outlook for 2007 and 2008 was more
encouraging but, taking the three years together, the
Committee believed that the range of RPI plus 3% p.a. to
RPI plus 10% p.a. would not be realistic for the 2006 awards.

The Committee strongly believed that the senior management
team should be retained and incentivised to perform in order
to take the business forward. Therefore, the Committee
considered that the EPS range must be set at a realistic level
in the context of the outlook for the business.

Consequently, the Committee decided that, for the 2006
award, 25% of the award should vest for EPS growth (over the
performance period) of RPI plus 2% p.a. with pro rata vesting
until 100% vesting occurs if RPI plus 5% p.a. is achieved.
In the context of the outlook for growth from 2005 to 2008,
this is considered a significant challenge for management and
is considered by the Committee as being as challenging in the
circumstances as the range originally proposed in 2004.

Accordingly, the awards were made on these terms in
November 2006 to senior management at the 200% of salary
level to Mr D J Burke and at the 150% of salary level to other
executive directors. The Committee intends to make further
LTIP awards in 2007 of the same amounts. Reflecting the
improved outlook for profitability after the considerable work
put in by management in 2006, the range of EPS growth
targets for the 2007 awards will be RPI plus 3% to 9% p.a.
for 15% to 100% of an award to vest. The Committee believes
that this range is challenging and is fully aligned with the best
interests of shareholders. These issues have been discussed
with the Company’s major shareholders, the ABI and RREV.

EPS has been chosen as an appropriate performance
condition because it is a key indicator used by the Company to
measure its underlying financial performance.

EPS is calculated on such a basis as the Company may
specify from time to time. Since the transition to International
Accounting Standards, the current definition of EPS used in the
calculation is basic EPS excluding exceptional items and
impairment charges.

Executive directors are also eligible to participate in all
employee share schemes on the same terms as other
employees.

Details of awards granted to executive directors during 2006
under the LTIP 2004 and in former years under other all
employee share schemes are set out on pages 40 to 41.

Other benefits
Other benefits include life assurance cover equal to four times
basic salary, company cars which may be used for private
purposes, or a cash alternative in lieu thereof, private medical
and permanent health cover for the executive directors and
their families and accumulated dividend equivalent income on
share awards when they vest.
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Pensions policy and changes to Pension Scheme
Details of the pension arrangements for the executive directors
are described on pages 38, 42 and 43. During the year the
Committee reviewed the impact of the changes to pensions
legislation relating to tax favoured retirement provision which
came into effect in April 2006 (‘A Day’). No change in pensions
policy was made as a result of these changes.

With effect from 1st December 2006 the defined benefit
section of the Pension Scheme was closed to future accruals
for all members, who were invited to join the defined
contribution section of the Pension Scheme. The company’s
contributions to the defined contribution section of the
Scheme  are limited to earnings of £105,600 per annum
(‘JLT Cap’) for the 2006 financial year.

For members who elected to join the defined contribution
section of the Pension Scheme, their contributions are
matched by a Company contribution equivalent to 2.5 times
the amount paid by the member subject to a maximum of
5% to 15% of basic salary (dependent on age).

However analysis of the benefits being accrued in the defined
contribution section of the Pension Scheme indicated that
members whose pensionable salary was greater than the
Upper Earnings Limit (for National Insurance contribution
purposes) would not receive a fair replacement for the defined
benefits due to the impact of the State Pension and the
introduction of the JLT Cap for all. To compensate for these
two factors, affected employees, including some executive
directors, received a one off salary adjustment, payable from
1st December 2006. This increase took into account
additional employer National Insurance Contributions (‘NIC’)
due on the salary adjustment to ensure that there was no
increase in the total Company cost. Employees who applied
for Enhanced Protection under the Finance Act 2004 or whose
basic salary exceeds the JLT Cap are permitted to take their
employing company’s contribution as a cash pension
allowance to be paid through payroll less employer’s NIC.

The additional one off salary increase was calculated as a fixed
percentage of salary dependent upon the age and salary of
the individual. Any salary increase has been included in basic
salary for all employees but, for directors, it is omitted for the
purposes of calculating any bonus payment or LTIP award.

Non-executive directors
The fees of non-executive directors are reviewed by the
Board excluding the non-executive directors. The fees of the
Non-Executive Chairman are reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee. 

Non-executive directors only receive fees, and they do not
participate in any bonus or share incentive schemes, enjoy
any pension benefits nor, save for a company car provided to
Lord Leach, receive any other benefits.

The fees for the non-executive directors are reviewed
periodically to reflect market rates and respective
responsibilities. The basic fee is currently £40,000 p.a.
Additional fees are paid as follows:

Chairman of Audit Committee £12,500 p.a.; Chairman of
Remuneration Committee £10,000 p.a.; Deputy Chairman and
Senior Independent Director each £5,000 p.a.

From 1st January 2006 Mr Howe’s contract became subject
to a six month notice provision and his fee increased to
£200,000 p.a. All other fees remain unchanged at the date of
this report.

External non-executive directorships
Mr Nabarro is a non-executive director of ICAP plc. He retains
the fee paid by ICAP plc of £65,000 in 2006. He is also a
member of the Strategic Advisory Board for the public equity
investment activity of SVG Capital. He retains the fees of
£40,205 paid by SVG for 2006.
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Directors’ Contracts
Contract date Notice period Contractual termination payments

G M T Howe 11.01.2006 6 months N/A

D J Burke 14.12.2001 364 days 364 days salary and benefits

B P Carpenter 01.01.1996 364 days 364 days salary and benefits

K A Carter 01.01.2002 364 days Salary and benefits to 31.12.06

A D J B Collins 01.03.1997 364 days Salary and benefits to 04.04.07

J P Hastings-Bass 01.03.1997 364 days Salary and benefits to 14.09.07

C A Keljik 01.11.2005 3 months N/A

S L Keswick 10.01.2007 3 months N/A

Lord Leach* 06.02.2006 3 months N/A

N R MacAndrew 01.07.2005 3 months N/A

W J N Nabarro 31.12.2006 364 days 364 days salary and benefits

J W Rush 14.08.2006 364 days 364 days salary and benefits

R A Scott 01.01.2005 3 months N/A

G W Stuart-Clarke 01.03.1997 364 days 364 days salary and benefits

V Y A C Wade 01.07.1988 364 days 364 days salary and benefits

*Subject to re-election annually having attained the age of 72

Service contracts and notice periods
It is the Company’s policy that executive directors should have secure agreements with an indefinite term and that all such
contracts can be terminated by the Company or the director by giving notice not exceeding one year.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a three year term, which is renewable, with three months’ notice on either side,
no contractual termination payments being due and subject to retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting.
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Other share schemes
Apart from the LTIP 2004, the Group operates various other
share option and incentive schemes for employees based in
the UK and certain overseas jurisdictions.

The Sharesave schemes have a three or five year vesting
period and the price of options is subject to a maximum
discount of 20% to the market value at the date of award.

The schemes operate in the UK and certain overseas
jurisdictions and are open to all employees (including
executive directors) in those jurisdictions.

In the UK the Group operates All Employee Share Plans
(open to all employees including executive directors) under
the rules established by the Finance Act 2000.

Discretionary grants of market value share options are
made to employees (excluding executive directors) under the
Executive Share Option Scheme which has a three year
vesting period.

The Performance Share Plan 2004 is generally used as a
mechanism for the delivery of deferred bonus payments and
incentive plans for senior executives within the Group
(excluding executive directors). The awards consist of options
to purchase shares in the Company, normally for a nil
consideration, and are exercisable up to ten years from date
of grant subject to their vesting periods and performance
conditions (which may vary in respect of particular awards).

The Jardine Lloyd Thompson Restricted Share Scheme was
used as the vehicle for a number of plans, including the Long
Term Incentive Plan, which matured in 2006. However, this
scheme is in run off and no new awards have been made
under this scheme since September 2003.

Performance graph
The Company is required to include a performance graph to measure its performance against corporate indices. JLT has been the
288th best performing stock in the FTSE 350 over the past five years with a Total Shareholder Return (TSR) of -15.6%.

The graph plots the comparison of the TSR of JLT since 1st January 2002 against the TSR of the FTSE 100, 250 and All Share
Indices (rebased to JLT’s actual TSR value at that date).

TSR refers to share price growth and assumes dividend is reinvested over the relevant period.

TSR return for JLT of -15.6% over the period compared to a TSR of 41.1% for the FTSE 100, 116.9% for the FTSE 250 and
50.2% for the All Share Indices (source: Datastream).

In the opinion of the directors, the FTSE 100, 250 and All Share Indices are the most appropriate indices against which the TSR
of JLT should be measured, as there is no directly comparable quoted peer group for the Company in the UK.
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Remuneration*
The table below analyses the salary, benefits, bonus and other elements of remuneration for the directors who held office during
the year ended 31st December 2006.

Performance Pension Pension
Salary related Other Total Total allowance allowance

and fees bonus benefits 2006 2005 2006 2005
Director Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

G M T Howe 200 - - 200 47 - -

D J Burke 1 507 750 16 1,273 899 85 73

B P Carpenter 2 153 181 33 367 - - -

K A Carter 3 200 - 5 205 1,066 - -

A D J B Collins 4 88 70 19 177 678 1 -

J P Hastings-Bass 5 179 124 50 353 507 - -

C A Keljik 47 - - 47 6 - -

S L Keswick 40 - - 40 35 - -

Lord Leach 45 - 7 52 47 - -

N R MacAndrew 53 - - 53 23 - -

W J N Nabarro 6 233 262 10 505 - 21 -

J W Rush 7,10 146 164 6 316 - 1 -

R A Scott 43 - - 43 35 - -

G W Stuart-Clarke 8,10 160 146 24 330 534 32 55

V Y A C Wade 9 285 300 29 614 548 1

Total 2,379 1,997 199 4,575 4,425 141 128

*This table has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Notes
1. On 1st December 2006 Mr Burke’s salary increased from £500,000 to

£579,290 p.a. to reflect the changes made to the UK pension scheme
(details of which are set out on page 35 and in the pension note on page
42 of this Report). For the period from 1st January to 30th November
2006, Mr Burke received a personal pension allowance of 20% of salary
which then decreased to £9,362 p.a. to harmonise with the pension
benefits offered to members of the defined contribution scheme. Mr Burke
has been awarded a deferred performance bonus of £250,000 in respect
of 2006 which will vest in March 2010. The amount is included in the total
bonus shown.

2. Mr Carpenter was appointed a director on 5th April 2006 and the
remuneration shown above is for the period from 5th April to 31st
December 2006. Mr Carpenter received a base salary of A$475,000 p.a.
during 2006. From 1st September 2006 he received an additional salary of
£50,000 p.a. in respect of his duties as a director in the UK.

3. The remuneration for Mr Carter is for the period from 1st January to 27th
April 2006 when he retired from the board. He continued to receive his
contractual remuneration until the expiry of his contract on 31st December
2006.

4. The remuneration for Mr Collins is for the period 1st January to 5th April
2006, when he resigned from the board. Mr Collins continues to receive his
contractual remuneration in respect of his notice period of 364 days which
will expire on 4th April 2007. On 1st December 2006 his salary increased
from £350,000 to £385,307 p.a. to reflect the changes made to the UK
pension scheme (details of which are set out on page 35 and in the
pension note on page 42 of this Report). From 1st December 2006, Mr
Collins received a pension allowance of £9,362 p.a. which will continue to
the expiry of his notice period.

5. The remuneration for Mr Hastings-Bass is for the period 1st January to
15th September 2006, when he resigned from the board. Mr Hastings-
Bass continues to receive his contractual remuneration in respect of his
notice period of 364 days that will expire on 14th September 2007.
On 1st December 2006 his salary increased from £250,000 to £277,511
p.a. to reflect the changes made to the UK pension scheme (details of
which are set out on page 35 and in the pension note on page 42 of this
Report). Mr Hastings-Bass joined the defined contribution pension scheme
with effect from 1st December 2006.

6. Mr Nabarro was appointed a director on 5th April 2006 and the
remuneration shown above is for the period from 5th April to 31st
December 2006.

On 1st September 2006 his salary increased from £275,000 to £350,000
p.a. to reflect his increased Board responsibilities and on 1st December to
£369,326 p.a. to reflect the changes made to the UK pension scheme
(details of which are set out on page 35 and in the pension note on page
42 of this Report). For the period from 1st January to 30th November
2006, Mr Nabarro received a personal pension allowance of 10% of salary
which then decreased to £11,702 p.a.

7. Mr Rush was appointed a director on 1st August 2006 and the
remuneration shown above is for the period from 1st August to 31st
December 2006. On 1st December 2006 his salary increased from
£350,000 to £351,872 p.a. to reflect the changes made to the UK pension
scheme (details of which are set out on page 35 and in the pension note
on page 42 of this Report). Mr Rush was a member of the defined
contribution scheme from 3rd July 2006 to 30th November 2006.
From 1st December 2006 he received a pension allowance of £9,362 p.a.

8. The remuneration for Mr Stuart-Clarke is for the period 1st January to 1st
August 2006, when he resigned from the board, although he remains a
member of the GEC and therefore continues to receive his normal
contractual remuneration. Mr Stuart-Clarke received a pension allowance
during 2006 of 20% of salary.

9. On 1st September 2006 Mrs Wade’s salary increased from £275,000 to
£300,000 p.a. to reflect her increased Board responsibilities and on 1st
December 2006 her salary was increased to £325,334 p.a. to reflect the
changes made to the UK pension scheme (details of which are set out on
page 35 and in the pension note on page 42 of this Report). From 1st
December 2006, Mrs Wade received a pension allowance of £9,362 p.a.

10. The Group operates a "Salary and Bonus Sacrifice" arrangement which
affords a saving of 12.8% in respect of Employer's National Insurance
Contributions (NIC) to the Group, the benefit of which is used to enhance
pension contributions for the employees who take part in the arrangement.
This arrangement was available to all JLT employees in the UK.

Under this arrangement, Mr Rush and Mr Stuart-Clarke requested that a
percentage of any amounts they were to be awarded by the Remuneration
Committee as a discretionary bonus in March 2007 instead be made in the
form of a contribution to pension. The Company's NIC saving is £17,867 in
respect of Mr Rush and £11,947 in respect of Mr Stuart-Clarke for the
relevant period during which they were in office and these amounts are
included in the total bonus shown.

11. Other benefits include life assurance cover, car benefit/allowance, medical
insurance and permanent health insurance and accumulated dividend
equivalent income on share awards when they vest.
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Share interests
The interests of the directors in the Company’s various share
option schemes and long term incentive plans are as detailed
in the following tables:

Shares*
The interests of the directors at 1st January 2006 (or upon
later appointment) and at 31st December 2006 in the ordinary
shares of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc (excluding
options and LTIP) are set out below:

1st Jan 2006

31st Dec 2006 (or later appointment)

Total holding Total holding

D J Burke 26,900 26,483

B P Carpenter 56,486 56,486

G M T Howe 5,000 5,000

C A Keljik 6,000 -

S L Keswick 2,249 2,249

Lord Leach 22,500 22,500

N R MacAndrew - -

W J N Nabarro - -

J W Rush - -

R A Scott 4,000 4,000

V Y A C Wade 2,493 1,493

125,628 118,211

*This table has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

The middle market price of ordinary shares at 31st December
2006 was 420.5p and the range during the period 1st January
to 31st December 2006 was 321.5p to 514.0p.

Between 1st January 2007 and 16th March 2007 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the posting of this report)
the trustees of the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc
All Employee Share Plan have acquired 97 shares on behalf 
of D J Burke and 96 shares on behalf of J W Rush.

With the exception of the directors’ interests disclosed in this
Report, no director had any additional interest in the share
capital of the Company during the year.

At 16th March 2007 (being the latest practicable date prior to
the posting of this report), no further changes of directors’
interests have been notified since the end of the year.

At 31st December 2006 ordinary shares held and allocated
under Employee Benefit Trusts were as follows:

Ordinary shares

Total held by trustees 5,253,043

Shares allocated 7,651,610

The Employee Benefit Trusts have agreed to satisfy awards
over 7,651,610 shares in the Company of which 2,915,833
are subject to performance conditions.

The number of shares that will be required by the trusts to
satisfy those awards (to the extent that they vest) is reviewed
periodically and holdings will be increased as necessary.

By virtue of the Companies Act 1985, each executive director
of the Company, being a member of a class of potential
beneficiaries of the above trusts, is deemed to have an interest
in all the ordinary shares held by the trustees.

At 16th March 2007 (being the latest practicable date prior to
the posting of this report), shares held under Employee Benefit
Trusts were as follows:

Ordinary shares

Total held by trustees 5,245,983

Shares allocated 6,950,070
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Option Schemes (excluding LTIP)*
Number Exercised/

Granted Number [lapsed] Date from

At 1st during vested during the At 31st Exercise which Expiry

Jan 2006 2006 during 2006 year Dec 2006 price exercisable date Note

D J Burke 2,020 - 2,020 - 2,020 £4.565 01.11.06 30.04.07 a)

- 1,811 - - 1,811 £3.13 01.11.09 30.04.10 a)

- 43,103 - - 43,103 nil 13.03.09 12.04.09 e)

B P Carpenter 5,991 - - - 5,991 nil 01.03.03 09.04.11 c)

52,770 - 26,385 - 52,770 nil 28.03.06 27.03.13 f)

8,332 - - - 8,332 nil 08.04.04 07.04.12 c)

15,831 - - - 15,831 nil 28.03.05 27.03.13 c)

3,240 - - [3,240] - A$11.11 01.11.08 30.04.09 b)

- 1,680 - - 1,680 A$7.75 01.11.09 30.04.10 b)

W J N Nabarro 19,337 - - - 19,337 nil 06.04.08 05.04.15 d)

- 21,876 - - 21,876 nil 18.04.09 17.05.09 e)

- 1,811 - - 1,811 £3.13 01.11.09 30.04.10 a)

J W Rush - 1,811 - - 1,811 £3.13 01.11.09 30.04.10 a)

*This table has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

a) Options held under the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group Sharesave Scheme 1997. This is an all employee Inland Revenue
approved scheme to which performance criteria are not attached.

b) Options held under the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group Overseas Sharesave Scheme 1997. This is an all employee scheme
to which performance criteria are not attached.

c) Awards made under the Restricted Share Scheme. This is an unapproved scheme. The awards are deferred bonus
arrangements to which no performance criteria attach.

d) Awards made under the Performance Share Plan 2004. This is an unapproved scheme. The awards are deferred bonus
arrangements to which no performance criteria attach.

e) Awards made under the Deferred Bonus Share Plan. This is an unapproved scheme and all awards are deferred bonus
arrangements to which no performance criteria attach.

f) Award made under the JLT Restricted Share Scheme. Performance conditions were attached relating to the period
2003-5 which have been satisfied, 50% are exercisable from 28.03.2006, the balance in March 2009, subject to continued
employment.
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Long Term Incentive Plan*
Awards to directors made under the Long Term Incentive Plan and LTIP 2004 are set out in the table below.

The performance conditions relating to these awards are set out in the notes following the table.

Market Market
Number value on Number value on Exercised/
granted date of vested date of [lapsed] Date from

At 1st Date of during grant during vesting during At 31st Exercise which Expiry
Jan 2006 grant 2006 pence 2006 pence the year Dec 2006 price exercisable date

D J Burke 125,000 21.09.04 - 421.5 - - - 125,000 nil 01.03.07 20.09.14

138,000 31.03.05 - 383.0 - - - 138,000 nil 31.03.08 30.03.15

- 24.11.06 244,500 398.5 - - - 244,500 nil 24.11.09 23.11.16
B P Carpenter - 24.11.06 91,700 398.5 - - - 91,700 nil 24.11.09 23.11.16

W J N Nabarro - 24.11.06 128,400 398.5 - - - 128,400 nil 24.11.09 23.11.16

J W Rush - 24.11.06 128,400 398.5 - - - 128,400 nil 24.11.09 23.11.16

V Y A C Wade 60,000 20.11.03 - 559.0 18,600 419.50 18,600 - nil 20.11.06 19.11.13

[41,400]

75,000 21.09.04 - 421.5 - - - 75,000 nil 01.03.07 20.09.14

72,000 31.03.05 - 383.0 - - - 72,000 nil 31.03.08 30.03.15

- 24.11.06 110,000 398.5 - - - 110,000 nil 24.11.09 23.11.16

K A Carter 236,000 31.03.05 - 383.0 - - - 236,000 nil 31.03.08 30.03.15

A D J B Collins 75,000 20.11.03 - 559.0 23,250 419.50 23,250 - nil 20.11.06 19.11.13

[51,750]

100,000 21.09.04 - 421.5 - - 100,000 nil 01.03.07 20.09.14

138,000 31.03.05 - 383.0 - - - 138,000 nil 31.03.08 30.03.15

J P Hastings-Bass 50,000 10.09.99 - 273.5 - - 50,000 - nil 01.03.02 09.09.06

50,000 23.03.01 - 453.0 - - 50,000 - nil 23.03.04 22.03.08

25,000 21.03.02 - 615.5 - - 25,000 - nil 21.03.05 20.03.09

60,000 20.11.03 - 559.0 18,600 419.50 - 18,600 nil 20.11.06 19.11.13

[41,400]

66,000 31.03.05 - 383.0 - - - 66,000 nil 31.03.08 30.03.15

G W Stuart-Clarke 60,000 20.11.03 - 559.0 18,600 419.50 18,600 - nil 20.11.06 19.11.13

[41,400]

75,000 21.09.04 - 421.5 - - - 75,000 nil 01.03.07 20.09.14

72,000 31.03.05 - 383.0 - - - 72,000 nil 31.03.08 30.03.15

*This table has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Note 1

Performance conditions for awards made in 2004 and 2005 require EPS
growth of between RPI plus 3% p.a. for zero vesting to RPI plus 10% p.a.
for full vesting measured over the three years from a base EPS of the
financial year immediately preceding grant. For awards made in 2006, 25%
vests for EPS growth of RPI plus 2% p.a., rising to 100% vesting for RPI
5% p.a over the three year performance period of 2006-2008.

As noted on page 33, the 2004 LTIP awards shown above have not met
the performance condition and therefore have not vested.

Note 2

For awards made under the former Long Term Incentive Plan up to and
including 2003, awards were all subject to performance conditions based
on growth in the Company's earnings per share ("EPS"). For 50% of each
award, EPS growth was measured over three years. Full vesting occurred
if average annual EPS growth exceeded inflation by at least 10% and

vesting started if average annual EPS growth exceeded inflation by 2%,
with pro rata vesting between 2% and 10%. If the minimum EPS growth
hurdle was not achieved over the 3 years, there was discretion to extend
the measurement period for a further year.

The other 50% of the award vested depending on EPS growth (using the
same 2%-10% range) over a single year. However, if the condition was not
satisfied in full, the remaining proportion of the award could vest depending
on performance over the remainder of the three year period.

The awards made in 2003 partially satisfied their single year EPS growth
target in 2003, as previously reported, although they did not satisfy their
EPS growth target in respect of the period 2003-2005. As a result 31% of
the awards became exercisable on 20th November 2006.

There have been no variations in the terms and conditions of scheme
interests during the year.
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Gains made on share options and LTIP* 
The table below shows the gains made by individual directors from the exercise of share options during 2006.

The gains are calculated as at the exercise date, although the shares were retained in certain cases.

Number of Date of Option Market Gain
options exercise cost value £ £

A D J B Collins 23,250 20.11.06 nil 4.1689 96,927 

J P Hastings-Bass 125,000 22.09.06 nil 3.7757 471,958

G W Stuart-Clarke 18,600 13.12.06 nil 4.3075 80,120

V Y A C Wade 18,600 20.11.06 nil 4.1689 77,542 

*This table has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Pensions*
With the exception of Mr Carpenter, during the year executive
directors were provided with pension benefits from either
personal pension allowances or membership of the Group’s
principal pension scheme, the Jardine Lloyd Thompson
Pension Scheme. In respect of service prior to 1st December
2006, this Scheme provided benefits on a final salary basis
(except for individuals with pension allowances and Mr Rush
who joined the defined contribution scheme in August 2006).
From 1st December 2006 the defined benefit section of the
Scheme closed to future accrual with members’ benefits
based on their final pensionable salary at that time. In respect
of service after 1st December 2006, the Scheme provides
benefits on a defined contribution basis.

The notes to the table of Remuneration on page 38 set out for
each director the adjustments made to salaries to reflect the
changes made to the Pension Scheme effective 1st December
2006 and the details of pension allowances or employer
pension contributions.

Mr Carpenter participates in a separate fund which
accumulates contributions that are payable to the member as
a lump sum on termination of employment or retirement.
There are no post employment retirement benefits.

The details for each director serving during the year are set
out in the table below:

Increase in

Pension pa transfer value

Pension pa increase Transfer value Transfer value Contributions less directors’

Pension pa increase due excluding of accrued of accrued payable contributions Employers Employee

Age at Pension accrued at to inflation inflation pension as at pension as at by director payable Retirement Spouse DC DC

31/12/06 scheme 31/12/06 during 2006 during 2006 31/12/06 31/12/05 during 2006 during 2006 age fraction contribution contribution

K A Carter 63 LT £336,056 £11,522 £4,481 £7,723,394 £7,978,000 NIL N/A 58 0.667

D J Burke 48 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

B P Carpenter 57 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A £30,163 £10,709 a)

A D J B Collins 50 LT £156,451 £5,442 (£164) £1,758,216 £1,467,852 £17,427 £272,937 60 0.500

J P Hastings-Bass 52 JLT £110,061 £3,829 (£124) £1,187,637 £1,014,205 £12,385 £161,046 60 0.500 £1,100 £3,824 b)

W J N Nabarro 51 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

J W Rush 46 JLT N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 62 N/A £5,280 £1,760

G W Stuart-Clarke 57 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

V Y A C Wade 45 JLT £99,808 £3,005 £13,334 £745,757 £554,159 £13,646 £177,953 60 0.500

*This table has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

a)  salary sacrifice of £10,709

b)  includes salary sacrifice of £3,384
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Pension scheme
JLT indicates that the director accrued benefits up to 30th
November 2006 on the scale provided by the main section of
the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme (formerly the
Jardine Insurance Brokers Pension Scheme). LT indicates that
the director was formerly a member of the Lloyd Thompson
Pension and Assurance Scheme and accrued benefits on the
scale provided by that scheme for service whilst a member of
the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme until 31st
March 2004.

With effect from 1st April 2004, LT members (including
director members) accrued benefits on the main section scale
for service after 1st April 2004 to 30th November 2006.

On 1st December 2006 the defined benefit scheme closed in
respect of future accruals for service. 

Pension increases
LT pensions in payment are guaranteed to increase by 5% per
annum (subject to Inland Revenue limits).

JLT pensions accrued before 6th April 1997, are guaranteed
to increase in payment as follows:

• Pension in excess of the Guaranteed Minimum Pension:
3% per annum compound;

• Guaranteed Minimum Pension accrued after 6th April,
1988: in line with the Retail Prices Index subject to a
maximum of 3% per annum compound.

JLT pensions accrued after 6th April 1997 are guaranteed to
increase in payment in line with the Retail Prices Index subject
to a maximum of 5% per annum compound.

Discretionary benefits
There are no discretionary benefits taken into account when
calculating transfer values.

Retirement rights
The directors have no guaranteed right to early retirement.

Mr K A Carter exercised his right to draw his pension from
1st January 2002 and from that date no further contributions
to the scheme were made on his behalf.

Accrued pension
The accrued pension entitlement is the amount that the
director would receive from retirement age if they left service
on that date.

The increase in the accrued entitlement is the difference
between the accrued benefit at the year end and that at the
previous year end.

Transfer values
All transfer values have been calculated on the basis of
actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note
GN11. The transfer value of the accrued entitlement
represents the ‘cash equivalent’ of the directors’ pension
benefits which would be offered by the Trustees of Jardine
Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme to another pension
scheme as consideration for the other scheme taking on the
liability for providing the directors’ pension benefits at
retirement. The transfer value itself does not represent an
actual sum payable to the individual director as part of pay
and, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully to annual
remuneration.

The increase in the transfer value less directors’ contributions
is the increase in the transfer value of the accrued benefits
during the year after deducting the director’s personal
contributions to the scheme.

The company contribution to the DC scheme is 10%
(age 40-49) and 12.5% (age 50-59) of pensionable earnings
up to the current Scheme Earnings Cap of £105,600.
Where an employee opts for the cash alternative, the
contribution is reduced to reflect the company’s additional
National Insurance liability.

For and on behalf of the Board

Christopher A Keljik
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
20th March 2007
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We have audited the Group financial statements of Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc for the year ended 31st December 2006
which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of
Recognised Income and Expenses, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the related notes. These Group financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein.

We have reported separately on the Parent company financial
statements of Jardine Lloyd Thompson plc for the year ended
31st December 2006 and on the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and
the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the
company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose.  We do not,
in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the group
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
We report to you whether in our opinion the information given in
the Directors' Report is consistent with the Group financial
statements. We also report to you if, in our opinion, we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit, or if information specified by law regarding director’s
remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects
the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003
FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules
of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not.
We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements
on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance
procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited group financial
statements. The other information comprises only the Chairman’s
Statement, Chief Executive’s Report, Review of Operations,
Finance Director’s Review, Directors’ Report and the unaudited
parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. We consider 
the implications for our report if we become aware of any 
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the 
Group financial statements.
Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Group
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Group financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Group
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

• the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31st December 2006
and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

• the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation; and

• the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent
with the Group financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors,

London

20th March 2007

Notes:

a) The maintenance and integrity of the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group

plc website is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out

by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and,

accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that

may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially

presented on the website.

b) Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and

dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in

other jurisdictions.
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31st December 2006

2006 2005

Notes £’000 £’000

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Fees and commissions 3 459,537 454,072

Investment income 5 19,436 15,086

Salaries and associated expenses 7 (266,300) (276,106)

Premises (30,292) (28,534)

Other operating costs (77,060) (75,411)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges 4 (13,311) (13,856)

Operating profit 3,4 92,010 75,251

Analysed as:

Operating profit before exceptional items & impairment charges 77,721 77,655

Curtailment gain on closure of defined benefit pension schemes 4 31,300 2,069

Group reorganisation and rationalisation costs 4 (13,277) (3,541)

Other non-recurring items 4 625 1,819

Impairment charges (4,359) (2,751)

Operating profit 3,4 92,010 75,251

Finance costs 6 (3,790) (6,515)

Share of results of associates after tax and minority interests 2,543 2,505

Profit before taxation 3 90,763 71,241

Income tax expense 9 (29,333) (24,046)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 3 61,430 47,195

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 2,3 1,535 3,958

Loss on sale of US operations 2,3,4 (15,621) -

Profit for the year 3 47,344 51,153

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 46,166 50,573

Minority interests 26 1,178 580

47,344 51,153

Earnings per share 10

Basic 21.6p 23.9p

Basic - continuing operations 28.2p 22.0p

Diluted 21.6p 23.8p

Diluted - continuing operations 28.2p 21.9p

Notes on pages 56 to 95 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group

2006 2005

Notes £’000 £’000

NET OPERATING ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill 12 144,281 202,309

Intangible assets 13 11,338 18,052

Property, plant and equipment 14 22,753 28,460

Investments in associates 15 9,009 7,393

Available-for-sale financial assets 16 6,643 18,321

Derivative financial instruments 17 1,956 49

Employee benefit trust 18 2,371 2,647

Deferred tax assets 23 46,359 73,995

244,710 351,226

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 19 137,835 153,576

Derivative financial instruments 17 7,187 19

Available-for-sale financial assets 16 9,069 57,253

Cash and cash equivalents 20 350,339 300,398

504,430 511,246

Current liabilities

Borrowings 22 (423) (513)

Trade and other payables 21 (410,678) (417,639)

Derivative financial instruments 17 - (517)

Current tax liabilities (302) (8,310)

Provisions for liabilities and charges 24 (35,501) (44,963)

(446,904) (471,942)

Net current assets 57,526 39,304

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 22 (20,802) (54,989)

Derivative financial instruments 17 (995) (2,187)

Deferred tax liabilities 23 (7,300) (14,257)

Retirement benefit obligations 33 (99,815) (153,191)

Provisions for liabilities and charges 24 (7,692) (13,664)

(136,604) (238,288)

165,632 152,242

TOTAL EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders

Ordinary shares 25 10,634 10,615

Share premium 27 74,568 73,370

Fair value & hedging reserves 27 6,998 433

Exchange reserve 27 (4,070) 6,229

Retained earnings 27 73,140 57,978

Shareholders’ funds 161,270 148,625

Minority interest 26 4,362 3,617

165,632 152,242

Notes on pages 56 to 95 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board on 20th March 2007 and signed on its behalf by:

Jim Rush

Finance Director
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense
for the year ended 31st December 2006

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in post retirement benefit schemes 3,705 (33,414)

Taxation thereon (1,093) 10,125

2,612 (23,289)

Fair value gains/(losses) net of tax

- available-for-sale (1,072) 2,202

- cash flow hedges 7,637 (13,899)

Currency translation differences (10,299) 12,846

Net losses recognised directly in equity (1,122) (22,140)

Net profit 47,344 51,153

Effect of restructuring of shareholding in associate (553) -

Total recognised income and expense for the year 45,669 29,013

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 44,491 28,433

Minority interests 1,178 580

45,669 29,013
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st December 2006
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2006 2005

Notes £’000 £’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash inflow from operations 29 60,118 78,639

Interest paid (3,322) (3,569)

Fair value losses on financial instruments (176) -

Interest received 19,417 16,652

Taxation paid (20,174) (21,379)

Decrease in insurance creditors (23,174) (1,111)

32,689 69,232

Dividend received from associates 15 140 71

Net cash from operating activities 32,829 69,303

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (8,097) (9,132)

Purchase of intangible fixed assets 13 (4,549) (10,563)

Purchase of available-for-sale "other" investments 16 (453) (341)

Disposal of property, plant and equipment 14 3,700 871

Disposal of intangible fixed assets 13 1,108 1,704

Disposal of available-for-sale "other" investments 16 152 166

Acquisition of businesses, (net of cash acquired) 30 (1,314) (3,227)

Disposal of businesses, (net of cash disposed of) 31 50,514 -

Issue of shares to minority interests in subsidiary 26 737 -

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 41,798 (20,522)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Equity dividend paid 11 (43,483) (43,746)

Net cash flows from/(into) investments and deposits 16 56,638 (18,872)

Purchase of investments by Employee Benefit Trust 18 (510) (843)

Issue of ordinary shares 25 1,217 2,147

Net (decrease)/increase in borrowings (32,572) 28,550

Dividend paid to minority shareholding 26 (596) (237)

Net cash used in financing activities (19,306) (33,001)

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (5,380) 2,815

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 49,941 18,595

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of year 300,398 281,803

Cash & cash equivalents at end of year 20 350,339 300,398
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Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
The Group consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments and using accounting policies and
presentation, which comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts
of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings. The profits
and losses of subsidiary undertakings are consolidated as
from the effective date of acquisition or to the effective date of
disposal.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain economic benefits and generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an
acquisition is measured, as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net of
any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.
The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses are recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves are recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are

adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business
segments.

A geographical segment is engaged in providing services
within a particular economic environment that are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Sterling, which is the Parent
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve
in equity.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
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ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Goodwill arising on consolidation
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is shown
separately on the Balance Sheet. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in investments in associates.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions completed prior to 1st January
1998 is written off directly to reserves. Following the adoption
of IFRS this goodwill remains written off to reserves and no
adjustment would be made on subsequent disposal. For
acquisitions completed on or after 1st January 1998 and
before 1st January 2004, goodwill is stated on the Balance
Sheet at its previously amortised net book value.

For acquisitions completed on or after 1st January 2004,
goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Cash
generating units represent the lowest level of geographical and
business segment combinations that the Group uses for
internal reporting purposes.

Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives. Costs associated with developing or
maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with
the production of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group, and that will generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as
intangible assets. Direct costs include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful
lives (not exceeding three years).

Capitalised employment contract payments
The Group makes payments to certain key employees in
recognition of them signing a long-term employment contact,
usually three to five years. These payments are capitalised as
intangible assets since legal rights protect the expected
benefits that the Group will derive from the contracts.
The asset recognised is then amortised over the duration of
the underlying contract.

Other
For acquisitions completed after 1st January 2004 the
business acquired is reviewed to identify assets that meet the
definition of an intangible asset per IAS 38. Examples of such
assets include customer contracts and expectations of
business renewal. These assets are valued on the basis of the
present value of future cash flows and are amortised to the
income statement over the life of the contract or their
estimated economic life. The current maximum estimated
economic life is ten years.

Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Property, plant and equipment
Assets are stated at their net book value (historical cost less
accumulated depreciation). Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives.

The principal rates of depreciation are as follows:

• Freehold land and buildings: - between 0% and 2% per
annum.

• Leasehold improvements: - between 10% and 20% per
annum or over the life of the lease.

• Furniture and office equipment: - between 10% and 20%
per annum.

• Computer hardware: - between 20% and 100% per
annum.

• Motor vehicles: - between 25% and 33 1/3% per annum.
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Accounting Policies

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are categorised according to
their nature into one of two categories:

1) Investments and deposits, which consist mainly of Bonds,
Commercial Paper and Fixed Deposits - these investments
are held at fair value and are classified between current and
non-current assets according to maturity date.

2) Other investments, which include securities and other
investments held for strategic purposes - these investments
are held fair at value unless a fair value cannot be accurately
determined in which case they are held at cost less any
provision for impairment.

Interest on deposits and interest-bearing investments is credited
as it is earned.

Employee benefit trust
The Group operates a deferred compensation scheme by way of
a discretionary, employee benefit trust. Investments held by this
scheme, which are principally represented by Unit Trusts, are
classified as fixed assets on the balance sheets and charged to
the Group profit and loss account over the vesting periods of the
award.

Insurance broking debtors and creditors
Insurance brokers act as agents in placing the insurable risks of
their clients with insurers and, as such, are not liable as
principals for amounts arising from such transactions.
In recognition of this relationship, debtors from insurance broking
transactions are not included as an asset of the Group. Other
than the receivable for fees and commissions earned on a
transaction, no recognition of the insurance transaction occurs
until the Group receives cash in respect of premiums or claims,
at which time a corresponding liability is established in favour of
the insurer or the client.

In certain circumstances, the Group advances premiums,
refunds or claims to insurance underwriters or clients prior to
collection. These advances are reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet as part of trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.

Borrowings
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date. Borrowings are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Deferred income tax
The charge for taxation is based on the result for the year at
current rates of tax and takes into account deferred tax.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if the deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss, it is not recognised. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited to equity in respect
of any items, which is itself either charged or credited directly to
equity. Any subsequent recognition of the deferred gain or loss
in the consolidated income statement is accompanied by the
corresponding deferred income tax.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group controls the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits
Pension costs

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension
schemes, and a number of employees are members of defined
contribution pension schemes.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

Full actuarial valuations of the Group’s main defined benefit
schemes are carried out at least every three years. A qualified
independent actuary updates these valuations to 31st December
each year. For the purposes of these annual updates, scheme
assets are included at market value and scheme liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method;
these liabilities are discounted at the current rate of return on an
AA corporate bond of equivalent currency and term. The defined
benefit surplus or deficit is included on the Group’s balance
sheet. Surpluses are included only to the extent that they are
recoverable through reduced contributions in the future or
through refunds from the schemes. The current service cost and
any past service costs are included in the income statement
within salaries and associated expenses and the expected return
on the schemes’ assets, net of the impact of the unwinding of
the discount on scheme liabilities, is included within finance
costs. Actuarial gains and losses, including differences between
the expected and actual return on scheme assets, are
recognised through the Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense.
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A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The costs of the Group’s defined contribution pension
schemes are charged to the income statement in the period in
which they fall due.

Share-based compensation
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Provisions for liabilities and charges
The Group discounts provisions to their present value.
The unwinding of the provision discounting is included an
“interest charge” within finance costs in the income statement.

A provision is recognised where there is a present obligation,
whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for
which it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reasonable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

Fees and commissions
Fees and commissions are derived from two principal sources:

Insurance broking
Income relating to insurance broking is brought into account at
the later of, the policy inception date or when the policy
placement has been completed and confirmed. Where there is
an expectation of future servicing requirements an element of
income relating to the policy is deferred to cover the
associated contractual obligation.

Other services
Fees and other income receivable are recognised in the period
which they relate and when they can be measured with
reasonable certainty.

Non-recurring items
Items of a non-recurring and material nature are charged or
credited to operating profit and are classified to the
appropriate income statement headings. To assist in the
analysis and understanding of the underlying trading position
of the Group these items are summarised within the Operating
Profit, note 4 on page 63, under the heading of “exceptional
items”.

Leased assets
Assets held under leasing agreements, which transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are included in property, plant and equipment.
The capital elements of the related lease obligations are
included in liabilities. The interest elements of the lease
obligations are charged to the income statement over the
period of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

Derivative financial instruments
The Group only enters into derivative financial instruments in
order to hedge underlying exposures.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss is dependent on the
nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates
certain derivatives as either a hedge of the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability (fair value hedge), or a hedge of a
forecasted transaction or of the foreign currency risk on a firm
commitment (cash flow hedge), or a hedge of a net investment
in a foreign entity.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges and that are highly effective, are
recorded in the consolidated income statement, along with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that is attributable to the hedged risk.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges and that are highly effective, are
recognised in hedging reserves. Where the forecasted
transaction or firm commitment results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or of a non-financial liability, the gains and
losses previously deferred in hedging reserves are transferred
from hedging reserves and included in the initial measurement
of the cost of the asset or liability. Otherwise, amounts
deferred in hedging reserves are transferred to the
consolidated income statement and classified as income or
expense in the same periods during which the hedged firm
commitment or forecasted transaction affects the consolidated
income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in hedging reserves at that
time remains in the hedging reserves and is recognised when
the committed or forecasted transaction ultimately is
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recognised in the consolidated income statement. When a
committed or forecasted transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in
hedging reserves is immediately transferred to the
consolidated income statement.

Dividend distribution
Dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet date
are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. Final
dividends are recognised as a charge to equity once approved
and interim dividends are charged once paid.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities are discussed below.

a) Property, plant and equipment
Assets are carried at historical cost less depreciation
calculated to write off the cost of such assets over their
estimated useful lives.

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges at acquisition. The estimated
useful life is reviewed annually and the depreciation charge
is revised where useful lives are subsequently found to be
different to those previously estimated.

b) Impairment of assets
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and other
assets that have indefinite useful lives suffered any
impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
or a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s
assumptions and estimates. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost; and the financial health of and near-term business
outlook for the investment, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in regional
economies and operational and financing cash flow.

c) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

d) Pension obligations
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions
used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions
include the expected long-term rate of return on the
relevant plans’ assets and the discount rate. Any changes
in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
pension obligations. 

The expected return on plan assets assumption is
determined on a uniform basis, taking into consideration
long-term historical returns, asset allocation and future
estimates of long-term investment returns. The Group
determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of
each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to settle the pension
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
the Group considers the interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension
liability. Other key assumptions for pension obligations are
based in part on current market conditions.

e) Errors and omissions liability
During the ordinary course of business the Group can be
subject to claims for errors and omissions made in
connection with its broking activities. A balance sheet
provision is established in respect of such claims when it is
probable that the liability has been incurred and the
amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated.
The Group analyses its litigation exposures based on
available information, including external legal consultation
where appropriate, to assess its potential liability.
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Future developments
The following pronouncements may be relevant to the Group but were not effective at 31st December 2006 and have not been
applied in preparing these financial statements.

Pronouncement Nature of change Effective date

IFRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and Addresses the apparent conflict between the requirements of IAS 34, Annual periods beginning on or

impairment ‘Interim financial reporting’, and those in other standards on the recognition after 1st November 2006

and reversal in financial statements of impairment losses on goodwill and

certain financial assets. It states that any such impairment losses recognised

in an interim financial statement may not be reversed in subsequent interim

or annual financial statements.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Consolidates the current financial instruments disclosures into a Annual periods beginning on or

single standard and requires more detailed qualitative disclosures about after 1st January 2007

exposure to risk arising from financial instruments.

Amendments to IAS 1 Introduces additional disclosures of the objectives, policies and processes Annual periods beginning on or

Presentation of Financial Statement – for managing capital, quantitative data about what the entity regards as after 1st January 2007

Capital Disclosures capital and compliance with capital requirements.

IFRS 8 Operating segments Proposes that entities adopt the “management approach” to reporting the Annual periods beginning on or

financial performance of its operating segments. Operating segments are after 1st January 2009

components of an entity about which, separate financial information is

available, which management uses internally for evaluating segment

performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

The Group is assessing the full impact of these accounting changes; and to the extent they may be applicable, none of these
pronouncements are expected to cause any material adjustments to the financial statements.



56 Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc  Annual Report & Accounts 2006

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st December 2006

1.  Alternative Income Statement

The format of the consolidated income statement on page 46 conforms to the requirements of IFRS. The alternative income statement set out below,

which is provided by way of additional information, has been prepared on a basis that conforms more closely to the approach adopted by the Group in

assessing its performance.

Year ended 31st December 2006

Underlying Re- Impairment Exceptional

profit classification charges items Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Continuing operations

Fees and commissions 459,537 - - - 459,537

Salaries and associated expenses (286,853) - - 20,553 (266,300)

Premises (28,706) - - (1,586) (30,292)

Other operating costs (76,737) (4) - (319) (77,060)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges (8,385) (567) (4,359) - (13,311)

Trading profit 58,856 (571) (4,359) 18,648 72,574

Investment income 19,436 - - - 19,436

Finance costs (3,790) - - - (3,790)

Share of results of associates after tax and minority interests 2,543 - - - 2,543

Loss on disposal of fixed asset investments (4) 4 - - -

Amortisation of other intangibles (567) 567 - - -

Profit before taxation 76,474 - (4,359) 18,648 90,763

Discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 2,036 - - - 2,036

Loss on sale of US operations - - - (16,252) (16,252)

Total 78,510 - (4,359) 2,396 76,547

Year ended 31st December 2005

Underlying Re- Impairment Exceptional

profit classification charges items Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Continuing operations

Fees and commissions 454,072 -   -   - 454,072

Salaries and associated expenses (275,165) -   -   (941) (276,106)

Premises (27,270) -   -   (1,264) (28,534)

Other operating costs (78,097) 134 -   2,552 (75,411)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges (10,193) (912) (2,751) - (13,856)

Trading profit 63,347 (778) (2,751) 347 60,165

Investment income 15,086 -   -   -   15,086

Finance costs (6,515) -   -   -   (6,515)

Share of results of associates after tax and minority interests 2,505 -   -   -   2,505

Gain on disposal of fixed asset investments 134 (134) -   - -

Amortisation of other intangibles (912) 912 -   - -

Profit before taxation 73,645 -   (2,751) 347 71,241

Discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3,164 -   -   (599) 2,565

Total 76,809 -   (2,751) (252) 73,806
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1.  Alternative Income Statement cont.

Discontinued operations in the consolidated income statement on page 46 are required to be stated after income tax whereas for the purposes of the

Alternative Income Statement they have been stated before Income Tax.

The table below provides a reconciliation between both sets of figures.
Year ended 31st December 2006

Before tax Tax After tax
Discontinued operations £'000 £'000 £'000

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 2,036 (501) 1,535
Loss on sale of US operations (16,252) 631 (15,621)

Total (14,216) 130 (14,086)

Year ended 31st December 2005

Before tax Tax After tax

Discontinued operations £'000 £'000 £'000

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 2,565 1,393 3,958

Total 2,565 1,393 3,958

Segment Information - primary reporting format reconciliation

Year ended 31st December 2006
Risk & Employee Head Office

Insurance Benefits & Other Unallocated Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Continuing operations
Underlying trading profit 61,368 13,132 (15,644) - 58,856
Gain on disposal of fixed asset investments 5 - (9) - (4)
Amortisation of other intangibles (567) - - - (567)
Exceptional items (10,089) (704) 29,441 - 18,648

Segment result 50,717 12,428 13,788 - 76,933

Impairment charges (3,109) - (1,250) - (4,359)
Investment income - - - 19,436 19,436

Operating profit 47,608 12,428 12,538 19,436 92,010

Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 2,103 - - - 2,103
Loss on sale of US operations - - - (16,252) (16,252)

Total 49,711 12,428 12,538 3,184 77,861

Year ended 31st December 2005

Risk & Employee Head Office

Insurance Benefits & Other Unallocated Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Continuing operations
Underlying trading profit 64,637 11,467 (12,757) - 63,347
Gain on disposal of fixed asset investments 16 - 118 - 134
Amortisation of other intangibles (658) (254) - - (912)
Exceptional items (1,387) 153 1,581 - 347

Segment result 62,608 11,366 (11,058) - 62,916
Impairment charges - (761) (1,990) - (2,751)
Investment income - - - 15,086 15,086

Operating profit 62,608 10,605 (13,048) 15,086 75,251

Discontinued operations 2,611 - - - 2,611

Total 65,219 10,605 (13,048) 15,086 77,862
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2.  Discontinued Operations

On 8th September 2006 the Group announced that it had reached agreement with Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. for the sale of its US based Property

and Casualty Insurance and Employee Benefits businesses. 

Details of the transaction, which was completed on 16th October 2006, are given in note 31 on page 88.

The loss on sale before tax is £16.3 million and includes the write off of goodwill and all related transaction costs. It has been reported as an exceptional

item in discontinued operations.

2006 2005

For the year ended 31st December 2006 Notes £'000 £'000

Discontinued operations:

Fees and commissions 3 25,245 30,298

Investment income 5 323 269

Salaries and associated expenses (28,299) (21,341)

Premises (1,193) (1,473)

Other operating costs (9,849) (4,693)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges 4 (376) (449)

Operating (loss)/profit 3,4 (14,149) 2,611

Analysed as:

Operating profit before exceptional items & impairment charges 2,103 3,210

Loss on sale of US operations (16,252) -

Group reorganisation and rationalisation costs 4 - (599)

Operating (loss)/profit 3,4 (14,149) 2,611

Finance costs (67) (46)

(Loss)/Profit before taxation 3 (14,216) 2,565

Income tax 9 130 1,393

(Loss)/Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 (14,086) 3,958
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3. Segment Information

Primary reporting format - business segments
Business segments: the Group is organised on a worldwide basis into three main segments: Risk & Insurance, Employee Benefits and Head Office &

Other operations. The segments are the basis on which the Company reports its primary segment information.

The Risk & Insurance segment comprises JLT’s worldwide insurance, reinsurance broking and risk services activities. The Employee Benefits segment

consists of pension administration, outsourcing and employee benefits consultancy. The Head Office & Other segment consists mainly of holding

companies, central administration functions, the Group's captive insurance companies, the Group's investment in Courcelles Participations, the holding

company of SIACI and the residual US Group marketing activities.

Segment results:

In accordance with IAS 14, segment results include the net income or expense derived from the trading activities of the segment. Investment income and

finance costs are excluded since the trading activities of the Group’s primary segments are not of a financial nature. The standard also specifically

excludes the income tax expense from segmental allocation with the consequence that the minority interest charge is also excluded.

Segment assets include:

- non current assets excluding investments in associates and deferred tax assets,

- Trade debtors and other debtors,

It excludes any interest bearing assets (e.g. cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale financial assets).

Segment liabilities include:

- IBA and other creditors,

- provisions for liabilities and charges.

It excludes any interest bearing liabilities (e.g. borrowings) as well as income & deferred tax liabilities.

Items excluded from segmental allocation are referred to below as “unallocated".

Investments in associates: the Group owns 31.89% of the French company Courcelles Participations (the holding company of SIACI) which has

operations principally in France and Italy. Although the investment and the company share of Courcelles’ net profit are excluded from the segmental

analysis of assets and revenue, they are shown separately in conjunction with data from the Head Office & Other segment. Group companies also own a

number of small associates in Australia and Asia which are included in the Risk & Insurance segment.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets, including additions resulting from acquisitions through

business combinations.

Risk & Employee Head Office Continuing Discontinued
Insurance Benefits & Other Unallocated Operations Operations Total

Year ended 31st December 2006 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Fees and commissions 379,198 75,933 4,406 - 459,537 25,245 484,782
Segment result 50,717 12,428 13,788 - 76,933 (14,472) 62,461
Impairment charge (3,109) - (1,250) - (4,359) - (4,359)
Investment income - - - 19,436 19,436 323 19,759
Operating profit 47,608 12,428 12,538 19,436 92,010 (14,149) 77,861
Finance costs - - - (3,790) (3,790) (67) (3,857)
Share of results of associates after tax & MI 67 - 2,476 - 2,543 - 2,543

Profit before taxation 47,675 12,428 15,014 15,646 90,763 (14,216) 76,547
Income tax expense - - - (29,333) (29,333) 130 (29,203)
Minority interest - - - (1,178) (1,178) - (1,178)
Net profit 47,675 12,428 15,014 (14,865) 60,252 (14,086) 46,166

Segment assets 254,825 40,904 30,811 - 326,540 - 326,540
Associates 2,412 - 6,597 - 9,009 - 9,009
Unallocated assets - - - 413,591 413,591 - 413,591
Total assets 257,237 40,904 37,408 413,591 749,140 - 749,140

Segment liabilities (387,221) (16,438) (150,161) - (553,820) - (553,820)
Unallocated liabilities - - - (29,688) (29,688) - (29,688)
Total liabilities (387,221) (16,438) (150,161) (29,688) (583,508) - (583,508)

Other segment items
Capital expenditure 7,560 719 4,164 - 12,443 203 12,646

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (8,780) (21) (4,510) - (13,311) (376) (13,687)
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3.  Segment Information cont.

Risk & Employee Head Office Continuing Discontinued

Insurance Benefits & Other Unallocated Operations Operations Total

Year ended 31st December 2005 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fees and commissions 370,886 70,572 12,614 - 454,072 30,298 484,370

Segment result 62,608 11,366 (11,058) - 62,916 2,342 65,258

Impairment charge - (761) (1,990) - (2,751) - (2,751)

Investment income - - - 15,086 15,086 269 15,355

Operating profit 62,608 10,605 (13,048) 15,086 75,251 2,611 77,862

Finance costs - - - (6,515) (6,515) (46) (6,561)

Share of results of associates after tax & MI 52 - - 2,453 2,505 - 2,505

Profit before taxation 62,660 10,605 (13,048) 11,024 71,241 2,565 73,806

Income tax expense - - - (24,046) (24,046) 1,393 (22,653)

Minority interests - - - (580) (580) - (580)

Net profit 62,660 10,605 (13,048) (13,602) 46,615 3,958 50,573

Segment assets 222,147 54,101 61,566 - 337,814 66,444 404,258

Associates 2,545 - 4,848 - 7,393 - 7,393

Unallocated assets - - - 434,605 434,605 16,216 450,821

Total assets 224,692 54,101 66,414 434,605 779,812 82,660 862,472

Segment liabilities (389,386) (16,261) (205,393) - (611,040) (19,278) (630,318)

Unallocated liabilities - - - (23,333) (23,333) (56,579) (79,912)

Total liabilities (389,386) (16,261) (205,393) (23,333) (634,373) (75,857) (710,230)

Other segment items

Capital expenditure 14,432 1,307 2,021 - 17,760 1,824 19,584

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (5,526) (1,830) (6,500) - (13,856) (449) (14,305)

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments
Geographical segments: although the Group’s three business segments are managed on a worldwide basis, they operate in five principal

geographical areas of the world. 

The United Kingdom is the home country of the parent company Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc.

The Risk & Insurance segment operates in the United Kingdom, its home country, and also in Guernsey. In the Americas, the Risk & Insurance segment

operates in the following countries: Bermuda, Brazil, Canada, Colombia, Mexico, Peru and the United States. In Europe, it operates in the Republic of

Ireland, France, Sweden, Norway and Russia. The Australasian segment includes operations in Australia and New Zealand and the Asian segment

includes operations in Singapore, Hong Kong, Taiwan, China, Indonesia, Japan, Thailand, Korea, Philippines and Malaysia.

The Employee benefits segment operates mainly in the United Kingdom.

The Head Office & Other activities segment is mainly based in the United Kingdom with minor operations in the United States, Europe and Asia.

The Group’s captive insurance companies, whilst located in Bermuda, are included in the United Kingdom segment.

Fees and commissions are allocated based on (1) the country in which the office is located and (2) the country in which the customer is located.

Depreciation, amortisation & impairment, capital expenditure, segment assets and liabilities are allocated based on the country in which they are

located or occur.
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3.  Segment Information cont.

Depreciation

Fees & Fees & amortisation & Capital Segment Segment

commissions (1) commissions (2) impairments expenditure assets liabilities

Year to 31st December 2006 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Continuing operations

UK 299,943 177,214 8,916 8,707 242,775 (429,705)

Americas 56,179 124,042 2,016 939 42,460 (57,691)

Australasia 59,778 65,599 1,715 1,775 25,279 (34,436)

Asia 32,272 42,036 515 679 12,107 (21,341)

Europe 11,365 44,816 149 342 3,920 (10,648)

Rest of World - 5,830 - - - -

459,537 459,537 13,311 12,442 326,541 (553,821)

Discontinued operations

Americas 25,245 25,245 376 204 - -

484,782 484,782 13,687 12,646 326,541 (553,821)

Associates 9,009 -

Unallocated assets/liabilities 413,590 (29,687)

Total assets/liabilities 749,140 (583,508)

Depreciation

Fees & Fees & amortisation & Capital Segment Segment

commissions (1) commissions (2) impairments expenditure assets liabilities

Year to 31st December 2005 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Continuing operations

UK 290,858 183,019 5,967 10,934 234,477 (495,426)

Americas 61,020 119,418 5,495 2,642 58,065 (38,888)

Australasia 60,998 68,812 1,696 2,143 28,814 (37,302)

Asia 30,437 38,550 554 496 11,995 (21,217)

Europe 10,759 38,990 144 1,544 5,891 (18,206)

Rest of World - 5,283 - - - - 

454,072 454,072 13,856 17,759 339,242 (611,039)

Discontinued operations

Americas 30,298 30,298 449 1,825 65,016 (19,279)

484,370 484,370 14,305 19,584 404,258 (630,318)

Associates 7,393 - 

Unallocated assets/liabilities 450,821 (79,912)

Total assets/liabilities 862,472 (710,230)
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4.  Operating Profit

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

The following items have been charged/(credited) in arriving at

operating profit and are disclosed for continuing and discontinued operations:

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses:

Fees and commissions (1,322) (11,145)

Other operating costs 617 (124)

(705) (11,269)

Impairment charges:

- goodwill - 38 

- property, plant and equipment - 421

- software costs - 2,046 

- employment contract payments 2,598 - 

- other investments 512 - 

- trade and other receivables 1,249 246 

Amortisation of intangible assets:

- software costs 1,254 1,732 

- other intangible assets 567 912 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment of which:

- owned assets 7,236 8,594

- leased assets under finance leases 271 316

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges 13,687 14,305

Amortisation of intangible assets:

- Employment contract payments (included in salaries and associated expenses) 4,730 3,864

(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment: (206) (61)

Operating lease rentals payable:

Minimum lease payments

Land & buildings 17,370 17,091

Furniture, equipment & motor vehicles 113 332

Computer equipment & software 26 4

Other - 15

Subleases payments

Land & Buildings (2,918) (3,023)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Fair value losses 87 1

Loss/(gain) on sale 4 (134)

91 (133)
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4.  Operating Profit cont.

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Exceptional items

Reorganisation and redundancy costs of which:

- included in salaries and associated expenses 10,747 3,453 

- included in premises costs - 249 

- included in other operating costs 2,530 438 

13,277 4,140 

Curtailment gain re: UK defined benefit pension scheme (included in salaries and associated expenses) (31,300) - 

Sale of US Property and Casualty Insurance and Employee Benefits businesses of which:

- included in salaries and associated companies 10,376 -

- included in other operating costs 5,876 -

16,252 -

Sale of Chicago operations - JLT Services Inc. (included in other operating costs) (3,347) -

Vacant property provisions (included in premises costs) 1,586 789 

Sale of Cayman Island business - additional costs (included in other operating costs) 249 (501)

Branch disposal JLT Re Solutions - additional costs (included in other operating costs) 142 - 

Professional fees in respect of potential acquisition (included in other operating costs) 745 - 

Curtailment gain re: US defined benefit pension scheme (included in salaries and associated expenses) - (2,069)

Sale of CSEA business - JLT Services Inc. (included in other operating costs) - (2,541)

Acquisition integration costs of which:

- included in salaries and associated expenses - 156

- included in premises costs - 226

- included in other operating costs - 52

- 434

(2,396) 252

Exceptional items are disclosed in the income statement as follows:

- continuing operations (18,648) (347)

- discontinued operations 16,252 599

(2,396) 252
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5.  Investment Income

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Continuing operations

Interest receivable 19,388 15,086

Investment income from fixed asset investments 48 -

19,436 15,086

Discontinuing operations

Interest receivable 323 269

19,759 15,355

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Prior year investment income 15,355 13,508

Effect of:

Average cash balance variance 148 (1,641)

Interest yield variance 4,446 3,643

Foreign exchange variance (190) (155)

Current year investment income 19,759 15,355

The Group’s investment income arises from its holdings of cash and investments including fiduciary funds. Equivalent average cash and investment

balances during the year amounted to £410 million (2005: £415 million) denominated principally in US dollars 50%, sterling 25% and Australian dollars

12%.

The average return for 2006 was 4.8% (2005: 3.7%). Based upon average invested balances, each one half per cent movement in the average achieved

rate of return would impact anticipated interest income receivable by some £2 million.
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6.  Finance Costs

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Continuing operations
Interest expense:

- bank and other borrowings 3,145 3,571 
- finance leases 82 93 
- interest in respect of provision discounting 244 731 

- expected return on post employment scheme assets (23,854) (20,532)
- interest on post employment scheme liabilities 24,086 22,651 

- net pension financing charge 232 2,119 
Net foreign exchange transaction gains/(losses)
Fair value gains on financial instruments:

- interest rate swaps : cash flow hedges, transfer from equity 88 2 
- forward contracts: fair value hedges (1) (1)

3,790 6,515 

Discontinued operations:
- bank and other borrowings 63 35
- interest in respect of provision discounting 4 11

67 46 

3,857 6,561

7.  Employee Information

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

a) Salaries and associated expenses
Wages and salaries 231,267 221,615 
Social security costs 23,854 22,698 
Pension costs (10,487) 18,607 
Equity settled share based payments:

- incentive schemes (RSP, SIP, LTIP) 9,663 8,198 
- sharesave schemes (SAYE) (178) 866 

9,485 9,064 
Other staff costs 40,480 25,463 

294,599 297,447

Salaries and associated expenses are disclosed in the income statement as follows:
- continuing operations 266,300 276,106
- discontinued operations 28,299 21,341

294,599 297,447

2006 2005

b) Analysis of employees
Average number of persons employed by the Group during the year
UK 2,661 2,678
Americas 1,210 1,288
Australasia 750 770
Asia 565 531
Europe 132 130

5,318 5,397

Continuing operations 5,115 5,140
Discontinued operations 203 257

5,318 5,397
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7.  Employee Information cont.

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Key management compensation
Salaries and short term employee benefits 6,295 5,356
Post employment benefits 554 1,169
Other long term benefits 250 160
Share based benefits 630 795

7,729 7,480

The Group's equity-settled share-based payments comprise the Restricted Share Scheme, Executive Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Scheme.

IFRS 2 applies to grants made after 7th November 2002, the issue date of the original exposure draft. Since that date the Company has made grants
under a number of share-based payment arrangements, which are described below:

Options Option Number of Performance Assumed
Granted price (p) employees criteria lapse rate %

Restricted Share Scheme

2003 28 March 2,597,897 - 132 Note 1,2 -

2003 8 September 584,469 - 28 Note 1,2 -

2003 20 November 455,000 - 6 Note 1 -

2004 24 September 3,091,124 - 178 Note 1 -

2005 30 March 939,000 - 8 Note 1 -

2005 6 April 1,860,148 - 150 Note 1 -

2005 6 September 463,840 - 19 Note 1 -

2006 18 April 465,506 - 40 Note 1 -

2006 27 September 64,979 - 2 Note 1 -

2006 29 September 155,671 - 4 Note 1 -

2006 24 November 887,600 - 8 Note 1 -

Sub-total 11,565,234 575

Share Options - Executive Share Option Scheme

2003 28 March 70,000 568.50 6 Note 3 35.70

2003 8 September 661,000 578.00 166 Note 3 5.60

2004 8 September 971,500 422.00 169 Note 3 5.00

2005 6 April 3,915,500 387.85 304 Note 3 5.00

2005 6 September 645,990 400.25 66 Note 3 5.00

2006 29 September 1,931,800 382.50 284 Note 3 5.00

Sub-total 8,195,790 995

Sharesave Scheme

2003  30 September - 3 Year 1,516,874 456.50 1,581 No 46.63

2003 30 September - 5 Year 1,280,712 456.50 655 No 59.68

2006 9 October - 3 Year 1,226,820 313.00 1,202 No 20.00

2006 9 October - 5 Year 717,782 313.00 343 No 20.00

Sub-total 4,742,188 3,781

Total 24,503,212 5,351

Note 1: Options granted under the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) in 2003 are subject to a variety of performance conditions. 
LTIPs awarded to executives of operating subsidiaries have performance conditions relating to the growth in trading profit and profit before tax over a three year
period from the date of the award. In general terms the annual average growth must exceed the regional RPI by a margin of  at least 2%.

LTIPs awarded to Executive Directors of the Group in 2003 have performance conditions based on the Company's earnings per share ("EPS").
For 50% of each award, EPS growth is measured over three years. Full vesting occurs if average annual EPS growth exceeds inflation by at least 10% and vesting
only starts if average annual EPS growth exceeds inflation by 2%, with pro rata vesting between 2% and 10%. If the minimum EPS growth hurdle has not been
achieved over the 3 years there is discretion to extend the measurement periods for a further year.

The other 50% of the award vests depending on EPS growth (using the same 2% - 10% range) over a single year, although shares cannot normally
be acquired until after 3 years. However, if the condition was not satisfied in full, the remaining proportion of the award could vest depending on the performance
over the remainder of the three year period.
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7,  Employee Information cont.

For LTIPs awarded in 2004 and 2005 to Executive Directors of the Group the performance conditions require growth in the Company's EPS over the

single 3 year period form 2004 to 2006 and 2005 to 2007 as follows:

Growth of EPS in excess of the

RPI over 3 years Proportion of awards vesting

RPI + 3% per annum (or less) 0%

Between RPI + 3% and 10% per annum Pro rata between 0% and 100%

RPI + 10% per annum (or more) 100%

For LTIPs awarded in 2006 to Executive Directors of the Group the performance conditions require growth in the Company’s EPS over the single 3 year

period from 2006 to 2008 as follows:

Growth of EPS in excess of the

RPI over 3 years Proportion of awards vesting

RPI + less than 2% per annum 0%

RPI + 2% per annum 25%

Between RPI + 2% and 5% per annum Pro rata between 25% and 100%

RPI + 5% per annum (or more) 100%

Note 2: Certain other awards have been granted with specific performance targets defined for the individual executives. In general these require targets

for revenue and profit growth to be met over the vesting period.

Note 3: These options may only be exercised if there has been growth in the earnings per share in excess of RPI for the three consecutive financial

accounting periods preceding the date of exercise.

Fair Value of Awards

Under IFRS 2 the fair value of awards granted since 7th November 2002, calculated using a Black-Scholes model, is shown on the following table:

Black-Scholes model assumptions

Share  price Dividend Risk free Fair value of

Exercise Performance on grant Volatility yield Maturity interest rate one award

price (p) period date (p) % % years % (p)

Restricted Share Scheme

2003 28 March - 2003-09 568.50 23.99 - 3 - 9 4.21 568.50

2003 8 September - 2003-12 578.00 23.99 - 3 - 9 4.21 578.00

2003 20 November - 2003-06 569.32 23.99 - 3 - 9 4.21 569.32

2004 24 September - 2004-13 423.00 21.49 - 3 - 9 4.88 423.00

2005 30 March - 2005-08 380.50 24.34 - 3 - 9 4.70 380.50

2005 6 April - 2005-10 387.85 24.24 - 3 - 9 4.59 387.85

2005 6 September - 2005-10 400.25 24.45 - 3 - 9 4.88 400.25

2006 18 April - 2006-13 344.63 25.54 - 3 - 9 4.55 344.63

2006 27 September - 2006-09 378.00 27.02 - 3 - 9 4.72 378.00

2006 29 September - 2006-11 390.00 27.13 - 3 - 9 4.72 390.00

2006 24 November - 2006-09 398.50 27.01 - 3 - 9 4.82 398.50

Share Options - Executive Share Option Scheme

2003 28 March 568.50 2003-06 568.50 23.99 3.5 5 4.21 106.86

2003 8 September 578.00 2003-06 578.00 23.99 3.5 5 4.21 108.65

2004 8 September 422.00 2004-07 422.00 21.49 4.8 5 4.88 62.79

2005 6 April 387.85 2005-08 387.85 24.24 5.25 5 4.59 59.32

2005 6 September 400.25 2005-08 400.25 24.45 5.125 5 4.09 60.10

2006 29 September 382.50 2006-09 390.00 27.13 5.256 5 4.82 67.06

Sharesave Scheme

2003 30 September - 3yr 456.50 2003-06 570.72 21.25 3.5 3 4.21 135.93

2003 30 September - 5yr 456.50 2003-08 570.72 23.99 3.5 5 4.33 154.64

2006 9 October - 3yr 313.00 2006-09 391.25 31.24 5.256 3 4.82 100.34

2006 9 October - 5yr 313.00 2006-11 391.25 27.13 5.256 5 4.72 94.73



68 Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc  Annual Report & Accounts 2006

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st December 2006

7.  Employee Information cont.

The option holders who have awards under the Restricted Share Scheme also receive discretionary payments equating to the dividends payable on their

shares (subject to meeting the performance criteria). Under the Black-Scholes model if the dividend yield is assumed to be zero then the fair value will

equal the share price at date of grant.

The volatility has been calculated based on the historical share price of the Company, using either a 3 or 5 year term.

All options granted under the share option schemes are conditional upon the employees remaining in the Group's employment during the vesting period

of the option, the actual period varies according to the scheme in which the employee participates. In calculating the cost of options granted, a factor is

included to take account of anticipated lapse rates.

Movement in number of options

Options Options Weighted Options Remaining

outstanding Granted/ outstanding average exercisable contractual

at 1 Jan 06 adjustments Lapsed Exercised at 31 Dec 06 exercise (sale) at 31 Dec 06 life 

Number Number Number Number Number price (p) Number Years

Restricted Share Scheme

2003 28 March 2,028,018 - (1,011,985) (193,372) 822,661 389.46 148,807 6.24

2003 8 September 380,784 - (46,447) (258,237) 76,100 404.34 46,150 6.69

2003 20 November 355,000 - (244,950) (91,450) 18,600 419.71 18,600 6.89

2004 24 September 2,522,929 - (650,901) (97,939) 1,774,089 390.27 74,778 7.74

2005 30 March 801,000 - (79,000) - 722,000 - - 8.25

2005 6 April 1,853,187 - (132,776) (56,722) 1,663,689 377.73 - 8.27

2005 6 September 463,840 - (41,000) - 422,840 - - 8.69

2006 18 April - 465,506 (5,833) (10,000) 449,673 406.00 - 9.30

2006 27 September - 64,979 - - 64,979 - - 9.75

2006 29 September - 155,671 - - 155,671 - - 9.75

2006 24 November - 887,600 - - 887,600 - - 9.90

Sub-total 8,404,758 1,573,756 (2,212,892) (707,720) 7,057,902 398.36 288,335 8.22

Share Options - Executive Share Option Scheme

2003 28 March 15,000 - - - 15,000 - 15,000 6.24

2003 8 September 577,500 - (47,000) - 530,500 - - 6.69

2004 8 September 872,500 - (81,000) - 791,500 - - 7.70

2005 6 April 3,752,500 - (323,000) (196,000) 3,233,500 413.29 - 8.27

2005 6 September 645,990 - (51,000) - 594,990 - - 8.69

2006 29 September - 1,931,800 (10,000) - 1,921,800 - - 9.75

Sub-total 5,863,490 1,931,800 (512,000) (196,000) 7,087,290 413.29 15,000 8.52

Sharesave Scheme

2003 30 September - 3yr 993,674 - (222,007) (22,300) 749,367 360.64 749,367 0.25

2003 30 September - 5yr 958,342 - (504,618) - 453,724 - - 2.25

2006 9 October - 3yr - 1,226,820 (12,919) - 1,213,901 - - 3.27

2006 9 October - 5yr - 717,782 (5,167) - 712,615 - - 5.27

Sub-total 1,952,016 1,944,602 (744,711) (22,300) 3,129,607 360.64 749,367 2.86

Total 16,220,264 5,450,158 (3,469,603) (926,020) 17,274,799 400.70 1,052,702 7.37
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7.  Employee Information cont.

Movement in number of options
Options Options Weighted Options Remaining

outstanding Granted/ outstanding average exercisable contractual
at 1 Jan 05 adjustments Lapsed Exercised at 31 Dec 05 exercise (sale) at 31 Dec 05 life 

Number Number Number Number Number price (p) Number Years
Restricted Share Scheme
2003 28 March 2,363,092 - (121,018) (214,056) 2,028,018 388.50 117,380 7.24
2003 8 September 554,164 - (29,468) (143,912) 380,784 391.80 4,016 7.69
2003 20 November 386,000 - - (31,000) 355,000 367.00 - 7.89
2004 24 September 2,965,357 - (326,481) (115,947) 2,522,929 385.90 6,506 8.74
2005 30 March - 939,000 (138,000) - 801,000 - - 9.25
2005 6 April - 1,860,148 - (6,961) 1,853,187 467.00 - 9.27
2005 6 September - 463,840 - - 463,840 - - 9.69
Sub-total 6,268,613 3,262,988 (614,967) (511,876) 8,404,758 388.60 127,902 8.53
Share Options - Executive Share Option Scheme
2003 28 March 45,000 - (30,000) - 15,000 - - 7.24
2003 8 September 624,000 - (46,500) - 577,500 - - 7.69
2004 8 September 960,000 - (87,500) - 872,500 - - 8.70
2005 6 April - 3,915,500 (163,000) - 3,752,500 - - 9.27
2005 6 September - 645,990 - - 645,990 - - 9.69
Sub-total 1,629,000 4,561,490 (327,000) - 5,863,490 - - 9.07
Sharesave Scheme
2003 30 September - 3yr 1,268,052 - (271,392) (2,986) 993,674 491.56 - 1.25
2003 30 September - 5yr 1,143,150 - (184,808) - 958,342 - - 3.25
Sub-total 2,411,202 - (456,200) (2,986) 1,952,016 491.56 - 2.23

Total 10,308,815 7,824,478 (1,398,167) (514,862) 16,220,264 389.20 127,902 7.96

Options granted prior to 7th November 2002

Movement in number of options
Options Options Weighted Remaining

outstanding Granted/ outstanding average contractual
at 1 Jan 06 adjustments Lapsed Exercised at 31 Dec 06 exercise (sale) life

Number Number Number Number Number price (p) Years
Restricted Share Scheme 975,140 - (39,619) (391,813) 543,708 368.82 4.18
Share Options : 
Executive Share Option Scheme 2,204,787 - (346,860) (157,446) 1,700,481 407.69 4.22
Total 3,179,927 - (386,479) (549,259) 2,244,189 377.02 4.21

The weighted average options costs for 2006 were as follows:

Share Options-Executive Share Option Scheme 452.35 n/a 493.35 220.27 465.44

Movement in number of options
Options Options Weighted Remaining

outstanding Granted/ outstanding average contractual
at 1 Jan 05 adjustments Lapsed Exercised at 31 Dec 05 exercise (sale) life 

Number Number Number Number Number price (p) Years
Restricted Share Scheme 2,058,980 - (198,786) (885,054) 975,140 397.40 5.03
Share Options :
Executive Share Option Scheme 2,684,910 - (282,694) (197,429) 2,204,787 432.70 5.36
Sharesave Schemes 852,639 - (79,814) (772,825) - 393.00 - 
Total 5,596,529 - (561,294) (1,855,308) 3,179,927 399.32 5.26

The weighted average option costs for 2005 were as follows:

Share Options : Executive Share Option Scheme 438.40 n/a 531.50 257.70 452.35
Sharesave Schemes 210.00 n/a 210.00 210.00 n/a
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8.  Services Provided by the Group’s Auditor and Network Firms

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group’s auditor at the costs detailed below:

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor for the audit of the Company and consolidated accounts 201 175

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor and its associates for other services:

The audit of the Group’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 936 1,049

Other services pursuant to legislation 141 138

Tax services 153 107

Valuation and actuarial services 5 5

Services relating to corporate finance transactions 315 -

All other services 99 378

Fees in respect of the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group Pension Scheme 14 13

1,864 1,865

The Audit & Compliance Committee has a policy on the use of the external auditors for non-audit services to ensure that the auditor’s independence is

maintained and it is involved in the decision and all such appointments where the anticipated fee exceeds £50,000. Each year a limit is set on the total

fees that can be paid to the external auditor in relation to other services not referred to above. For 2006, the Audit & Compliance Committee has set this

limit at one third of the statutory audit fees (2005: one third).

9. Income Tax Expense

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Current tax expense

Current year 13,330 23,366

Under/(over) provided in prior years (32) 105

13,298 23,471

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 16,142 (737)

Reduction in tax rate 3 (9)

Benefit of tax losses recognised 47 640 

Prior year losses now recognised (287) (712)

15,905 (818)

Total income tax expense in income statement 29,203 22,653

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of the home country of the Company as

follows:

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Profit before tax 76,547 73,806

Tax calculated at UK Corporation Tax rate of 30% 22,965 22,142

Non-deductible expenses* 5,741 1,294

Book depreciation in excess of tax depreciation - 1

Increase in provisions not deductible in the period/decrease in provisions not deducted in prior periods - 2

Accrued income not taxable in the period/income accrued in prior periods now taxable - (1)

Pensions - 151

Share based payments 988 (1,074)

Other adjustments to taxable profit - 4

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods (149) 413

Effect of UK and non-UK tax rate differences 401 457

Tax on associates (743) (736)

Total income tax expense in income statement 29,203 22,653

*The non-deductible expenses for 2006 relate principally to losses realised on disposals in the United States during the year that are not allowable for tax purposes,

and to non-deductible entertaining expenses. The non-deductible expenses for 2005 related principally to non-deductible entertaining expenses.



Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc  Annual Report & Accounts 2006  71

G
ro

u
p

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

10.  Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year, excluding unallocated shares held by the Trustees of the Employees' Share Ownership Plan Trust in respect of the Jardine Lloyd

Thompson Group Restricted Share Scheme.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue to take account of the potential dilutive

effect of outstanding share options. 

An additional basic and diluted earnings per share is also calculated based on underlying earnings attributable to shareholders. A reconciliation of

earnings is set out below.

2006 2005

No of shares No of shares

Weighted average number of shares in issue 213,715,863 211,713,303 

Effect of outstanding share options 238,119 581,606

Adjusted weighted average number of shares 213,953,982 212,294,909

2006 2005
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

pence per pence per pence per pence per
£’000 share share £’000 share share

EARNINGS RECONCILIATION

Underlying profit 50,832 23.8 23.8 48,261 22.8 22.7

Impairment charges (4,359) (2,751)

Taxation thereon 1,155 856 

(3,204) (1.5) (1.5) (1,895) (0.9) (0.9)

Exceptional items 18,648 347 

Taxation thereon (6,024) (98)

12,624 5.9 5.9 249 0.1 0.1

Profit attributable to shareholders:

- continuing operations 60,252 28.2 28.2 46,615 22.0 21.9

- discontinued operations (14,086) (6.6) (6.6) 3,958 1.9 1.9

Profit attributable to shareholders 46,166 21.6 21.6 50,573 23.9 23.8

11.  Dividends

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Final dividend in respect of 2005 of 12.0p per share (2004: 12.0p) 25,553 25,395

Less: adjustment* (1,144) -

24,409 25,395

Interim dividend in respect of 2006 of 8.5p per share (2005: 8.5p) 18,139 18,351

42,548 43,746

*adjustment relating to dividend equivalents accrued in respect of various performance related share awards and long term incentive plans not currently anticipated

to fully vest.

A final dividend in respect of 2006 of 12.0p per share (2005: 12.0p) amounting to a total of £25,808,000 (2005: £25,553,000) is proposed by the Board.

The dividend proposed will not be accounted for until it has been approved at the Annual General Meeting. 



72 Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc  Annual Report & Accounts 2006

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st December 2006

12.  Goodwill
Details of movements during the year relating to acquisitions and disposals are shown in notes 30 and 31 on pages 87 and 88.

Gross Impairment Net carrying
amount losses amount

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2006
Opening net book amount 203,611 (1,302) 202,309
Exchange differences (7,977) 155 (7,822)
Acquisitions (2,661) - (2,661)
Disposals (47,545) - (47,545)

Closing net book amount 145,428 (1,147) 144,281

In 2005 an impairment loss of £38,000 was recognised in respect of JLT Services Corporation which is now included in the Head Office & Other
business segment.

At 31st December 2005
Opening net book amount 161,235 (1,134) 160,101 
Exchange differences 10,042 (130) 9,912 
Acquisitions 32,334 - 32,334 
Impairment charge - (38) (38)

Closing net book amount 203,611 (1,302) 202,309

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business segment. A summary of the
goodwill allocation is presented below.

Risk & Employee
Insurance Benefits Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2006
Australasia 8,800 - 8,800
Asia 3,096 - 3,096
UK and Europe 69,000 32,811 101,811
Americas 30,574 - 30,574

111,470 32,811 144,281

At 31st December 2005
Australasia 9,880 - 9,880
Asia 3,272 - 3,272
UK and Europe 72,481 32,305 104,786
Americas 84,371 - 84,371

170,004 32,305 202,309

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5 year period. 
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below:

Risk & Insurance Employee Benefits
UK & UK & 

Key assumption used for value-in-use calculations Australasia Asia Europe Americas Europe US

At 31st December 2006
Growth rate (1) 6.40 6.85 4.60 6.08 4.60 -
Discount rate (2) 14.31 13.58 11.92 14.53 15.88 -

At 31st December 2005
Growth rate (1) 5.90 6.27 4.10 6.22 4.10 6.10
Discount rate (2) 15.71 12.39 11.20 12.02 17.01 14.40

1)  Average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond five years.
2)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections.

The key assumptions used in value in use calculations were:
The budgeted trading profit growth:- management determines budgeted trading profit based on past experience and its expectation for the market
development.
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12.  Goodwill cont.
The budgeted IBA interest income growth:- this is based on past experience and long term interest rates projections.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segment and country of operation. The weighted average growth rate
used are consistent with long term economic forecasts in the countries of operation.

Impairment:
During 2005 an impairment loss of £761,000 was recognised in respect of JLT Services Corporation which is now included in the Head Office & Other
business segment. During the year a significant business portfolio was sold and a further part of the business was restructured to be managed and
reported internally via a different cash generating unit with effect from January 2006. The recoverable amount of the unit containing the related goodwill
was determined based on value in use calculations using a discount rate of 14.4%. (2004: 14.7%)

The amount of the impairment loss can be detailed as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Goodwill - 38
Intangible assets - 56
Property, plant and equipment - 421
Trade and other receivables - 246 

Total impairment - 761

13.  Intangible Assets
Capitalised

employment
Computer contract
software payments Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2006
Opening net book amount 1,983 13,145 2,924 18,052
Exchange differences (59) (175) (57) (291)
Additions 1,355 3,194 - 4,549
Companies disposed of (78) (637) - (715)
Disposals (52) (1,056) - (1,108)
Impairment charge -   (2,598) - (2,598)
Amortisation charge (1,254) (4,730) (567) (6,551)

Closing net book amount 1,895 7,143 2,300 11,338

At 31st December 2006
Cost 22,238 21,570 3,935 47,743
Accumulated amortisation (20,343) (14,427) (1,635) (36,405)

Closing net book amount 1,895 7,143 2,300 11,338

At 31st December 2005
Opening net book amount 4,069 9,389 3,733 17,191
Exchange differences 225 227 103 555
Additions 1,992 8,571 -   10,563
Companies acquired 1 -   -   1
Disposals (526) (1,178) -   (1,704)
Impairment charge (2,046) -   -   (2,046)
Amortisation charge (1,732) (3,864) (912) (6,508)

Closing net book amount 1,983 13,145 2,924 18,052

At 31st December 2005
Cost 23,489 22,226 4,050 49,765
Accumulated amortisation (21,506) (9,081) (1,126) (31,713)

Closing net book amount 1,983 13,145 2,924 18,052

At 31st December 2004
Cost 22,054 16,445 3,913 42,412
Accumulated amortisation (17,985) (7,056) (180) (25,221)

Closing net book amount 4,069 9,389 3,733 17,191

Additions to computer software during 2006 include £58,000 of capitalised costs in respect of internal developments. (2005: £19,000).
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14.  Property, Plant and Equipment
Land Leasehold Equipment & Computer

& buildings improvements motor vehicles equipment Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 31st December 2006

Opening net book amount 2,366 13,158 10,130 2,806 28,460 

Exchange differences (18) (444) (505) (117) (1,084)

Additions - 1,839 2,960 3,298 8,097 

Companies disposed of - (440) (1,171) (108) (1,719)

Disposals (2,214) (415) (851) (14) (3,494)

Depreciation charge (22) (2,075) (2,945) (2,465) (7,507)

Closing net book amount 112 11,623 7,618 3,400 22,753 

At 31st December 2006

Cost 144 25,080 22,672 37,808 85,704 

Accumulated depreciation (32) (13,457) (15,054) (34,408) (62,951)

Closing net book amount 112 11,623 7,618 3,400 22,753 

At 31st December 2005

Opening net book amount 2,425 12,590 9,563 3,811 28,389

Exchange differences 35 432 569 156 1,192 

Additions - 2,913 3,815 2,404 9,132

Companies acquired (19) 8 (112) 11 (112)

Disposals (38) (199) (398) (175) (810)

Impairment charge - (146) (127) (148) (421)

Depreciation charge (37) (2,440) (3,180) (3,253) (8,910)

Closing net book amount 2,366 13,158  10,130 2,806 28,460 

At 31st December 2005

Cost 2,470 25,663 25,751 38,141 92,025 

Accumulated depreciation (104) (12,505) (15,621) (35,335) (63,565)

Closing net book amount 2,366 13,158 10,130 2,806 28,460

At 31st December 2004

Cost 2,520 22,840 23,956 36,493 85,809 

Accumulated depreciation (95) (10,250) (14,393) (32,682) (57,420)

Closing net book amount 2,425 12,590 9,563 3,811 28,389 

The net book value of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is as follows:
2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Furniture, equipment and motor vehicles 985 1,011
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15.  Investments in Associates
£'000

At 31st December 2006

Opening net book amount 7,393

Exchange differences (307)

Share of results after tax and minority interests 2,543

Provision reversal 73

Dividends received (140)

Shareholding restructure (553)

Closing net book amount 9,009

At 31st December 2006

Cost 9,381

Provisions (372)

Closing net book amount 9,009

At 31st December 2005

Opening net book amount 4,782

Exchange differences 94

Share of results after tax and minority interests 2,505

Provision reversal 83

Dividends received (71)

Closing net book amount 7,393

At 31st December 2005

Cost 7,885

Provisions (492)

Closing net book amount 7,393

At 31st December 2004

Cost 5,308

Provisions (526)

Closing net book amount 4,782

No impairment losses have been incurred during the year.

Information relating to Courcelles Participation, the Group’s principal associate is as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Assets 200,492 221,762 

Liabilities 144,371 163,142 

Turnover 63,284 63,995 

Net profit 7,780 7,912 

Percentage held 31.89% 31.00%

Country of incorporation France France 
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16.  Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are categorised according to their nature into one of two categories:

1) Investments and deposits, which consist mainly of Bonds, Commercial Paper and Fixed Deposits - these investments are held at fair value and are

classified between current and non-current assets according to maturity date.

2) Other investments, which include securities and other investments held for strategic purposes - these investments are held at fair value unless a fair

value cannot be accurately determined in which case they are held at cost less any provision for impairment.

Other Investments

investments & deposits Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2005 4,582 70,992 75,574

Exchange differences (60) (1,388) (1,448)

Additions 453 7,235 7,688

Companies disposed of (27) - (27)

Disposals/maturities (156) (63,873) (64,029)

Revaluation surplus/(deficit) (included within equity) (1,799) 265 (1,534)

Impairment charge (512) - (512)

At 31st December 2006 2,481 13,231 15,712

£'000 £'000 £'000

Analysis of available-for-sale financial assets

Current - 9,069 9,069

Non-current 2,481 4,162 6,643

At 31st December 2006 2,481 13,231 15,712

At 31st December 2004 879 51,192 52,071

Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 - 74 74

At 1st January 2005 879 51,266 52,145

Exchange differences 115 1,003 1,118

Additions 341 65,703 66,044

Companies acquired (45) - (45)

Disposals/maturities (32) (46,831) (46,863)

Revaluation surplus/(deficit) (included within equity) 3,324 (149) 3,175

At 31st December 2005 4,582 70,992 75,574

£'000 £'000 £'000

Analysis of available-for-sale financial assets

Current - 57,253 57,253

Non-current 4,582 13,739 18,321

At 31st December 2005 4,582 70,992 75,574
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17.  Derivative Financial Instruments

As at 31st December 2006 As at 31st December 2005

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges - (995) - (104)

Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 9,143 - 68 (2,600)

Total 9,143 (995) 68 (2,704)

Less non-current portion:

Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 1,956 (995) 49 (2,187)

Current portion 7,187 - 19 (517)

The Group’s treasury policies are approved by the Board and are implemented by a centralised treasury department. The treasury department operates

within a framework of policies and procedures that establishes specific guidelines to manage currency risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk and the use

of counter-parties and financial instruments to manage these. The treasury department is subject to regular internal and external audit.

The Group uses various derivative instruments including forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements to manage

the risks arising from variations in currency and interest earnings that arise from movements in exchange and interest rates. Derivative instruments

purchased are primarily denominated in the currencies of the Group's main markets. 

Where forward foreign exchange contracts have been entered into to manage currency risk, they are designated as hedges of currency risk on specific

future cash flows, which qualify as highly probable transactions for which hedge accounting has been used. The Group anticipates that hedge

accounting criteria will continue to be met on its foreign currency and interest rate hedging activities and that no material ineffectiveness will arise which

will give rise to timing issues on gains or losses being recognised through the profit and loss account.

The fair value after tax of financial derivatives based upon market values as at 31st December 2006 and designated as effective cash flow hedges was

£8.1m and has been deferred in equity. Gains and Losses arising on derivative instruments outstanding as at 31st December 2006 will be released to the

income statement at various dates up to twenty four months from the balance sheet date. No material amounts were transferred to the income

statement during the period in respect of the fair value of financial derivatives.

a) Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Group’s major currency transaction currency exposure arises in USD and the Group continues to adopt a prudent approach in actively managing

this exposure. As at 31st December 2006 the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts, principally in USD, amounting to a

principal value of £209,812,000 (2005: £114,043,000).

b) Interest Rate Swaps and Forward Rate Agreements

The Group uses interest rate hedges, principally interest rate swaps, to mitigate the impact upon interest earnings and expense of changes in

interest rates. The notional principal amounts of outstanding interest rate swaps and FRAs as at 31st December 2006 was USD 100,000,000 and

GBP 50,000,000 (2005: USD 50,000,000). Interest rate hedges outstanding at 31st December 2005 have USD fixed interest rates, which hedge

USD LIBOR at 4.6% and GBP LIBOR at 4.5% (2005: USD 2.7%). The weighted average period to maturity is 15.7 months. These interest rate

swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair value thereof has been deferred in equity.

c) Price Risk

The Group does not have a material exposure to commodity price risk.
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18.  Employee Benefit Trust

£'000

At 31st December 2006
Opening net book amount 2,647
Additions 510
Amortisation charge (954)
Revaluation surplus (included within equity) 168

Closing net book amount 2,371

At 31st December 2006
Cost 5,052
Accumulated amortisation (2,681)

Closing net book amount 2,371

At 31st December 2005
Opening net book amount 2,566
Additions 843
Amortisation charge (762)

Closing net book amount 2,647

At 31st December 2005
Cost 5,028
Accumulated amortisation (2,381)

Closing net book amount 2,647

At 31st December 2004
Cost 4,185
Accumulated amortisation (1,619)

Closing net book amount 2,566

19.  Trade and Other Receivables
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Current receivables and prepayments
Trade receivables 98,018 115,042
Less: Provision for bad debt (14,810) (17,858)

Trade receivables - net 83,208 97,184
Other debtors 50,291 50,577
Prepayments 4,336 5,815

137,835 153,576

20.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 100,981 101,296
Short term bank deposits 249,358 199,102

350,339 300,398

The effective interest rate in respect of short-term deposits was 5.0% (2005: 3.9%). These deposits have an average maturity of 26 days. (2005: 27 days).
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21.  Trade and Other Payables
2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Insurance creditors 285,490 308,664
Social security and other taxes 8,453 7,855
Other creditors 59,719 52,077
Accruals and deferred income 57,016 49,043

410,678 417,639

22.  Borrowings
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Current
Bank overdraft 62 39
Unsecured loan notes & other borrowings 4 1
Bank borrowing 11 17
Finance lease liabilities 346 456

423 513

Non current
Bank borrowing 20,139 54,418
Finance lease liabilities 663 571

20,802 54,989

Total borrowings 21,225 55,502

The borrowings include secured liabilities (leases and borrowings) in a total amount of £1,009,000 (2005: £1,027,000). The exposure of the borrowings of
the Group to interest rate changes and the periods in which the borrowings reprice are as follows:

6 months 6-12
or less months 1-5 years Over 5 years Fixed rate Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total borrowings 20,166 - 50 - 1,009 21,225
Effect of interest rate swaps - - - - - -

At 31st December 2006 20,166 - 50 - 1,009 21,225

Total borrowings 54,442 17 12 - 1,031 55,502
Effect of interest rate swaps - - - - - -

At 31st December 2005 54,442 17 12 - 1,031 55,502

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Bank overdraft - -
Unsecured loan notes 7.40% 7.40%
Bank borrowings 6.98% 4.98%
Finance lease liabilities 8.08% 7.90%
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22.  Borrowings cont.

The carrying amounts and fair value of borrowings are as follows:
Carrying Fair 
amount value

2006 2006
£'000 £'000

Current
Bank overdraft 62 62
Unsecured loan notes & other borrowings 4 4
Bank borrowing 11 11
Finance lease liabilities 346 346

423 423

Non-current
Bank borrowing 20,139 20,139
Finance lease liabilities 663 663

20,802 20,802

Total borrowings 21,225 21,225

Carrying Fair
amount value

2005 2005
£'000 £'000

Current
Bank overdraft 39 39
Unsecured loan notes & other borrowings 1 1
Bank borrowing 17 17
Finance lease liabilities 456 456

513 513

Non-current
Bank borrowing 54,418 54,418
Finance lease liabilities 571 571

54,989 54,989

Total borrowings 55,502 55,502

Maturity of non-current borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities):
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Between 1 and 2 years 298 12 
Between 2 and 3 years 325 54,406 
Between 3 and 4 years 75 - 
Between 4 and 5 years 20,104 - 

20,802 54,418

Finance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments:
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 393 507
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 339 323
Later than 2 year and not later than 3 years 330 231
Later than 3 year and not later than 4 years 85 80

1,147 1,141

Future finance charges on finance leases (138) (114)

Present value of finance lease liabilities 1,009 1,027
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22.  Borrowings cont.

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 346 456 
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 298 291 
Later than 2 year and not later than 3 years 290 208 
Later than 3 year and not later than 4 years 75 72 

1,009 1,027

Borrowing facilities
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities: 2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Floating rate:

- expiring within one year - - 
- expiring beyond one year 230,000 95,594 

230,000 95,594 

Facilities expiring beyond one year expire in December 2011 and relate to the committed unsecured £230 million revolving credit facility in the name of

JLT Group plc and the AUD 50 million (£20.1 million) committed unsecured revolving credit facility available to JLT Australia Pty Ltd. Drawings under the

facilities are subject to margins between 55.0 and 60.0 basis points above the relevant LIBOR interest rate and additionally incur commitment fees on

the undrawn facility. The facilities terms and conditions include common debt and interest cover covenants which the Group expects to continue to

comply with.
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23.  Deferred Income Taxes
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and

when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

Assets Liabilities Net
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Property, plant & equipment 1,955 3,196 (58) (768) 1,897 2,428

Provisions 7,931 7,607 - - 7,931 7,607

Losses 442 1,455 (433) (702) 9 753

Deferred income 1,127 603 (4,347) (3,241) (3,220) (2,638)

Intangibles other than goodwill 88 114 (118) - (30) 114

Other 4,031 1,479 (4,002) (3,936) 29 (2,457)

Pensions 33,273 59,097 - (7,500) 33,273 51,597

Share based payments 2,115 2,515 - - 2,115 2,515

Fair values - - (2,945) (181) (2,945) (181)

Tax assets/(liabilities) 50,962 76,066 (11,903) (16,328) 39,059 59,738

Set off of tax (4,603) (2,071) 4,603 2,071 - -

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 46,359 73,995 (7,300) (14,257) 39,059 59,738

IFRS requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be offset where there is a legally enforceable right to do so by virtue of income taxes being levied by

the same tax authority on entities which intend to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously in future periods.

At 31 Dec Exchange Charge/(credit) Charge/(credit) At 31 Dec
2005 differences to income to equity 2006
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Property, plant & equipment 2,428 (74) (457) - 1,897

Provisions 7,607 (507) 831 - 7,931

Losses 753 45 (789) - 9

Deferred income (2,638) 55 (637) - (3,220)

Intangibles other than goodwill 114 (1) (143) - (30)

Other (2,457) (11) 2,497 - 29

Pensions 51,597 (206) (16,863) (1,255) 33,273

Share based payments 2,515 (56) (344) - 2,115

Fair values (181) - - (2,764) (2,945)

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 59,738 (755) (15,905) (4,019) 39,059

The total current and deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as follows:
At 31 Dec Charge/(credit) At 31 Dec

2005 to equity 2006
£'000 £'000 £'000

Pension 13,836 (1,093) 12,743

Fair values

Foreign exchange 760 (3,502) (2,742)

Interest rate hedging 31 267 298

Available-for-sale (972) 471 (501)

(181) (2,764) (2,945)

13,655 (3,857) 9,798

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is

considered probable. A deferred tax asset of £433,000 (2005: £514,000) has not been recognised in the balance sheet in respect of certain of the

Group's overseas operations, principally the Philippines, Norway and Taiwan where it is considered likely that the losses will expire before use.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised on temporary differences of £590,000 (2005: £526,000) representing the unremitted earnings of

subsidiaries and joint ventures. Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised on temporary differences of

£176,000 (2005: £238,000) representing unremitted earnings of Associates.
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24.  Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

Property Pension Acquisition

related mis-selling Litigation Deferred integration

provisions provisions provisions consideration provisions Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2005 10,147 - 35,538 11,986 956 58,627

Exchange adjustment (74) - (85) (495) - (654)

Reclassification from current assets/liabilities (186) - 204 - (37) (19)

Adjustment to gross basis - - (7,839) - - (7,839)

Utilised in the year (2,410) - (961) (2,811) (207) (6,389)

Charged to the income statement 1,586 - 1,533 - - 3,119

Interest charge 245 - - (21) 24 248

Acquisitions - - - (3,900) - (3,900)

At 31st December 2006 9,308 - 28,390 4,759 736 43,193 

At 31st December 2004 12,931 98 22,728 20,010 1,263 57,030

Exchange adjustment 95 - 61 1,481 - 1,637

Reclassification from current assets/liabilities 404 - (14) - 3 393

Adjustment to gross basis - - 11,230 - - 11,230

Utilised in the year (4,810) (98) (3,579) (8,753) (334) (17,574)

Charged to the income statement 1,140 - 5,112 - - 6,252

Interest charge 387 - - 331 24 742

Acquisitions - - - (1,083) - (1,083)

At 31st December 2005 10,147 - 35,538 11,986 956 58,627

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Non-current - to be utilised in more than one year 7,692 13,664

Current - to be utilised within one year 35,501 44,963

43,193 58,627

Property related provisions
The Group recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract. Provision is made for the future rental cost of vacant property. In calculating the provision required, account is
taken of the duration of the lease and any recovery of cost achievable from subletting. Property provisions occur principally in the USA and UK and relate
to a variety of lease commitments. The longest lease terms for each country are to 2014 and 2016 respectively.

Pension mis-selling provision
In previous years provision has been made in respect of claims for compensation against a Group subsidiary arising from the mis-selling of pension
advice and pension products. The liability arising from this issue was satisfied during 2005.

Litigation provisions
At any point in time the Group can be involved in a variety of litigation issues. A balance sheet provision is established in respect of such issues when it is
probable that the liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The Group analyses its litigation exposures
based on available information, including external legal consultation where appropriate, to assess its potential liability. Where appropriate the Group also
provides for the cost of defending or initiating such matters. 

Where a litigation provision has been made it is stated gross of any third party recovery, all such recoveries are included as "other debtors" within trade
and other receivables. At 31st December 2006, in connection with certain litigation matters, the Group's litigation provisions include an amount of £10.2
million (2005: £17.8 million) to reflect this gross basis and the corresponding insurance recovery has been included within trade and other receivables.
This presentation has had no effect on the Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31st December 2006 (2005: nil).

Deferred consideration
Provision is made in respect of additional consideration payable following the initial completion of an acquisition. The value of the deferred consideration
may be revised from time to time prior to final settlement. 

Acquisition integration provisions
Represent costs expected to be incurred as a result of combining and restructuring operations following a acquisition. These costs are not associated
with the ongoing activities of the company.

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 37 the Group has discounted certain provisions to their present value. The discount rate applied to each
provision is appropriate to the nature of the provision and the location in which the liability occurs. The interest charge, represents the unwinding of the
provision discounting, and has been included as part of "Finance charges" within the consolidated income statement.
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25.  Share Capital

Nominal
Number of value

shares £'000

Authorised
Ordinary shares of 5p each 250,000,000 12,500

Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 31st December 2005 212,304,855 10,615
Allotted during the year 386,465 19

At 31st December 2006 212,691,320 10,634

Ordinary shares carry rights to dividends, voting and proceeds on winding up.

During the year there have been the following changes in the share capital of the Company:

1 Between 1st January and 31st December 2006 the Company issued 719 ordinary shares for a consideration of £3,282.24 to UK employees and 22,300
ordinary shares for a consideration of £84,421.50 (in local currency) to overseas employees following exercises by employees and former employees of
options held under the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group Sharesave Option Scheme.

2 Between 1st January and 31st December 2006 the Company issued 48,000 ordinary shares for a consideration of £69,600.00 following exercises by
executives of options held under the JIB Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 1991.

3 Between 1st January and 31st December 2006 the Company issued 315,446 ordinary shares for a consideration of £1,065,227.24 following exercises
by executives of options held under the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme.

26.  Minority Interests

£'000

At 31st December 2005 3,617
Exchange adjustment (401)
Acquisitions (173)
Change in shareholding 737
Profit for the year 1,178
Dividends (596)

At 31st December 2006 4,362

At 31st December 2004 10,891
Exchange adjustment 369 
Acquisitions (7,986)
Profit for the year 580 
Dividends (237)

At 31st December 2005 3,617

i On 9th February 1998 the Group entered into an agreement to establish Agnew Higgins & Company Limited, subsequently renamed Agnew Higgins
Pickering & Company Limited (‘Agnew Higgins’). Under the terms of the agreement a new company was formed, BGHPW Ltd (‘NewCo’) in which JLT
held 76% of the voting shares and 15% of the non-voting shares which carried the dividend rights. Andrew Agnew and others (‘the management’) held the
balance. The non-voting shares had the entire economic interest in Agnew Higgins.
There was an Option Agreement which contained put and call options in respect of the management’s non-voting and voting shares in NewCo.
The options were exercised by the shareholders of the non-voting and voting shares in March 2005. The consideration of £38.6 million was satisfied by the
issue of 9,339,807 ordinary shares in JLT and a £495,000 cash payment. The consideration was based upon the results of Agnew Higgins for the two
financial years prior to exercise, relative to the profits of JLT in accordance with the formula in the Option Agreement.

ii On 28th July 2004 the Group entered into agreements with Heath Lambert Holdings Limited to acquire its majority shareholdings in its insurance and
reinsurance businesses in Colombia and Peru. On the same date the Group entered into put and call options with the active minority shareholders of the
HLH businesses in Colombia and Peru for the possible acquisition of up to 80% of their shareholdings over a period from 2006 to 2010 (or 2013 in
respect of certain shares that were acquired within 6 months of July 2004). The total consideration, to be satisfied by cash or in Group shares, for these
interests has been capped at US$96 million (when combined with performance related payments based on the levels of turnover and profit achieved over
a three year period). The relevant minority shareholdings were in Heath Lambert de Colombia Corredores Colombianos de Reaseguros S.A. (13.84%);
Heath Lambert Corredores de Seguros S.A. & Heath Lambert Beneficios Integrales Optorunos S.A. (32%); Heath Lambert Peru Corredores de
Reaseguros S.A. (41.2%) and Mariategui Heath Lambert Corredores de Seguros S.A. (49%). The acquisition of the final 20% of the minority shareholdings
may also be ultimately acquired upon retirement of the relevant shareholder or in certain other circumstances.
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27.  Changes in Shareholders’ Funds

Fair value Total
Share Share & other Exchange Retained shareholders’

capital premium reserves reserves earnings funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31st December 2005 10,615 73,370 433 6,229 57,978 148,625 

Actuarial losses recognised in

post retirement benefit schemes - - - - 2,612 2,612

Fair value gains/(losses) net of tax:

- available-for-sale - - (1,072) - - (1,072)

- cash flow hedges - - 7,637 - - 7,637

Currency translation differences - - - (10,299) - (10,299)

Net gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity - - 6,565 (10,299) 2,612 (1,122)

Net profit - - - - 46,166 46,166 

Effect of shareholding restructure in associate - - - - (553) (553)

Total recognised income and expense for the year - - 6,565 (10,299) 48,225 44,491

Dividends paid - - - - (42,548) (42,548)

Reversal of amortisation in respect of share based payments - - - - 9,485 9,485 

Issue of share capital 19 1,198 - - - 1,217

Balance at 31st December 2006 10,634 74,568 6,998 (4,070) 73,140 161,270 

Fair value Total
Share Share & other Exchange Retained shareholders’

capital premium reserves reserves earnings funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31st December 2004 10,100 33,628 - (6,617) 66,117 103,228

Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 - - 12,130 - - 12,130

Balance at 1st January 2005 10,100 33,628 12,130 (6,617) 66,117 115,358

Actuarial losses recognised in post retirement benefit schemes - - - - (23,289) (23,289)

Fair value gains/(losses) net of tax:

- available-for-sale - - 2,202 - - 2,202

- cash flow hedges - - (13,899) - - (13,899)

Currency translation differences - - - 12,846 - 12,846 

Net gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity - - (11,697) 12,846 (23,289) (22,140)

Net profit - - - - 50,573 50,573

Total recognised income and expense for the year - - (11,697) 12,846 27,284 28,433

Dividends paid - - - - (43,746) (43,746)

Reversal of amortisation in respect of share based payments - - - - 8,303 8,303

Contribution to QUEST - - - - 20 20

Issue of share capital 515 39,742 - - - 40,257

Balance at 31st December 2005 10,615 73,370 433 6,229 57,978 148,625

28.  Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust

During the year no ordinary shares were allocated from the QUEST (2005: 9,614). Shares are allocated from the QUEST to employees in satisfaction of

options that have been exercised under the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Sharesave Schemes. Exercise proceeds are credited by the Company directly to the

profit and loss account reserve. There were no proceeds received during the year (2005: £20,000).
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29.  Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Cash flows from Operating activities

Profit before taxation 76,547 73,806

Investment Income receivable (19,759) (15,355)

Interest payable on bank loans & finance leases 3,290 3,699

Fair value losses on financial instruments 87 1

Pension financing charge 232 2,119

Unwinding of provision discounting 248 742

Depreciation 7,507 8,910

Amortisation of intangible assets 6,551 6,508

Negative goodwill on acquisitions (35) -

Amortisation of share based payments 7,042 8,303

Impairment charges 4,359 2,751

Amortisation of employee benefit trust 954 762

Loss on sale or closure of operations 16,252 -

Pension curtailment gain (2006: UK - 2005: USA) (31,300) (2,069)

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (206) (61)

Loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed asset investments 4 (134)

Share of results of associates undertakings (2,543) (2,505)

Decrease in debtors 6,641 2,604

Increase in creditors - excluding insurance broking balances 5,262 1,864

Decrease in provisions for liabilities and charges (3,270) (11,324)

Decrease in retirement benefit obligation (17,745) (1,981)

Net cash inflow from operations 60,118 78,639
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30.  Business Combinations

During the year, the deferred consideration booked in respect of acquisitions completed in previous years has been revised following either final

settlement of amounts due or the revision of estimates based on performance conditions.

Net Other Change in
Deferred Deferred movements movements estimated

Year of consideration consideration during during deferred
original at 31 Dec 05 at 31 Dec 06 the year the year consideration

transaction £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Heath Lambert - Mexican business 2004 2,661 -   (2,661) (267) (2,394)

Heath Lambert - London, Latin American book 2004 2,476 86 (2,390) 31 (2,421)

Culliname Twoney 2004 797 238 (559) (329) (230)

Risk Solutions Limited - New Zealand 2005 1,404 808 (596) (96) (500)

7,338 1,132 (6,206) (661) (5,545)

During the year the following acquisitions and additional investments in existing businesses were completed, none of which were individually significant.

Percentage

Acquisition voting rights Cost

date acquired £'000

Acquisition of new businesses completed during the year Jan - Dec 06 100% 3,016

Additional investments in existing businesses Jan - Dec 06 - 1,039

4,055

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were as follows:
Acquiree's

carrying
Fair value amount

£’000 £’000

Trade and other receivables 244 244

Cash and cash equivalents 1,096 1,096

Trade and other payables (305) (305)

Taxation (2) (2)

Minority interests 173 173

1,206 1,206

Purchase consideration settled in cash 2,410

Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired (1,096)

1,314

As at 31st December 2006, the process of reviewing the fair values of assets acquired had not been completed, consequently the fair values stated

above are provisional.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

£'000

Purchase consideration - cash paid 2,410

Deferred consideration 1,645

Total consideration 4,055

Fair value of net assets acquired (1,206)

2,849

Negative goodwill credited to consolidated income statement 35

Goodwill 2,884

Impact of revisions to deferred consideration (5,545)

Net decrease in goodwill (2,661)
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31.  Business Disposals

On 8th September 2006, the Group announced that it had reached agreement with Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. for the sale of its US based Property

and Casualty Insurance and Employee Benefits businesses.

£'000

Net assets disposed of

Goodwill 47,545

Intangible assets 715

Property, plant and equipment 1,719

Available-for-sale financial assets 27

Trade and other receivables 1,919

Cash and cash equivalents 2,025

Trade and other payables (2,350)

51,600

Exchange losses recycled from exchange reserves 2,195

Loss on disposal (16,252)

37,543

Cash proceeds 52,539

Costs of disposal (14,996)

37,543

Disposal proceeds settled in cash 52,539

Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary sold (2,025)

Cash inflow on disposals 50,514

The sold operations have been treated as discontinued operations and the results of these operations for both 2006 and 2005 are shown in note 2 on

page 58. The loss on disposal has been treated as an exceptional item.

32.  Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12th February 2007, the Group announced the merger of SIACI, its 31.89% owned French associate, with Assurances et Conseils Saint-Honore, the

Paris based employee benefit services provider and specialist insurance broker. The merged company will be called Newstone Courtage (Newstone).

The transaction is expected to complete in the first half of 2007 subject to regulatory approvals. Further details of this transaction are given in the Finance

Director’s Review on page 22.
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33.  Retirement Benefit Obligations

The Group operates a number of pension schemes throughout the world, the most significant of which are of the defined benefit type and operate on a

funded basis. The two principal pension schemes are the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme in the UK and the JLT (USA) Employee Retirement

Plan.

The pension costs for the year are comprised as follows:
2006 2005

UK Overseas Total UK Overseas Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Defined benefit schemes 11,021 - 11,021 11,262 780 12,042

Defined contribution schemes 3,296 6,496 9,792 1,431 7,203 8,634

14,317 6,496 20,813 12,693 7,983 20,676

The Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme is based in the UK and has two sections; one providing defined benefits based primarily on Final

Pensionable Salary and the other providing benefits on a defined contribution basis. The assets of the scheme are held in a trustee administered fund

separate from the Company.

With effect from 1st December 2006 the Scheme was amended to eliminate future benefit accruals. Under the Scheme as amended, a participant's

normal retirement benefit will be determined based on their service and compensation prior to 1st December 2006. The average compensation and

length of service will be determined as at 1st December 2006. The amendment to the plan gave rise to a curtailment gain of £31,300,000 which has

been treated as an exceptional item. The Company has agreed to make additional contributions to the scheme totalling £65 million. An amount of £14

million was paid in December 2006 and a further amount of £31 million was paid in January 2007, the balance will be paid in equal instalments in 2008

and 2009.

The last formal valuation of the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme was undertaken at 1st July, 2003. This was updated to 31st December, 2006

by a qualified actuary independent from the Group. A formal valuation as at 1st April 2006 is currently being undertaken but at the date of this report has

not been finalised.

The principal overseas schemes are:

a) The JLT (USA) Incentive Savings Plan which is a defined contribution scheme. Employees may contribute up to 50% of their salary up to a maximum

allowed by law – $15,000 in 2005 – and the Group contributes at a rate of 100% of each 1% contributed by the employee up to a maximum

employee contribution of 4%.

b) The JLT (USA) Employee Retirement Plan which is a defined benefit scheme. The latest actuarial valuation was undertaken at 31st December, 2005

by independent actuaries. With effect from 31st July 2005 the Plan was amended to eliminate future benefit accruals. Under the Plan as amended, a

participant's normal retirement benefit will be determined based on their service and compensation prior to 31st July 2005. The average

compensation and length of service will be determined as at 31st July 2005. The amendment to the plan gave rise to a curtailment gain of

£2,069,000/$3,765,000 (2004: £79,000/$144,000)

The principal assumptions used in the valuations as at 31st December 2006, and prior year were as follows:

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005

Rate of increase in salaries n/a 4.20% n/a 4.50%

Rate of increase of pensions in payment (retail prices limited to 5% per annum) (a) 3.00% 2.70% n/a n/a

Discount rate 5.20% 4.80% 5.75% 5.50%

Inflation rate 3.00% 2.70% 3.00% 3.00%

Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners 3.00% 2.70% n/a n/a

Expected return on plan assets (b) 6.80% 6.80% 8.24% 8.29%

Mortality - life expectancy at age 65 for male member: (c)

Aged 65 at 31st December 19.8 19.8 17.6 17.6

a) Provision has been made for alternative pension increase guarantees where appropriate.
b) The expected return on scheme assets assumption was determined as the average of the expected returns on the assets held by the schemes on

31st December of the previous year.
c) Mortality assumptions for the UK scheme are based on the 92 series amounts table for calendar year 2020. Plus an additional 5% loading to the

liabilities (2005: nil loading).
Mortality assumptions for the US scheme are based on the RP-2000 Combined Healty Mortality table. 
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33.  Retirement Benefit Obligations cont.

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005

Defined benefit liability £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Present value of funded obligations (473,916) (477,145) (26,901) (29,979)

Fair value of plan assets 380,271 331,308 20,731 22,625 

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet (93,645) (145,837) (6,170) (7,354)

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005

Reconciliation of defined benefit liability £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Opening defined benefit liability (145,837) (115,349) (7,354) (5,664)

Exchange differences - - 859 (694)

Pension income/(expense) 19,908 (13,633) 139 1,541

Employer contributions 28,102 14,022 664 -

Total gain/(loss) recognised in SORIE 4,182 (30,877) (477) (2,537)

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet (93,645) (145,837) (6,170) (7,354)

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Opening defined benefit obligation (477,145) (388,499) (29,980) (25,560)

Exchange differences - - 3,613 (2,970)

Service cost (11,021) (10,960) - (596)

Interest cost (22,507) (21,123) (1,579) (1,528)

Employee contributions (2,910) (2,942) - -

Loss on defined benefit obligation (2,991) (62,519) (363) (2,389)

Actual benefit payments 11,358 9,200 1,408 1,179

Settlement/curtailment 31,300 - - 2,069

Past service cost adjustment - (302) - (184)

Closing defined benefit obligations (473,916) (477,145) (26,901) (29,979)

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005

Reconciliation of fair value of assets £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Opening value of assets 331,308 273,150 22,625 19,896

Exchange differences - - (2,754) 2,276

Expected return on assets 22,136 18,752 1,718 1,780

Gain/(loss) on assets 7,173 31,642 (114) (148)

Employer contributions 28,102 14,022 664 -

Employee contributions 2,910 2,942 - -

Actual benefit payments (11,358) (9,200) (1,408) (1,179)

Closing value of assets 380,271 331,308 20,731 22,625
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33.  Retirement Benefit Obligations cont.

The analysis of the fair value of the schemes assets is as follows:
UK Scheme US Scheme

Long-term Long-term
31st December 2006 rate of return Value £'000 Value % rate of return Value £'000 Value %

Equities 7.90% 222,333 58% 9.50% 13,457 65%

Bonds 4.70% 102,666 27% 6.20% 4,909 24%

Other assets 6.70% 36,719 10% 8.21% 421 2%

Cash - 18,563 5% 4.30% 1,944 9%

Total market value 6.80% 380,281 100% 8.24% 20,731 100%

UK Scheme US Scheme

Long-term Long-term
31st December 2005 rate of return Value £'000 Value % rate of return Value £'000 Value %

Equities 8.00% 203,724 61% 9.80% 15,310 68%

Bonds 4.25% 94,893 29% 4.77% 5,469 24%

Other assets 6.70% 30,876 9% 8.24% 736 3%

Cash - 1,815 1% 3.77% 1,110 5%

Total market value 6.80% 331,308 100% 8.29% 22,625 100%

Other assets include hedge funds and property. The scheme does not hold cash as a strategic investment. Cash balances at the 31st December

represent working balances and, as at 31st December 2006, £18.0 million pending investment in corporate bonds.

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005

Reconciliation on return of assets £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Expected return on assets 22,136 18,752 1,718 1,780

Gain/(loss) on assets 7,173 31,642 (114) (148)

Actual return on assets 29,309 50,394 1,604 1,632

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Service cost (11,021) (10,960) - (596)

Past service cost - (302) - (184)

Curtailment gains 31,300 - - 2,069

Total (included within salaries and associated expenses) 20,279 (11,262) - 1,289

Interest cost (22,507) (21,123) (1,579) (1,528)

Expected return on assets 22,136 18,752 1,718 1,780

Total (included within finance costs) (371) (2,371) 139 252

Gain/(loss) before taxation 19,908 (13,633) 139 1,541

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income and expense are as follows:

UK Scheme US Scheme
2006 2005 2006 2005
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Loss on defined benefit obligation 2,991 62,519 363 2,389

(Gain)/loss on plan assets (7,173) (31,642) 114 148

Total actuarial (profits)/losses recognised (4,182) 30,877 477 2,537

Cumulative actuarial losses recognised 110,162 114,344 8,272 7,795
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33.  Retirement Benefit Obligations cont.

The five year history of experience adjustments is as follows:

UK Scheme

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Defined benefit obligation at end of year (473,916) (477,145) (388,499) (347,160) (277,058)

Fair value of plan assets 380,271 331,308 273,150 190,197 155,894 

Deficit in the scheme (93,645) (145,837) (115,349) (156,963) (121,164)

Difference between the expected and actual return on plan assets 

- amount (£’000) 7,173 31,642 3,140 17,430 (44,269)

- expressed as a percentage of the plan assets 1.89% 9.55% 1.15% 9.16% (28.40%)

Experience losses on plan liabilities 

- amount (£’000) 2,063 82 (2,364) (28,810) (6,357)

- expressed as a percentage of the present value of the plan liabilities (0.44%) (0.02%) 0.61% 8.30% 2.29%

US Scheme

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Defined benefit obligation at end of year (26,901) (29,979) (25,560) (25,088) (24,635)

Fair value of plan assets 20,731 22,625 19,896 20,678 20,042 

Deficit in the scheme (6,170) (7,354) (5,664) (4,410) (4,593)

Difference between the expected and actual return on plan assets 

- amount (£’000) (114) (148) (394) 1,980 (3,090)

- expressed as a percentage of the plan assets (0.55%) (0.65%) (1.98%) 9.58% (15.42%)

Experience losses on plan liabilities 

- amount (£’000) (1,291) 315 (165) 104 (297)

- expressed as a percentage of the present value of the plan liabilities 4.80% (1.05%) 0.65% (0.41%) 1.21%

The expected employer contributions for the year ending 31st December 2007 are as follows:

£’000

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme

Defined benefit sections (closed) 31,000 

Defined contribution sections 8,000 

JLT (USA) Employee's Retirement Plan 2,595 

Total expected contributions 41,595
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34.  Jardine Matheson Group

The Jardine Matheson Group owns 30.3% of the Company shares via its wholly owned subsidiary JMH Investments Limited. The remaining 69.7% of the

shares are widely held.

In the normal course of business the Group undertakes, on an arms-length basis, a variety of transactions with the Jardine Matheson Group (JMG) and

its associates (JMA).

The following transactions were carried out during the year:

JMG JMA Total

2006 2006 2006

£'000 £'000 £'000

Income

Brokerage fees and commissions 2,361 1,338 3,699

Expenditure

Administrative expenses 239 - 239

Interest payable 30 - 30

269 - 269

Year end balances arising from these transactions:

Trade and other receivables 1,642 - 1,642

Trade and other payables (13) - (13)

1,629 - 1,629

JMG JMA Total

2005 2005 2005

£'000 £'000 £'000

Income

Gross brokerage fees and commissions 2,374 1,307 3,681

Commission rebates - (137) (137)

Net brokerage fees and commissions 2,374 1,170 3,544

Interest receivable 1 - 1

2,375 1,170 3,545

Expenditure

Administrative expenses 292 - 292

292 - 292

Year end balances arising from these transactions:

Trade and other receivables 1,545 - 1,545

Cash and cash equivalents 129 - 129 

Trade and other payables (217) - (217)

1,457 - 1,457
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35.  Commitments

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment - 250

Intangible assets 98 -

98 250

Operating lease commitments - where a Group company is the lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Not later than 1 year 17,166 20,960

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 57,962 73,719

Later than 5 years 26,089 44,341

101,217 139,020

Sub-leases

Operating lease commitments - where a Group company is the lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating sub-leases are as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Not later than 1 year 3,033 2,618

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 10,781 10,700

Later than 5 years 7,880 13,326

21,694 26,644

Legal and other loss contingencies

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc and its subsidiaries are subject to various claims and legal proceedings principally consisting of alleged errors and

omissions in connection with the placement of insurance/reinsurance and consulting services.

IFRS requires that liabilities for contingencies be recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred before the balance sheet date and the

amount can be reasonably estimated. Significant management judgement is required to comply with this guidance. The Group analyses its litigation

exposure based on available information, including external legal consultation where appropriate, to assess its potential liability.

On the basis of present information, amounts already provided, availability of insurance coverages and legal advice received, it is the opinion of

management that the disposition or ultimate determination of such claims will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of

the Group. However, it is possible that future results of operations or cash flows for any annual period could be materially affected by an unfavourable

resolution of these matters.



36.  Principal Subsidiary and Associated Companies

The following were the principal subsidiary and associated undertakings at 31st December 2006. Unless otherwise shown, the capital of each

company is wholly owned, is in ordinary shares and the principal country of operation is the country of incorporation/registration. Where a

company is not wholly owned, the percentage of the capital held is shown in brackets.

Country of

incorporation/registration Notes

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Insurance broking and consulting

Agnew Higgins Pickering & Company Limited England

JLT Benefit Solutions Limited England b

JLT Corporate Risks Limited England

Expacare Limited England

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited (formerly JLT Risk Solutions Limited) England

JLT Reinsurance Brokers Limited England

Profund Solutions Limited England

Lloyd & Partners Limited England

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ireland Limited Eire

JLT Risk Solutions AB Sweden

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Australia Pty Limited Australia

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited New Zealand

JLT Lixin Insurance Brokers Co., Limited (51%) China

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited Hong Kong a

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited Japan

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Korea Limited Korea

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Insurance Brokers Inc. Philippines

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Asia Pte Limited Singapore

JLT Risk Solutions Asia Pte Limited Singapore

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Sdn Bhd (49%) Malaysia

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Taiwan Limited Taiwan

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited (49%) Thailand b, c

PT Jardine Lloyd Thompson (80%) Indonesia

JLT Risk Solutions (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda

JLT Risk Solutions Management (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Canada Inc. Canada

JLT do Brasil Corretagem de Seguros Ltda (91%) Brazil

Jardine Lloyd Thompson - Valencia y

Iragorri Corredores de Seguros SA (68%) Colombia

JLT Re Colombia, Corredores Colombianos de Reaseguros SA (75.5%) Colombia

JLT Mexico, Intermediario de Reaseguro SA de CV (73%) Mexico

Mariategui JLT, Corredores de Seguros SA (51%) Peru

JLT Corredores de Reaseguros SA (59%) Peru

Group insurance

Eagle & Crown Limited Bermuda

Intermediate holding company

JIB Group Limited England

JLT Latin American Holdings Limited England

JMIB Holdings BV Netherlands

JLT Holdings (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda

JLT Holdings Inc USA

Associated undertakings

Courcelles Participations (31.89%) (holding company of SIACI SA) France
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Notes 
Share capital divided into:
a ordinary and redeemable preferred shares
b ordinary and preferred shares
c 100% of Common Stock owned by the Group
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc
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We have audited the Parent Company financial statements of
Jardine Lloyd Thompson plc for the year ended 31st December
2006 which comprise the Balance Sheet, Reconciliation of
Movement in Shareholders’ Funds and the related notes.
These Parent Company financial statements have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also
audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements
of Jardine Lloyd Thompson plc for the year ended 31st December
2006.

Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom  Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Parent Company financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for
and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Parent Company
financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.
We report to you whether in our opinion the information given in
the Directors' Report is consistent with the Parent Company
financial statements. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’
remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent company
financial statements. The other information comprises only the
Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Report, Review of
Operations, Finance Director’s Review, Directors’ Report and the
unaudited parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. We
consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
Parent Company financial statements. Our responsibilities do not
extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Parent
Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by
the directors in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Parent Company financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Parent
Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:

• the Parent Company financial statements give a true and fair
view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company’s affairs as
at 31st December 2006.

• the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985; and

• the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent
with the Parent Company financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors,
London
20th March 2007

Notes:

a) The maintenance and integrity of the [name of entity] website is the
responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented
on the website.

b) Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.



Balance Sheet
As at 31st December 2006

2006 2005

Notes £’000 £’000

Fixed assets

Investment in subsidiary undertakings c 66,764 66,024

Investment in associate undertakings c 242 242

67,006 66,266

Current assets

Debtors d 581,552 433,872

Cash 2,557 2,472

584,109 436,344

Creditors - amounts falling due within one year. e (392,681) (318,106)

Net current assets 191,428 118,238

Total assets less current liabilities 258,434 184,504

Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year. f - (54,406)

258,434 130,098

Capital and reserves

Ordinary shares g 10,635 10,615

Share premium i 74,568 73,370

Merger reserve i 9,604 9,604

Profit and loss account i 163,627 36,509

Shareholders’ funds 258,434 130,098

Notes on pages 101 to 102 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board on 20th March 2007 and signed on its behalf by:

Jim Rush

Finance Director
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2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Profit for the year 169,666 97,008

Dividends (42,548) (43,746)

Contribution to QUEST (note 28 page 85) - 20

New shares issued 1,218 40,257

Net movements in shareholders’ funds 128,336 93,539

Opening shareholders’ funds 130,098 68,898

Prior year adjustment - (32,339)

Closing shareholders’ funds 258,434 130,098
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Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The Board has decided that the continued use of UK GAAP at the entity level is a more appropriate method of accounting rather than the application of

IFRS as required to be used for the preparation of the Group consolidated accounts.

These separate entity level accounts have been produced on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the

Companies Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards.  

A summary of the principal accounting policies is set out below. 

Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange

differences arising on translation are taken directly to the profit and loss account to the extent that the Company is exposed to exchange differences

arising on such assets and liabilities.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the result for the year at current rates of tax and takes into account deferred tax.

Full provision for deferred tax, without discounting, is made for all timing differences that have arisen but not reversed at the balance sheet date.

Consolidated Accounts

Separate consolidated accounts have been prepared and are presented on pages 45 to 95.

Subsidiary and Associated Undertakings

Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are stated in the balance sheet of the Company at cost less any provisions for permanent

diminution in value.

Investment Income

Interest on deposits and interest-bearing investments is credited as it is earned.
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a.  Profit and Loss Account

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 not to present its own profit and loss

account and there are no recognised gains or losses other than the profit for the year. Profit for the year dealt with in the accounts of the Company is

£169,666,000 (2005: £97,008,000).

b.  Dividends

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Final dividend in respect of 2005 of 12.0p per share (2004: 12.0p) 25,553 25,395

Less: adjustment* (1,144) -

24,409 25,395

Interim dividend in respect of 2006 of 8.5p per share (2005: 8.5p) 18,139 18,351

42,548 43,746

*adjustment relating to dividend equivalents accrued in respect of various performance related share awards and long term incentive plans not currently anticipated to fully vest.

A final dividend in respect of 2006 of 12.0p per share (2005: 12.0p) amounting to a total of £25,808,000 (2005: £25,553,000) was proposed by the

Board. The dividend proposed will not be accounted for until it has been approved at the Annual General Meeting.

c.  Investments

Subsidiary Associate

undertakings undertakings Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost

At 31st December 2005 66,024 242 66,266

Additions 740 - 740

At 31st December 2006 66,764 242 67,006

At 31st December 2005 66,024 242 66,266

d.  Debtors

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Other debtors and prepayments 26,793 25,867

Corporation tax 13 -

Amounts due from Group undertakings 554,746 408,005

581,552 433,872

e. Creditors - amounts falling due within one year

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Bank overdrafts 13,047 28,601

Dividends payable 637 1,572

Corporation tax - 9

Other creditors 644 811

Amounts due to Group undertakings 378,353 287,113

392,681 318,106

The bank overdraft arises in connection with the Group's UK bank pooling facility and is offset by cash balances held by other Group companies in the UK.
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f. Creditors - amounts falling due after one year

2006 2005

£’000 £’000

Bank loans - 54,406

- 54,406

Details of the Company's borrowing facilities are given in note 22 on page 79.

g.  Share Capital

Details of the Company's share capital are given in note 25 on page 84.

h.  Financial Risk Management

Details of the Financial Risk Management for the Company are given in the Finance Director’s Review on pages 20 to 23.

i.  Reserves

Share  Merger Profit & 

premium reserve loss account Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2005 73,370 9,604 36,509 119,483

Retained profit for the year - - 169,666 169,666

Dividends paid - - (42,548) (42,548)

Shares issued 1,198 - - 1,198

At 31st December 2006 74,568 9,604 163,627 247,799
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Continuing operations

basis
2002 2003 2004 2005 2005 2006

UK GAAP UK GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees and commissions (Turnover) 388,144 429,048 468,092 484,370 454,072 459,537

Investment income 19,698 17,334 13,465 15,355 15,086 19,436

Operating revenue 407,842 446,382

Trading expenses (309,069) (336,952)

Salaries and associated expenses (273,437) (297,447) (276,106) (266,300)

Premises (25,410) (30,007) (28,534) (30,292)

Other operating costs (85,731) (80,104) (75,411) (77,060)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges (10,996) (14,305) (13,856) (13,311)

Goodwill amortisation (3,235) (3,773)

Exceptional items (2,525) (3,597)

Operating profit 93,013 102,060 85,983 77,862 75,251 92,010

Finance costs (Interest payable) (2,111) (1,858) (3,287) (6,561) (6,515) (3,790)

Share of results of associates 5,186 6,135 

Share of results of associates after tax and minority interests 2,261 2,505 2,505 2,543

Profit/(loss) on sale or closure of operations 4,094 4,678 

Profit before taxation 100,182 111,015 84,957 73,806 71,241 90,763

Income tax expense (30,923) (35,276) (25,915) (22,653) (24,046) (29,333)

Profit for the year (continuing operations 2005 & 2006) 69,259 75,739 59,042 51,153 47,195 61,430

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3,958 1,535

Loss on sale of US operations - (15,621)

Minority interests (1,810) (2,935) (3,385) (580) (580) (1,178)

Profit attributable to shareholders 67,449 72,804 55,657 50,573 50,573 46,166

Dividends (36,762) (40,945)

Retained profit for the year 30,687 31,859 55,657 50,573 50,573 46,166

Diluted earnings per share (continuing operations 2005 & 2006) 34.7p 38.2p 27.5p 23.8p 21.9p 28.2p

Dividends per share 18.5p 20.5p 20.5p 20.5p 20.5p 20.5p

The figures for 2006 are presented on a "continuing operations" basis consistent with the main body of these financial statements. Figures for 2005 are

presented as originally published and on a continuing operations basis to aid comparison.
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Advisers/Shareholder Information

Fully 50% Chlorine Wood Fibre Up to 50%
recyclable and Free from
biodegradable sustainable

forests

Environmental
The material used in this report includes up to 50% recycled content and 50% TCF (Totally Chlorine Free)
virgin fibre, from sustainable forests.

Both the paper mill and printer are accredited with the Environmental Standard ISO 14001.

Advisers

Independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants

Southwark Towers

32 London Bridge Street

London SE1 9SY

Principal bankers
The Royal Bank of Scotland

280 Bishopsgate 

London EC2M 4RB

Barclays Bank PLC

1 Churchill Place

London E14 5HP

Registrars and transfer office
Capita Registrars

Northern House

Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge

Huddersfield

West Yorkshire

HD8 0LA

Telephone: 0870 162 3100

Stockbrokers
JPMorgan Cazenove Limited

20 Moorgate

London EC2R 6DA

Telephone: 020 7588 2828

Shareholder information

Financial calendar
Ex dividend date

28th March 2007

Record date

30th March 2007

Annual General Meeting

26th April 2007

Final dividend payable

27th April 2007

Interim results announced

August 2007

Interim dividend payable

October 2007

Dividend mandates

Shareholders who wish dividends to be paid directly into a

bank or building society account should contact Capita

Registrars or complete the dividend mandate form attached to

their dividend cheque.

Secretary and registered office
D J Hickman FCIS

6 Crutched Friars

London EC3N 2PH

Telephone: 020 7528 4444

Facsimile: 020 7528 4185

Company Registration Number: 1679424
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Head office
UK, London
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc
+44 20 7528 4444

Europe
Belgium, Brussels
SIACI Belgium
+322 660 9001

France, Paris
SIACI SA
+33 1 44 20 99 99

JLTRS Energy (France) SA
+33 1 44 20 98 70

Guernsey, St Peter Port 
JLT Risk Solutions (Guernsey) Ltd
+44 1481 737 120

Ireland, Dublin
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ireland Ltd
+35 31 20 26 000

Italy, Milan
JLT – SIACI Srl
+39 02 30 30 131

Netherlands, Amsterdam
JMIB Holdings BV
+31 20 470 0258

Poland, Warsaw
JLT – SIACI Ltd
+48 22 31 41 200

Russia, Moscow
ZAO Jardine IBR Limited
+7 495 937 8226

Spain, Madrid
SIACI España, SL
+34 91 310 6102

Sweden, Stockholm 
JLT Risk Solutions AB
+46 8 442 5730

Switzerland, Geneva
SIACI & Partners SA
+41 22 704 0570

UK, London
JLT Benefit Solutions Ltd 
+44 20 7309 8100

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd
+44 20 7528 4000

JLT Corporate Risks Ltd
+44 20 7309 8100

Lloyd & Partners Ltd
+44 20 7466 6500

JLT Reinsurance Brokers Limited
+44 20 7466 1300

Americas

Bermuda, Hamilton
JLT Risk Solutions (Bermuda) Ltd 
+1 441 292 4364

JLT Risk Solutions Management
(Bermuda) Ltd
+1 441 292 4364

Brazil, São Paulo
JLT do Brasil Corretagem de Seguros Ltda
+55 11 3156 3900

Canada, Calgary
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Canada Inc 
+1 403 264 8600

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd
+1 416 941 9551

Colombia, Bogotá
Jardine Lloyd Thompson - Valencia y Iragorri
Corredores de Seguros SA
+571 326 6100

JLT Re Colombia, Corredores
Colombianos de Reaseguros SA
+571 211 2911

Mexico
JLT Mexico, Intermediario de Reaseguro SA
de CV
+52 55 8503 6700

Peru, Lima
Mariategui JLT, Corredores de Seguros SA
+511 690 9000

JLT Corredores de Reaseguros SA
+511 690 9907

USA, New York
JLT Holdings Inc.
+1 518 782 3000

Africa
Angola, Luanda
JLT Risk Solutions Ltd
+244 222 399373

Middle East
Dubai
JLT Risk Solutions Ltd
+971 4 360  0527

Asia
China
JLT Lixin Insurance Brokers Co Ltd  
+86 20 3285 1128

Hong Kong
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd
+852 2864 5333

Indonesia, Jakarta
PT Jardine Lloyd Thompson
+6221 521 1414

Japan, Tokyo
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd
+81 3 3517 3030

Korea, Seoul
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Korea Ltd
+82 2 397 8100

Macau
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd
+853 755 743

Malaysia, Kuala Lumpur 
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Sdn Bhd
+60 3 2723 3388

Philippines, Makati City
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Insurance
Brokers Inc
+632 884 5600

Singapore
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Asia Pte Ltd
+65 6333 6311

JLT Risk Solutions Asia Pte Ltd
+65 6333 6006

JLT Re Asia
+65 6333 6006

Taiwan, Taipei
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Taiwan Ltd
+886 2 2395 4611

Thailand, Bangkok
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd
+662 626 2500

Vietnam, Ho Chi Minh City
JLT Risk Solutions Asia Pte Ltd
+848 8 222 340

Australasia
Australia, Sydney
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Australia Pty Ltd
+612 9290 8000

New Zealand, Auckland
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ltd
+649 379 5376

Risk Solutions Ltd
+649 302 4521
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